
GOLDENDALE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 15, 2014 

7:00PM 
 

A.  Call to Order 
1.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 
B.  Roll Call 

 
C.  Public Hearing 

1. 2015 Budget 
2. Critical Areas for the West Allyn Outfall Project 

 
D.  Agenda 

1.  Approval of Agenda 
2.  Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes 
b. Claims 

 
 
 
 
c. Payroll 
d. Other 

 
E.  Presentations 

 
F.  Department Reports 

 
G.  Council Business 

1. Cabaret Application -American Legion 
2. Cabaret Application - Hotrods Bar & Grill 
3. Capital Outlay Amendment- Pump Repair 
4. Capital Outlay Purchase of Chlorination System 
5. Bid Award for Lawn Mower Purchase 
6. Animal Control Agreement with Bingen 
7. Prosecuting Attorney Agreement 
8. Civil Attorney Amended Agreement 
9. Uniformed Officers Union Contract for 2015-2017 
10. Recommendation from Budget Committee on Tourism Event Support 
11. Recommendation from Public Works Committee on WCNIP  · 
12. Professional  Services Contract on WCNIP 
13. West Allyn Stormwater Outfall Relocation Project Tolling Agreement 

 
H.  Resolutions 

1. Critical Areas Reasonable  Use Exception 
2. Recommendation from Planning Commission on Shorelines Permit 
3. Job Descriptions 

 
I.  Ordinances 

1. 40% Optional Sales Tax 
2. 3rd Quarter Budget Amendment for 2014 
3. 2015 Budget 



 
J.  Report of Officers and City Administrator 

1. City Attorney Report 
 
K.  Public Comment 

 
L. Executive Session 

 
M. Adjournment 

 
NEXT REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING WILL BE ON JANUARY 5, 2015 AT 7:00 
PM. 



AGENDA TITLE:  CONSENT AGENDA 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15,2014 

ACTION REQUIRED: 

ORDINANCE.    _ COUNCIL INFORMATION   -=....::X'---_ 

RESOLUTION  _ OTHER    
 

MOTION  :_;X:...  _ 
 
 

EXPLANATION: 
The consent agenda includes the following: 
Minutes  of  the  December   1,  2014  regular  council  meeting,  minutes  of  the  special 
executive session December  8, 2014, second pay period  November  checks #43072- 
43116, 900414 in the amount  of $118,001.85, vacation/camp  buyout checks #43117- 
43122, 900415 in the amount  of $7,668.35, December  15, 2014 claims checks #43123 
-43179, 900416- 900422 in the amount of $233,525.11. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Payroll  checks  in  the  amount   of  $118,001.85,   buyout  checks   in  the  amount  of 
$7,668.35, claims checks in the amount of $233,525.11. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Approve the consent agenda. 
Remove certain items from the consent agenda for further discussion. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the consent agenda 

 
MOTION: 

 
IMOVE TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA. 



GOLDENDALE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 
DECEMBER 1, 2014 

7:00PM 
 

Mayor Clinton Baze called to order the regular meeting of the Goldendale City Council 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
7:01:27 PM 
PRESENT:  Mayor Clinton Baze 

Council Member Lucille Bevis 
Council Member Mike Canon 
Council Member Len Crawford 
Council Member Andy Halm 
Council Member Gary Hoctor 
Council Member Deanna Luth 
Council Member Guy Theriault 

 
STAFF:  City Administrator Larry Bellamy 

Public Works Director Karl Enyeart 
Lieutenant Reggie Bartkowski 
Finance/Administrative II Sandy Wells 

 
ABSENT:  None 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
7:01:48 PM 
Mayor Baze opened the floor for public comment on the 2015 budget hearing. 

With no comments from the public the hearing was closed. 

AGENDAANDCONSENTAGENDA 

It was moved by Council Member Gary Hoctor, seconded by Council Member Deanna 
Luth, to approve the agenda and consent agenda 

 
7:02:10  PM 
AYES: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NAYS: 

 

 
Council Member Lucille Bevis 
Council Member Mike Canon 
Council Member Len Crawford 
Council Member Andy Halm 
Council Member Gary Hoctor 
Council Member Deanna Luth 
Council Member Guy Theriault. 
None. 



MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0. 
 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
7:02:23 PM 
Reggie- We had a pretty easy Thanksgiving weekend.  Nothing major happened over 
the weekend. 

 
7:02:36 PM 
Karl- We are finishing up the last mainline tie-ins for the lower reservoir project.  We 
should be completed tomorrow and we will have the SCADA system operating 
tomorrow.  We are going to have a public hearing for the Little Klickitat River Sewer 
Project Conditional User permit for the shorelines and that will on Wednesday 
December 3 at 7:00 pm.  On Tuesday December gth will be the bid opening for the new 
parks lawn mower.  We will have the construction estimate ready for each block of the 
West Columbus Neighborhood  improvement project by December 5th. So we will need 
to schedule a public works meeting for Monday December  gth at 6:15 pm. 

 
COUNCIL BUSINESS 

 
7:04:29 PM 
Planning Commission Appointment 
Larry- Basically we need to gather some more information regarding this appointment. 
Corey Wehr works for Pioneer Surveying and Engineering.  A lot of the planning 
commission requests deal with projects where Pioneer is the engineer of record.  So we 
have to make sure there is no appearance of fairness issue or conflict of interest.  So 
we would prefer to table that for the moment. 

 
 
 
ORDINANCES 

 
First Reading 3rd Quarter Budget Amendment 
Larry- Went over the 2014 Budget Amendment for the 3rd quarter.  The changes were 
the result of meetings with the Budget Committee.  After meeting with them we would 
like to recommend a 3rct quarter budget amendment for the council to consider.  This will 
be the request for its first reading.  We will have the 2nd  reading scheduled for 
December 15th. 

 
It was moved by Council Member Gary Hoctor, seconded by Council Member Deanna 
Luth, to accept the ordinance for the 3rct quarter budget amendment for its 151 reading. 

 
7:14:46 PM 
AYES:  Council Member Lucille Bevis 

Council Member Mike Canon 
Council Member Len Crawford 
Council Member Andy Halm 



Council Member Gary Hoctor 
Council Member Deanna Luth 
Council Member Guy Theriault 

NAYS:  None. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  7-0. 

 
FIRST READING 2015 BUDGET 

 
7:14:58 PM 
Larry- went over the 2015 budget and changes made to Balance the budget.  I reviewed 
this information with the budget committee and they are in agreement that this should 
be the recommendation to the council and I would recommend that the 2015 budget be 
accepted for its 151 reading. 

 
It was moved by Council Member Gary Hoctor, seconded by Council Member Deanna 
Luth, to accept the ordinance for the 2015 budget for its first reading. 

 
7:19:49  PM 
AYES:   Council Member Lucille Bevis 

Council Member Mike Canon 
Council Member Len Crawford 
Council Member Andy Halm 
Council Member Gary Hoctor 
Council Member Deanna Luth 
Council Member Guy Theriault 

NAYS:  None. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0. 

 
REPORT OF OFFICERS AND CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 
7:19:59 PM 
Lucille- I sent an email to Rob Wing and he is going to find a student to come to council 
meeting.  The fence at the City Shop is leaning badly. 

 
Karl- It's been on our list of things to do for about 6 months. 

 
7:20:51 PM 
Mike- I read the article in the paper on the dark sky.  Thousands of people come to 
Goldendale to visit the Observatory.  That attraction brings the most people to town than 
any other event.  I think we need to revisit our dark sky ordinance. 

 
7:21:50 PM 

 
It was moved by Council Member Guy Theriault, seconded by Council Member Lucille 
Bevis, to ask for a Vote of No Confidence. 



 
Guy Theriault:  Well it's with deep regret but I feel it has to be done, Mayor I'm going to 
ask for a "Vote of No Confidence" due to your failure to prevent this marijuana business 
being brought into Goldendale. I also ask for a role call vote in accordance with City 
Ordinance 2.04.120. 

 
Clint Baze:  Ok. Is there any further discussion? 

 
Clint Baze:  We are in discussion, still, we haven't voted on anything. Back in 
November, are you getting this Roger?  Nancy?  Back in November, it was brought up 
about the marijuana licensing for retail and processing.  Mike, you weren't here so I 
can't really put this on you.  At that time the council said "Let's see what happens" "we 
will see where it goes".  Steve Johnston brought it up well we'll just see how it goes and 
see where it lands. Well the Mayor, City Administrator and the Department Heads are 
administrative, so at that time we do what council says. Ok, well in December we were 
approached by a gentleman. His name was Jonathon Vanella.  I have emails from him 
and everything to where he wanted to buy one of the city buildings to'grow marijuana in. 
Our very own council that sits here said yes. They set a price for him. Same council 
that is sitting here that's throwing me under the bus.  You say you didn't hear anything, 
don't know nothing about it is horse crap.  You knew everything about it. You were 
going to sell to a marijuana grow operation right in the middle of town. And you were 
happy with that.  You were fine.  Ok, let's see where it goes. Let's see how much he 
wants to pay for it. Well you made the decision to do that. Ok well that wasn't enough 
Mr. Crawford.  You wanted to require a down payment that he couldn't afford. So then 
the council requested that we attach his assets that he puts into the building.  I have all 
the emails to Jonathon Vanella with all his responses. 

 
Len Crawford: Was that done in open council meeting? 

 
Clint Baze: No it wasn't, it was done in Executive Session. There are certain things you 
can and can't discuss in executive session and one of them is the price. But I have the 
emails from Jonathon Vanella so that is public record.  So the very same council that is 
sitting here trying to throw me under the bus is the very same council that is saying they 
knew nothing about this marijuana license that was issued to Rich Ellis. Now I will 
excuse Andy and Deanna and Gary because they have done nothing to fire at me and 
Mike because Mike wasn't here.  They all knew that this was going in. Some of them 
recollect hearing the letter from the Chief that he brought in saying where the address 
was going.  It was printed in the newspaper by Darrell Smith wrote a letter in July 6th, it 
was put in the paper saying marijuana shop going in at Broadway and 97. The radio 
station announced it December 30th where it was going.  There were 139 articles in the 
Goldendale Sentinel and you guys can sit here and say you knew nothing about it.  I'll 
call you all hypocritical liars. Well the letter that came up in June, the one you are 
worried about. Ok, that was still under the "well let's ride and see where it goes" wasn't 
it? That was still under fact that you still were gonna allow a grow operation to go in at 
one of the Kushlan Buildings right in the middle of the city next to Three Mountain 
Village that had tons of little kids in it. So, now here we are. You had stated at one time 



before that back in November we couldn't do nothing about it because we were told we 
couldn't do anything about it.  Well it wasn't until after June that the whole Fife thing 
came up.  So then you used the Fife thing as a back bone to run your deal on.  I treated 
this as a fair business that came into the City of Goldendale.  Everybody knows it.  I 
didn't deviate one side of the line to the other.  I am proud of myself for that and I go 
home and I can sleep at night knowing that I went right down the middle of the road and 
didn't deviate from one side to the other.  But you guys can throw me under the bus and 
sit here and tell the city and tell everyone body out there that I did this.  That it's all my 
doing.  Well the city and everybody in the community knows that you are full of crap. 
And further more your vote of no confidence, go ahead with it.  I don't really care.  You 
know, the city, the citizens need to realize that this point in time, when it comes up for 
election time, you know I'm burned out.  I'm not running again.  Although some of these 
other guys are going run again.  Guy Theriault, Len Crawford, I highly suggest that 
somebody does something different votes them out.  Mike Canon, he wants to run for 
Mayor.  I think that is a great idea.  He has a lot of economic background.  Mike has a 
level head on his shoulder and I'm pretty sure this is the first time you've heard any of 
this.  I can look around the room here and I can see people looking at me like "ok, yeah 
your right".  I see few of them that are kind of sitting there kind of somber like thinking 
oh no he just said something about that. 

 
Lucille Bevis:  Mr. Mayor you're out of line. 

Clint Baze:  I don't care. 

Lucille Bevis:  You are out of line with your language. We will go to Roberts Rules. 
You're out of line with your language and you owe the people here an apology. 

 
Clint Baze:  I apologize and deepest regrets to everybody here that if I've offended you 
that I'm very truly sorry, but I'm only going to get poked in the eye so much before I'm 
going to say something.  And let me tell you, I've been gouged a lot, my families been 
gouged a lot, the City Council has been gouged a lot; the commissioners are going 
though a terrible bunch right now too and why?  Because nobody really opened their 
mouth to begin with and came to these meetings and said anything.  Well you guys set 
it in motion and did nothing and you could have done something at any given time from 
November,  December until now.  You could have done something but I'm kind of glad 
you didn't because that would have resulted in a lawsuit that would have cost the city 
1OO's of 1OOO's of dollars.  Hundreds!   So now what do we get?  We get a vote of no 
confidence for the Mayor.  We don't have the lawsuits with damages so we didn't we are 
not spending 1OO's of 1OOO's of dollars in damages.   If we get sued, we get sued under 
what's called a friendly lawsuit and that is covered by the state. The other lawsuit if we 
were sued for damages for the marijuana shop denying it, putting a ban on it and 
everything, it would not have covered it.  Some of you think shame on you but you know 
what I think I've saved the city of ton of money too in my decisions.  I've slept over this. 
We've talked about it in our department head meetings.  We've talked about it with the 
attorney, and the attorney agrees with me.  He says Mayor, I believe you've done 



everything the right way, the way you should have done it and you've saved the City 
plenty of money.  So, I guess, any more discussion? 

 
Andy Halm:  I would like to say I support you, Clint.  I think that as a City Council, I think 
there are things that maybe we could have done a little bit different.  I think we are all at 
fault that way. But I support you. 

 
Deanna Luth:  I also believe that at this point that this council has been divided on this 
subject.  Not right from the beginning but after people started coming in and 
complaining.  My firm belief is, I support Clint.  The only thing I see that the store has 
done wrong is that on that one day that they opened was they actually sold product. 
That is the only thing I see that they did wrong.  In my opinion, if they are doing 
everything legal by the book that they are suppose to be as an entrepreneur and as a 
honest business, they have every right to do business just like any other business 
person. 

 
7:34:01 PM 
Mike Canon:  I think the issue of lack of transparency is some of the things said tonight, 
had been said months ago, we would have had a much better understanding of what 
was happening.  But the fact that that came in, the way it did.  That letter being ignored 
that triggered something, that's an international practice that silence means acceptance. 
And that was something that I think we should have been informed of.  We could have 
done so much better for Goldendale.  I think what's happened with the pot shop is 
against what people in this town wanted, the majority of them.  I know there are people 
that wanted it and are using it.  But the majority of people didn't want it.  I hear day in 
and day out comments from people about the pot shop.  They are nervous, they are 
upset, and they don't feel they have any way to stop this.  It's put us in an awful 
situation. 

 
Clint Baze:  Like you say, transparency means a lot.  Transparency should have started 
way back when, back in November. 

 
Mike Canon:  I agree. 

 
Andy Halm:  Just to clarify, voting yes is to support you and no is not to support you?  Is 
that how the vote? 

 
Gary Hoctor:  Other way around. 

 
Deanna Luth:  So it's no supports him and yes does not support him. 

Clint Baze:  Yes supports Guys motion.  Is there any more discussion? 

7:35:39  PM 
Larry Bellamy:  Guy asked for a role call vote.  So Guy just so we are clear, a role call 
vote would be each person votes? 



 
Guy Theriault:  That's correct and explains their vote.  That is what it states in the City 
Ordinance 2.04.120. 

 
Clint Baze:  Roger, I have copies of those e-mails for you too.  And Nancy and anybody 
else that wants them. 

 
7:41:48PM 
Clint Baze: Everybody ready? 

 
Gary Hoctor:  I would like clarification.  In the first sentence it says motion maybe made 
anytime regarding any subject under consideration.  Does that mean we have to have 
something on the agenda that we are considering? For this to be enacted or can this be 
brought up anything from before? 

 
Larry Bellamy: So just read it again. A motion maybe made anytime regarding any 
subject under consideration by a council member who has obtained the floor and if 
seconded shall be voted on after discussion.  So your concern is the clause that says 
regarding any subject under consideration? 

 
Gary Hoctor: Yes, is that anything brought up at anytime or is that anything that is on 
the agenda that is under consideration. 

 
Larry Bellamy: So you are wondering if it should have been on the agenda in order for 
action to be taken. Well my initial reaction is regarding any subject under consideration 
so that is a pretty wide open statement really. 

 
Gary Hoctor: We haven't done this before so I'm just reading the text and is that the 
way you read that section? 

 
Guy Theriault:  I thought I had the authority to do it yes.  That's the reason why I printed 
out the whole ordinance to make sure the whole thing was covered.  Not just the 
sentence that talks about a role call vote.  To make sure everybody is informed this is 
the entire ordinance that covers the motion and the role call vote. 

 
Larry Bellamy:  My interpretation of that clause is meant to be more inclusive as 
opposed to exclusive because it says regarding any subject under consideration. 

 
7:44:25 PM 
Gary Hoctor: OK 

 
Larry Bellamy: That's not a legal opinion, that's just my own opinion. 

Clint Baze: Is there any more discussion on this? 

Clint Baze: I will just go around the table. Lucille? 



 
Lucille Bevis:  I felt that that letter from the Liquor Control Board should have come to 
the council. We were blindsided by that because we had an opportunity to answer 
those questions and get it back to the liquor control board.  We could have solved a lot 
of problems. It has created a lot of problems in the community that people, certainly not 
liking the pot shop including myself. I am not in favor of marijuana or any kind of drugs, 
it wouldn't make much difference. But I just felt that that was wrong, it should have 
come presented to the council and we would have had an opportunity to review it. 

 
Mike Cannon:  I vote yes. I like Mayor Baze.  I think he is hard working; he's done a lot 
of good work.  But on this issue, the discussion we have had tonight, if we could have 
had that 6 months ago, the community would have felt a little bit better.  They may have 
been just as upset but at the same time they would have understood it better.  We have 
got as a team to talk and get these things out rather it's in public session or whatever is 
allowed in executive session.  But we have to get these things on the table so people 
know it. This should have never ever have happened to Goldendale. It shouldn't have 
happened to these voters.  These families are nervous and upset and feel like they 
have lost control of their cities administration. It's a tragedy for Goldendale citizens but 
also to this city administration, to this council and to you as well mayor. It's just piled on 
one after another after another. I wish I would have been a lot more up to date on 
things before I was here.  It's not a good excuse not to follow it more closely.  It's a sad 
thing when the council gets into this situation or a Mayor or the whole city is going to 
feel this.  It's just a shame. Thank you. 

 
Clint Baze: I'm sorry.  I just didn't want to draw anymore negativity to this that has 
already been written. That's why I never brought it up before. 

 
Mike Canon: I think it would have reversed the negativity. I believe. 

 
Clint Baze:  I tried.  I did try bringing it up in a meeting when you weren't here and I was 
shut down, so.  Guy? 

 
Guy Theriault:  I vote yes.  I'm the one who made the motion so I'm voting yes to the 
motion.  And Mayor, I just feel you failed us.  You could have brought forth this Liquor 
Control Board notice back in June. And I think we could have voided any potential 
lawsuits if the City Council had just known that this license had actually gone in.  My 
understanding back in November 2013, we are going wait to see if anyone applied, and 
then it was never brought to my attention. I don't always follow the news, locally, shame 
on me for that. However, I feel you lack the proper judgment at that time to just sit on 
the Liquor Control Board application.  If you brought that forward, I don't think we would 
have been in any place to be sued. As discussion with our legal council, there would be 
no vested rights and we could have nipped this in bud and had no dispensary in our 
town.  I hate to do this comparison but I compare you to Captain Hazelwood.  And if you 
remember Hazelwood was the captain of the Exxon Valdez.  It's because he lacked the 
proper judgment he left his post.  And that's the way I look at what you did here.  You 
didn't use the proper judgment on this and you ran us a ground on the reef Goldendale 



Dispensaries and now we have marijuana being released in our community, into our 
homes, and available to our children. 

 
Clint Baze:  Len? 

 
Len Crawford:  I would vote yes.  The reason I did that is because there is still a lot of 
disagreement whether or not that letter should have come forward to the council.  So, 
on the 24th, which is a week ago today, I called Ken Harper, our city attorney.  The 
Mayor is aware of that call. 

 
Clint Baze:  Yeah, he called me too. 

 
Len Crawford:  I asked Mr. Harper, specifically, did the city council have a right to see 
that letter.  He said he would to research that and get back to me, which he did that 
afternoon.  And what he said was he researched the Goldendale Municipal Code and 
the RCW.  The Municipal Code nor the RCW did not have any language that specifically 
stated that council had the right to see that letter.  However, he pointed out to me the 
Goldendale Municipal Code 2.08.020 and the RCW 35A.12.100 requires that the Mayor 
shall report to the City Council affairs of the city.  He also agreed that this business is 
still in direct violation of federal law.  The AWC has also stated that the federal 
gov rnment remains able to enforce federal law even against 502 businesses that are 
compliant with state laws may intervene at any time to the detriment of the city or the 
county. That was in our last publication from AWC.  Mr. Harper also commented that 
this business application was not of the norm.  He also commented that the notice of the 
Liquor Control Board regarding this business was not the same as a restaurant that 
wants to sell alcohol.  Just this last week in the paper, it was reported that there has 
been three superior court judges have agreed with the Attorney General opinion in 
January that conclude that nothing in the 502 overrides local government authority to 
regulate or ban marijuana.  That came out of Benton County with the City of Kennewick. 
That was just last week. 

 
Clint Baze:  How many of those lawsuits are settled? 

 
Len Crawford:  They haven't settled any of them yet but this is the third superior court 
judge that is standing behind the Attorney General's opinion.   I guess the real deciding 
factor to me was Mr. Harper told me that had the city council come to him in June and 
wanted to put in a moratorium  ordinance banning marijuana,  which it could have been 
done with no problem based on the Attorney General's opinion put out in January.  I 
really feel should we have the opportunity to do just that we would not have been bound 
to this vested rights doctrine.  Which was the deciding factor, we all know that.  So 
basically we were a day late and a dollar short. 

 
Clint Baze:  Andy? 

 
Andy Halm:  I vote no.  I will repeat what I just said.  I support our Mayor.   I know that 
the Mayor and I at times with this subject have butted heads but we can still sit here and 



agree on some things and disagree with other things.  I think we all dropped the ball.  I 
don't think its one person that dropped the ball.  You can not blame one person for this 
entire mess that we are in.  We are all sitting at this table; we all make decisions for the 
city.  It is not one person. 

 
Clint Baze:  Deanna? 

 
Deanna Luth:  I vote no.  And I will stand behind my choice that I, like Andy; I believe 
that this a decision that that comes down on all of us.  Not just one person.  I realize the 
Federal Government says that it's not legal but the state voted it in as legal thing to sell 
and legal to use and I believe that people who want to, if that is their choice, they have 
that choice.  And if people are running an honest legal business following all the 
guidelines,  I believe they are just like any other entrepreneur that has the right to have a 
business. 

 
Clint Baze:  Gary? 

 
Gary Hoctor:  A lot of tough decisions have been made and I vote Nay. 

 
7:55:55  PM 
AYES:  Council Member Lucille Bevis 

Council Member Mike Canon 
Council Member Len Crawford 
Council Member Guy Theriault 

NAYS: 
 
 
 

MOTION PASSED 4-3. 

Council Member Andy Halm 
Council Member Gary Hoctor 
Council Member Deanna Luth 

 
7:56:14 PM 
Deanna -I'm going to turn this around to a happier subject.  We have started our annual 
toy drive to help out GPO.  The drop off locations is Pat's Place, Bishop Services, 
Sentinel, General Store, Carquest, Allyn's, Bake My Day and City Hall.   I hope we are 
as successful this year and we have been in the past. 

 
7:57:06  PM 
Larry- At the last council meeting I suggested that the council try to complete the open 
government  training.  If you have any questions or problems, please contact Sandy at 
City Hall.  Please complete that training by the end of the year.  Len and Lucille, I will 
follow up with that training certificate, since you did take all three trainings at the AWC 
Conference.  We will just put the dates on there that you completed the training and we 
will have you sign the certificate at the next meeting.  We will put that in your personnel 
file.  I wanted to talk about the lights at the court house.  Klickitat County decided to turn 
on the lights for better security and visibility while they were waiting on additional parts. 
There is a building permit submitted to the City for the project.  When we talked with 
County about that building permit, we said you have to meet that illumination control 



ordinance.  We have plans from the architects that prepare the plans specification that 
indicates that their fixtures will meet all the City lighting requirements. The county is 
waiting for additional parts.  The project is not complete.  We have some additional 
meetings with the County to make sure we go over all of the issues and try to come up 
with a project that is more complete and one that meets with all our code requirements. 
So, they just got ahead of themselves and turned the lights on too soon.  They have the 
lights turned off until the project is complete.  We have some upcoming meetings.  The 
prosecuting attorney interviews are scheduled for Tuesday December 2nd at 6:15.  Next 
week we have the Public Works Committee Meeting at 6:15 on December 8.  There is a 
budget committee meeting on Tuesday December 9th at 6:15.  The purpose for the 
Budget Committee meeting is to review the tourism applications and make a 
recommendation to present to the council at their December 15th meeting.  We did have 
a proposed marijuana ban ordinance that was presented to the council.  The council's 
motion was to refer it to the planning commission for a recommendation back to city 
council.  We are having a little bit of difficulty getting the planning commission together. 
We are not going be able to have a full planning commission until after the 1st of the 
year.  We thought we would make a suggestion to the council that the Ordinance 
Committee should meet ahead of time before we send an ordinance to the planning 
commission. My goal is to request a motion that we refer it in addition to the planning 
commission  to the ordinance committee.  Guy- So moved  Gary- Second 

 
8:03:20 PM 
AYES:  Council Member Lucille Bevis 

Council Member Mike Canon 
Council Member Len Crawford 
Council Member Andy Halm 
Council Member Gary Hoctor 
Council Member Deanna Luth 
Council Member Guy Theriault 

NAYS:  None. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0. 

 
Larry sent up the date for the ordinance committee to be Sunday December 14th at 3:00 
pm. (Note:  After consultation with City Attorney Ken Harper, the meeting was changed 
to December 15th after the regular council meeting) The purpose of the meeting is to 
prepare a draft ordinance.  If you want to add to that draft before it goes to the public 
hearing at the planning commission level, I would think that would be the time to do that. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
8:09:19 PM 
Bob Yoesle spoke in favor of the dark sky ordinance and asked the council to relook at 
rewriting the dark sky ordinance to be a little more specific. 

 
Ken McKune spoke about the bad air quality from the energy plant and not in favor to 
having anymore energy plants in Goldendale. 



 
It was moved by Council Member Guy Theriault, seconded by Council Member Deanna 
Luth, to adjourn the meeting. 

 
8:16:03 PM 
AYES:  Council Member Lucille Bevis 

Council Member Mike Canon 
Council Member Len Crawford 
Council Member Andy Halm 
Council Member Gary Hoctor 
Council Member Deanna Luth 
Council Member Guy Theriault 

NAYS:  None. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0. 



GOLDENDALE CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL EXECUTIVE SESSION 

DECEMBER 8, 2014 
6:15PM 

Mayor Clinton Baze called to order the special meeting of the Goldendale City Council. 

It was moved by Council Member Len Crawford, seconded by Council Member Deanna 
Luth, to excuse Gary and Guy from the meeting. 

 
AYES:  Council Member Lucille Bevis 

Council Member Len Crawford 
Council Member Andy Halm 
Council Member Deanna Luth 
Member Mike Canon 

NAYS:  None. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 5-0. 

 
It was moved by Council Member Len Crawford, seconded by Council Member Deanna 
Luth, to go into executive session for Y2 hour. 

 
AYES:  Council Member Lucille Bevis 

Council Member Len Crawford 
Council Member Andy Halm 
Council Member Deanna Luth 
Member Mike Canon 

NAYS:  None. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 5-0. 

 
Mayor Clinton Baze announced that we came out of executive session at 6:45 pm with 
no decisions made. 

 
It was moved by Council Member Len Crawford, seconded by Council Member Deanna 
Luth, to go into back into executive session for 15 minutes. 

 
AYES:  Council Member Lucille Bevis 

Council Member Len Crawford 
Council Member Andy Halm 
Council Member Deanna Luth 
Member Mike Canon 

NAYS:  None. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 5-0. 

 
 
 
Mayor Clinton Baze announced that we came out of executive session at 7:00 pm with 
no decisions made. 



 
It was moved by Council Member Len Crawford, seconded by Council Member Deanna 
Luth, to adjourn the meeting. 

 
AYES:  Council Member Lucille Bevis 

Council Member Len Crawford 
Council Member Andy Halm 
Council Member Deanna Luth 
Member Mike Canon 

NAYS:  None. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  5-0. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Clinton Baze, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Connie Byers, Clerk-Treasurer 



Printed by GOLDENDALELAN\CByers on 12/10/2014 1:45:43 PM 
 

Register 

Page 1of 2 
 

q] 
Register 

 
 

Fiscal: 2014 
Deposit Period: 2014- Dec 2014 
Check Period  2014 - Dec 2014- 1st Council Dec 2014 

 

Number   · Namei;· ;:(:; -:J1'..., .• ,: ;l_:..¥.· . 1.',<·-_(;:'·:Print Date  Clearin    Date  Amoun 
 

Columbia State Bank 
Check 
43123 

20016310 
 

Allyns Building Center 

 
 
12/15/2014 

  
 

$320.48 
43124 Anatek Labs Inc 12/15/2014  $60.00 
43125 Aramark Uniform Serv Inc 12/15/2014  $277.93 
43126 AT&T Mobility 12/15/2014  $54.87 
43127 Avista Utilities 12/15/2014  $189.22 
43128 Bishop Sanitation Inc 12/15/2014  $307.50 
43129 Blumenthal Uniforms  & Equipment 12/15/2014  $229.89 
43130 Bohn's Printing 12/15/2014  $273.69 
43131 Book Nook, The 12/15/2014  $66.92 
43132 Carquest Auto Parts 12/15/2014  $342.69 
43133 Casteel, Jim 12/15/2014  $140.00 
43134 Duggan, Joy E 12/15/2014  $1,040.00 
43135 Dynacco 12/15/2014  $393.61 
43136 Foremost Promotions 12/15/2014  $2,466.84 
43137 Galls 12/15/2014  $432.69 
43138 General Store 12/15/2014  $9.67 
43139 Gerald Matosich Attorney at Law 12/15/2014  $195.00 
43140 Goldendale  Auto Supply 12/15/2014  $282.75 
43141 Goldendale Market Fresh 12/15/2014  $32.42 
43142 Goldendale Sentinel 12/15/2014  $397.00 
43143 Goldendale, City of 12/15/2014  $1,627.12 
43144 Gorge Networks 12/15/2014  $210.53 
43145 Gorge Technology Corp 12/15/2014  $2,500.22 
43146 Gray & Osborne Inc 12/15/2014  $3,897.13 
43147 Hale Construction NW Inc 12/15/2014  $29,179.94 
43148 Holcombs  Market 12/15/2014  $58.37 
43149 Home Depot 12/15/2014  $279.00 
43150 Hutchins, Maria 12/15/2014  $148.63 
43151 Klickitat CO Commissioner 12/15/2014  $3,848.35 
43152 Klickitat CO Fire Dist #7 12/15/2014  $270.00 
43153 Klickitat CO Health Dept 12/15/2014  $90.00 
43154 Klickitat CO Public Works 12/15/2014  $1,252.27 
43155 Klickitat County PUD 12/15/2014  $14,833.65 
43156 Lafond, Ray 12/15/2014  $623.86 
43157 Law Offices of David R. Quesnel 12/15/2014  $200.00 
43158 Les Schwab Tire Center 12/15/2014  $553.50 



Printed by GOLDENDALELAN\CByers on 12/10/2014 1:45:43 PM 
 

Register 

Page 2of 2 
 

Total Check $233,525.11 
Total 20016310 $233,525.11 

Grand Total  $233,525.11 

 

 

Number ·' ·· '"  Name · ·.'- .,_ · - -. · " -  · :-   Print Date ·  -  · Clearin Date Amoun 
43159  Mail Finance  12115/2014     $290.25 
43160  Marlin Business Bank  12/15/2014     $467.10 
43161  MCP Mid Columbia Producers Inc  12/15/2014     $48.32 
43162  Mid-Columbia Heat/Refrig  12/15/2014     $232.16 
43163  Niblack, Martha  12/15/2014     $14.81 
43164  North Central Laboratories  12115/2014     $425.29 
43165  One Call Concepts Inc  12/15/2014     $8.56 
43166  Optimist Printers  12115/2014     $273.05 
43167  Petty Cash  12115/2014     $98.67 
43168  POW Contracting  12115/2014     $2,545.69 
43169  Quill Corporation  12/15/2014     $105.74 
43170  Randall C Krog Attorney at Law  12115/2014     $728.00 
43171  Shell  12/15/2014     $4,565.11 
43172  The Watershed Company  12115/2014     $3,279.75 
43173  US Cellular  12115/2014     $1,506.63 
43174  WA St Auditor  12115/2014     $9,181.32 
43175  WA St Dept of Health  12115/2014     $252.00 
43176  Wheelers Communications  12115/2014     $104.28 
43177  Yakima-Herald Republic  12/15/2014     $253.47 
43178  Zep Manufacturing  Co  12/15/2014     $87.76 
43179  Zetter, E H  12/15/2014     $12.89 
900416  Bank of America  12/15/2014     $46,169.07 
900417  Bank of New York Mellon  12/15/2014     $89,863.32 
900418  Invoice Cloud  12/15/2014     $98.20 
900419  Merchant Card Services  12/15/2014     $69.83 
900420  Sage Payment Solutions  12/15/2014     $355.16 
900421  WA St Dept of Revenue  12/15/2014     $5,334.29 
900422  Sage Payment Solutions  12/15/2014     $68.65 



 

CITY OF GOLDENDALE 
CLAIMS REGISTER 

 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the materials have been furnished, the services 
rendered or the labor performed as shown on Voucher numbers 43123 through 43179, 
900416 - 900422 in the amount of $233,525.11,  and unpaid obligations against the City 
of Goldendale, Washington and that I am authorized to certify said claims. 

DATED this lOth day of December, 2014. 

 
 
 
 

Clerk-Treasure 



Printed  by GOLDENDALELAN\CByers on 12/10/2014 1:48:39 PM Page 1of 7 

Register Activity 
 

 

L[t 
Register Activity 
 
 
Fiscal: 2014 
Period: 2014 - Dec 2014 
Council Date:  2014- Dec 2014- 1st Council Dec 2014 

Reference  Date  Amount   Notes 
Reference Number: 43123 
183582 
183951 
184161 
184213 
184243.1 
184261 
184286 
184335 
184523 
184540 
184689 
184912 
184968 

Allyns  Building Center 
11/3/2014 
11/10/2014 
11/12/2014 
11/13/2014 
11/13/2014 
11/13/2014 
11/13/2014 
11/14/2014 
11/18/2014 
11/18/2014 
11/20/2014 
11/24/2014 
11/25/2014 

$320.48 
$20.73  Bypass Lopper, Handsaw 
$24.68  Electrical Tape, Tamp Res GFCI 
$31.69  Poly Sprayer, Gloves 
$43.94  Return, Glove, Stand-N-Spray.... 
$14.48  Clothes Hook 
$51.05  Bulb 
$17.20  Rope 

$7.30  Rebar Tiewire 
$3.00  4pk Bulb 

$65.53  Battery, Lighter, Pipe Heating Cable 
$21.49  Tamp Res GFCI 
$13.70  Clamp, Adapter 

$5.69  Brass Bushing 
 

Reference Number: 43124 
015476 

Anatek Labs Inc 
11/24/2014 

$60.00 
$60.00  Testing Service 

 
Reference Number: 43125 
861472262 
861472265 
861472267 
861482975 
861482978 
861482980 
861493665 
861493668 
861493670 
861504433 
861504436 
861504438 

Aramark Uniform Serv Inc 
11/4/2014 
11/4/2014 
11/4/2014 
11/11/2014 
11/11/2014 
11/11/2014 
11/18/2014 
11/18/2014 
11/18/2014 
11/25/2014 
11/25/2014 
11/25/2014 

$277.93 
$23.01  Service 
$23.68  Service 
$10.75  Service 
$67.41  Service 
$24.81  Service 
$10.75  Service 
$23.01  Service 
$24.54  Service 
$10.75  Service 
$23.01  Service 
$25.46  Service 
$10.75  Service 

 
Reference Number: 43126 
287258483135X11182014 

AT&T Mobility 
11/10/2014 

$54.87 
$54.87  Chlorination Station 

 
Reference Number: 43127 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 12:27: 51 PM 

Avista Utilities 
12/9/2014 

$189.22 
$189.22  Final Close Out 



Printed  by GOLDENDALELAN\CByers on 12/10/2014 1:48:39 PM Page 2of 7 

Register Activity 
 

  If:"·  ....._ 

Reference Number: 43128 
37786 
37842 

Bishop Sanitation Inc 
11/26/2014 
11/26/2014 

$307.50 
$240.00  Portable/Ekone Park 

$67.50  Portable/Airport 
 

Reference Number: 43129 
99524 
99524-01 

Blumenthal Uniforms & Equipment 
10/24/2014 
11/5/2014 

$229.89 
$195.60  Shirt, Emblem, Pant..... 

$34.29  Fastener, Nameplate 
 

Reference Number: 43130 
42289 
42290 

Bohn's Printing 
11/28/2014 
11/28/2014 

$273.69 
$245.87  Copier CounUCH 

$27.82  Copier CounUPD 
 

Reference Number: 43131 
227086 
227087 

Book Nook, The 
11/29/2014 
12/2/2014 

$66.92 
$58.86 Tags 
$8.06  Emp of Year Tags 

 
Reference Number: 43132 
4993-266026 
4993-266362 
4993-266724 
4993-267135 
4993-267154 
4993-267586 
4993-267704 
4993-267732 
4993-267804 
4993-267996 

Carquest Auto Parts 
11/5/2014 
11/7/2014 
11/10/2014 
11/13/2014 
11/13/2014 
11/17/2014 
11/18/2014 
11/18/2014 
11/19/2014 
11/21/2014 

$342.69 
$22.96  Knit Gloves 
$12.99  UPS 
$21.48 Led Cap Light, Multi Tester 
$26.14  Tarp Strap 
$27.06  Antifreeze 
$94.59  UPS 
$11.81  Plugs, Nip 
$95.14  Tie Down Strap 
$15.18  Cap Screw 
$15.34  Ice Melt 

 
Reference Number: 43133 
2129 

 
2131 

Casteel, Jim 
11/26/2014 
 
11/29/2014 

$140.00 
$60.00  ReimbursemenUExcessive Water 

Pressure 
$80.00  ReimbursemenUExcessive Water 

Pressure 
 

Reference Number: 43134 
CR4495 
CR4751.1 
CR5498 
CR5581 
CR5682 
CR5683/5715 
CR5692 
CR5724 
CR5744/5748 
CR5830 

Duggan, Joy E 
12/4/2014 
12/4/2014 
12/4/2014 
12/4/2014 
12/4/2014 
11/14/2014 
11/14/2014 
12/4/2014 
12/4/2014 
12/4/2014 

$1,040.00 
$162.50  Alexia Bodenroeder 

$65.00  Sonya Jim 
$130.00  Julia Huitt 

$65.00  Bobby Jones JR 
$65.00  Kenneth Roberts 

$130.00   Ayla Cardo 
$130.00  Michael Swinehart II 

$65.00  Conrad Weiss 
$162.50  Christopher Wirshup 

$65.00  Curtis Irwin 



Printed  by GOLDENDALElAN\CByers on 12/10/2014 1:48:39 PM Page 3 of 7 

Register Activity 
 

 
Reference Number: 43135 
149878 

1;,--- 

Dynacco 
11/25/2014 

 

 
$393.61 
$393.61  Glass Cleaner, Foaming Cleaner, 

Wypall Pop-Up 
 

Reference Number: 43136 
280920 

 
282874 

Foremost Promotions 
11/13/2014 
 
12/9/2014 

$2,466.84 
$87.64  Police Sticker Sheet, Police Scatter 

Bag 
$2,379.20  Pens, Police Your Friends for Life, 

DNA ID Kit.... 
 

Reference Number: 43137 
002627556 
002668220 
002693616 
002719641 
002751559 

Galls 
10/29/2014 
11/7/2014 
11/13/2014 
11/18/2014 
11/25/2014 

$432.69 
$110.00  Boots 
$129.99  Tactical Atac Sin Storm 

$9.99  Boot Sock 
$59.11  Womens Crew 

$123.60  Torch Combo Holiday PR 
 

Reference  Number: 43138 
194174 

 
Reference Number: 43139 
CR5802 

General Store 
11/14/2014 
 
Gerald Matosich Attorney at Law 
11/25/2014 

$9.67 
$9.67  Keys 

 
$195.00 
$195.00  Sylvester Dave 

 
Reference Number: 43140 
269652 
269921 
270133 
270388 
270414 
271109 
271111 
271161 
271292 
271511 
271515 
271708 

Goldendale  Auto Supply 
10/27/2014 
10/30/2014 
11/3/2014 
11/6/2014 
11/6/2014 
11/13/2014 
11/13/2014 
11/14/2014 
11/15/2014 
11/19/2014 
11/19/2014 
11/21/2014 

$282.75 
$14.35  Swiv Adap, Pipe Fitt 
$13.93  Boot Clamp 
$24.17  Nutdrive, Nutdriver 516 
$25.13  Emergency Lamp 
$15.88  Battery Terminal, Battery Brush 
$18.05  Tool, Tarp Fas 

$1.82  Scraper 
$23.64  Small Motor Fan 
$20.83  Power Service Diesel 
$29.32  Hex Nippl, Adapter, Ball Valve 
$91.21  Pump Filter, Oil Filter, Air Filter 
$4.42  Super Glue 

 
Reference Number: 43141 
03-414273 

Goldendale  Market Fresh 
11/25/2014 

$32.42 
$32.42  Water, Foil Wrap, Grocery 

 
Reference Number: 43142 
138437 
138440 
138441 
138446 

Goldendale  Sentinel 
11/5/2014 
11/5/2014 
11/5/2014 
11/5/2014 

$397.00 
$48.00  Public Hearing Shoreline 
$24.00  2015 Budget Revenue Sources 
$64.00  Public Hearing-2015 Budget 
$44.00  Public Notice-W Allyn Stormwater 



Printed by GOLDENDALELAN\CByers on 12/10/2014 1:48:39  PM Page 4 of 7 
Register Activity 

 

 
 
 
 

Reference Number: 43142 
138523 
138570 
138619 

 
Reference Number: 43143 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 2:26:38 PM 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 2:27: 26 PM 

 
Reference Number: 43144 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 2:31:37 PM 

 
Reference Number: 43145 
4251 

 
Reference Number: 43146 
14043.00-6 

 
Reference Number: 43147 
I nvoi ce- 12/9/2014 2: 37: 27 PM 

 
Reference Number: 43148 
0020704915 
0030549508 

 
Reference Number:43149 
1900210 

 
Reference Number:43150 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 2: 41:49 PM 

 
Reference Number: 43151 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 2:45:55 PM 

 
Reference Number: 43152 
101.1 

 
Reference Number: 43153 
000021544 

 
Reference Number: 43154 
Invoice- 12/10/2014 8: 25: 37 AM 

 
Reference Number: 43155 
Invoice- 12/10/2014 8:42:44 AM 

..,... 
Goldendale Sentinel 
11/12/2014 
11/24/2014 
11/26/2014 
 
Goldendale, City of 
12/9/2014 
12/9/2014 
 
Gorge Networks 
12/9/2014 
 
Gorge Technology  Corp 
12/7/2014 
 
Gray & Osborne Inc 
11/17/2014 
 
Hale Construction NW Inc 
12/9/2014 
 
Holcombs Market 
11/21/2014 
11/9/2014 
 
Home Depot 
11/24/2014 
 
Hutchins, Maria 
12/9/2014 
 
Klickitat CO Commissioner 
12/9/2014 
 
Klickitat CO Fire Dist #7 
10/28/2014 
 
Klickitat CO Health Dept 
11/18/2014 
 
Klickitat CO Public Works 
12/5/2014 
 
Klickitat County PUD 
12/10/2014 

 
 
 
 
 

Park Mower 
2015 Calendar 
Public Hearing-LKR Project 

 
$1,627.12 

$200.00  Conditional Use-Shoreline 
$1,427.12  Water/Sewer 

 
$210.53 
$210.53 Missed Paymen 

 
$2,500.22 
$2,500.22  Technology Consulting 

 
$3,897.13 
$3,897.13  Lower Reservoir 

 
$29,179.94 
$29,179.94  Baker Street Energy Improvements 
 

$58.37 
$41.94  Water 
$16.43  Forks, Coffee 

 
$279.00 
$279.00  Garage Portable Heater 

 
$148.63 
$148.63  Travel Reimbursement 

 
$3,848.35 
$3,848.35  4th Quarter District Court 

 
$270.00 
$270.00  First Aid Renewals/Police Department 

 
$90.00 
$90.00  Testing Service 

 
$1,252.27 
$1,252.27  Bridge Inspection Reports 

 
$14,833.65 
$14.833.65  Electric 



Printed by GOLDENDALELAN\CByers on 12/10/2014 1:48:39  PM Page 5 of 7 
Register Activity 

 

 

Reference Date·   : · ' · ·:·. ,, ,_,, ./1- - Amount  Notes 
Reference Number: 43156 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 2:49:25 PM 

Lafond, Ray 
12/9/2014 

    $623.86 
$623.86  Town Pride Reimbursement 

 

Reference Number: 43157 
CR5457 

 
Reference Number: 43158 
34800067164 
34800067410 

 

Law Offices of David R. Quesnel 
11/25/2014 
 
Les Schwab Tire Center 
11/21/2014 
11/24/2014 

 

$200.00 
$200.00  Bob Bowler 
 
$553.50 

$21.50  Flat Repair 
$532.00  Chain 

 

Reference Number: 43159 Mail Finance $290.25 
Invoice - 12/9/2014 2:56:38 PM 12/9/2014 $290.25 

 
Reference Number: 43160 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 2:57: 23 PM 

 
Reference Number: 43161 
610317 
613218 
613396 

 
Reference Number: 43162 
2014-401 

 
Reference Number: 43163 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 3:04:35 PM 

 
Reference Number: 43164 
347315 

 
Reference Number: 43165 
4119063 

 
Reference Number: 43166 
27575 

 
Reference Number: 43167 
Invoice - 12/9/2014 3:09:03 PM 
Invoice - 12/9/2014 3:09:39 PM 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 3:15:29 PM 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 3:16:01 PM 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 3:16:25 PM 
Invoice - 12/9/2014 3: 17:20 PM 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 3:18:03 PM 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 3:19:20 PM 

 

Marlin Business  Bank 
12/9/2014 
 
MCP Mid Columbia Producers  Inc 
11/21/2014 
12/2/2014 
12/3/2014 
 
Mid-Columbia Heat/Refrig 
11/17/2014 
 
Niblack, Martha 
12/9/2014 
 
North Central Laboratories 
11/17/2014 
 
One Call Concepts Inc 
11/30/2014 
 
Optimist Printers 
11/26/2014 
 
Petty Cash 
12/8/2014 
11/25/2014 
10/31/2014 
6/10/2014 
3/21/2014 
2/21/2014 
3/5/2014 
3/19/2014 

 

$467.10 
$467.10  Copier Leases 
 

$48.32 
$8.59  Insulated Foam Pal 

$16.11  Glove 
$23.62  Split Cowhide Pile, Golve 

 
$232.16 
$232.16  Fire Department 
 

$14.81 
$14.81  Account Closed/Reimbursement 

 
$425.29 
$425.29  Latex Gloves, Slide Cover 
 

$8.56 
$8.56  Utility Notification 

 
$273.05 
$273.05 Envelopes 
 

$98.67 
$0.21  Postage Due 
$2.68 Postage Due 
$3.00  Easement Recorded 
$0.21  Postage Due 
$1.13  Postage 
$8.73  Lunch Reimbursement 
$7.00  Code Enforcement 

$19.60  Stamps 



Printed by GOLDENDALELAN\CByers on 12/10/2014 1:48:39  PM Page 6 of 7 
Register Activity 

 

Reference  Date  Amount  Notes 
-- ------------- 

Reference Number: 43167 Petty Cash $98.67 
Invoice-  12/9/2014 3:19:57 PM 9/16/2014 $1.00  Goldendale Sentinel Online 

Subscription 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 3:21:03 PM                    9/11/2014                                                                                              $0.08  Postage Due 
Invoice- 12/ /2014 3:21:33 PM                    4/16/2014                                                                                              $0.43  Postage Due 
Invoice - 12/9/2014 3:22:24 PM                    5/14/2014                                                                                             $39.99  Overalls 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 3:23:32 PM 6/10/2014 $4.69  Linden Retirement Card 
Invoice- 12/ /2Q14 3:24:20 PM 10/2/2014 $9.80  Postage 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 3:25:07 PM 12/8/2014 $0.12  Postage Due 

 
Reference Number: 43168 POW Contracting $2,545.69 
Invoice- 12/10/2014 8:47:17 AM 12/9/2014 $2,545.69  Surplus Fittings from Lower Reservoir 

Project 
 

Reference Number: 43169 Quill Corporation $105.74 
7996891 11/18/2014 $55.79  Spoon, Plates..... 
7999565  11/18/2014 $9.13  Napkins 
8126285 11/21/2014 $40.82  Pens 

 
Reference Number: 43170  Randall C Krog Attorney at Law  $728.00 
CR5621/5631 12/1/2014 $195.00  Jonathan Smith 
CR5687 11/25/2014 $338.00  Sarah Mosley 
CR5710/5655  12/1/2014 $195.00  Steven Harris 

 
Reference Number: 43171  Shell $4,565.11 
79263448411 11/25/2014  $4,565.11  Fuel 

 
Reference Number: 43172 The Watershed Company $3,279.75 
2014-1294 12/4/2014 $3,279.75  Shoreline Master Plan 

 
Reference Number: 43173 US Cellular $1,506.63 
0063198651 11/24/2014 $1,506.63  Cell Phones 

 
Reference Number: 43174 WA St Auditor $9,181.32 
L105576 11/18/2014 $9,181.32  Audit Services 

 
Reference Number: 43175 WA St Dept of Health $252.00 
003347-2015 12/9/2014 $42.00  Waterworks Operator Cert-lsler 
007362-2Q15 12/9/2014 $42.00  Waterworks Operator Cert-O'Connor 
008225-2015 12/9/2014 $42.00  Waterworks Operator Cert-Cooke 
012036-2015  12/9/2014 $42.00  Waterworks Opeartor Cert-Oswalt 
012604-2015 12/9/2014 $42.00  Waterworks Operator Cert-Frantum 
012907-2015 12/9/2014 $42.00  Waterworks Operator Cert-Thompson 



Printed by GOLDENDALElAN\CByers on 12/10/2014 1:48:39  PM Page 7 of 7 
Register Activity 

 

IU;j,;JI':i •.t;u · ;.:::- •  ,..  ·:- J•·· '·. ,"·  -; ;,.fii ···.. - - ·-,-  r.u• ill.,t:l 
Reference Number:43176  Wheelers Communications $104.28 
88064  10/31/2014 $104.28  Remote Speaker Mic 

 
Reference Number: 43177 Yakima-Herald Republic  $253.47 
489340  11/19/2014 $253.47 Park Mower Bid 

 
Reference Number: 43178 Zep Manufacturing Co  $87.76 
9001319679 11/13/2014 $87.76  Trash Bags 

 
Reference Number: 43179 Zetter, E H  $12.89 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 4:33:57 PM 12/9/2014 $12.89 Excess Water Pressure 

Reimbursement 
 

Reference Number: 900416  Bank of America  $46,169.07 
1410292773 11/16/2014 $46,169.07 Loan 265 

 
Reference Number: 900417  Bank of New York Mellon  $89,863.32 
10/20/2014-228085 12/1/2014 $89,863.32 Loan 0479-2-1 SER 20110 

 
Reference Number: 900418  Invoice Cloud  $98.20 
359-2014 11  12/2/2014 $98.20  Biller Portal 

 
Reference Number:900419 Merchant Card Services  $69.83 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 3:00:10 PM 12/9/2014 $69.83  Visa Fee/Admin 

 
Reference Number:900420  Sage Payment Solutions $355.16 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 3:28:59 PM 12/9/2014 $355.16  Visa Fees/Utility 

 
Reference Number:900421  WA St Dept of Revenue  $5,334.29 
Invoice- 12/9/2014 3:52:01 PM 12/9/2014 $5,334.29 Excise Tax 

 
Reference Number:900422  Sage Payment Solutions $68.65 
Invoice- 12/10/2014 9:39:08 AM 12/10/2014 $68.65  ACH Fees 



Register 
 

Berkshire, Stan 2014-  Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 $1,870.07 
Berry, Frank 2014 - Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 $1,125.13 
Bevis, Lucille A 2014-  Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 $46.01 
Bowen, Jeremy J 2014- Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 $1,077.54 
Byers, Connie L 2014 - Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 $1,696.12 
Cannon, Michael A 2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014  $46.01 
Casey, Brian P 2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 $1,154.71 
Cooke, Robert C 2014 - Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 $1,876.87 
Crawford, Leonard C 2014 - Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 $46.01 
Delangis, Michael B 2014- Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 $55.84 
Dyment, Kevin 2014- Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 $1,787.94 
Enyeart, Karl A 2014- Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 $2,417.35 
Foster, Michelle L 2014 - Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 $638.68 
Frantum, Douglas  2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 $1,306.59 
 

Register 

qj 
 

Number  Name  Fiscal Description ··· • Cleared  Amoun 
43072 
43073 
43074 
43075 
43076 
43077 
43078 
43079 
43080 
43081 
43082 
43083 
43084 
43085 
43086 
43087 
43088 
43089 
43090 
43091 
43092 
43093 
43094 
43095 
43096 
43097 
43098 
43099 
43100 
43101 
43102 
43103 
43104 
43105 
43106 
43107 
43108 
43109 
43110 

Bartkowski, Reggie 
Baze, Clinton 
Bellamy, Larry D 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fulton, Brad D 
Garcia, Juan C 
Grimes, Karen M 
Halm, Andrew J 
Halm, Noah M 
Hoctor, Gary Robert 
Hunziker, Jay Allen 
Hutchins, Maria P 
Isler, Jay W 
Johnson, Richard A 
Lucatero, Leo B 
Luth, Deanna L 
Matulovich, Dwayne 
O'Connor, Andrew F 
Oswalt, Bert F 
Perez, Benjamin A 
Randall, Steven A 
Smith, Michael L 
Steen, Justin A 
Theriault, Guy R 
Thompson, Robert L 
Wells, Sandy R 

2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014 - Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014 - Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014 - Nov 2014 - 2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014 - Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014 - Nov 2014 - 2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014-  Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014 - Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014-  Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014-  Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014-  Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014 - Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014 - Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014-  Nov 2014 - 2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014 - Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014 - Nov 2014 - 2nd Council Nov 2014 

$2,253.69 
$460.97 

$2,606.02 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$300.30 
$1,062.74 
$1,160.57 

$46.01 
$317.04 
$46.01 

$1,600.85 
$1,328.49 
$1,364.41 
$2,844.77 
$1,953.89 

$46.01 
$1,587.97 
$1,857.76 
$1,899.88 
$1,027.38 

$204.89 
$1,861.20 

$55.84 
$46.01 

$1,202.16 
$1,006.28 

Execution lime: 33 second(s)  Printed by GOLDENDALELAN\CByers on 12/3/2014 1:57:48 PM Page 1of 2 



Register 
 

... 
43111 
43112 
43113 
43114 
43115 
43116 
900414 

 
 
 
Wyzykowski, Chris 
American Family Life 
AWC Benefit Trust 
Deferred Comp Program 
Dept of Retirement 
ICMA Retirement Trust 
City of Goldendale 

 

tHft ... 
2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014-  2nd Council Nov 2014 
2014- Nov 2014- 2nd Council Nov 2014 

 
 
 

$1,820.11 
$367.65 

$48,298.98 
$80.00 

$8,360.80 
$112.50 

$15,675.80 
$118,001.85 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Execution Time: 33 second(s)  Printed by GOLDENDALELAN\CByers on 12/3/2014 1:57:48 PM Page 2 of 2 



Execution lime: 2 minute(s), 50 second(s) Printed by GOLDENDALELAN\CByers on 12/5/2014 11:28:51AM 
Register 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Register 

q] 
 

Number Name  Fiscal Description  Cleared Amoun 
43117 
43118 
43119 
43120 
43121 
43122 
900415 

Bellamy, Larry D 
Byers, Connie L 
Cooke, Robert C 
Oswalt, Bert F 
Wells, Sandy R 
Dept of Retirement 
City of Goldendale 

2014- Dec 2014- 1st Council Dec 2014 
2014- Dec 2014- 1st Council Dec 2014 
2014- Dec 2014-  1st Council Dec 2014 
2014 - Dec 2014-  1st Council Dec 2014 
2014- Dec 2014-  1st Council Dec 2014 
2014- Dec 2014-  1st Council Dec 2014 
2014- Dec 2014-  1st Council Dec 2014 

$722.75 
$917.13 
$837.16 

$1,873.70 
$371.58 
$369.99 

$2,576.04 
$7,668.35 



 

AGENDA BILL:  G1 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  CABARET APPLICATION -AMERICAN 
LEGION 

 
 
 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15, 2014 
 
 
 

ACTION REQUIRED: 
 

ORDINANCE  _ COUNCIL INFORMATION  .:....:X   
 

RESOLUTION  _ OTHER   
 

MOTION  ---=X ---- 
 
 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Attached  is an application,  including  a floor  plan,  from  the  American  Legion  for an 
annual Cabaret License for 2015. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 
 
 
MOTION: 

 
I MOVE  TO  APPROVE  AN  ANNUAL   CABARET LICENSE  FOR  2015  FOR  THE 
AMERICAN LEGION 



 

 May requ ire 7-10 days for 
Municipal Code Review 

 

    

CABARET APPLICATION 
CITY OF GOLDENDALE 

1103 S Columbus  Goldendale WA 98620 
(509) 773-3771  Scan: swells@ci.goldendale.wa.us 

 
 
 
BUSINESS INFORMATION 

 
 

1\t0-s2r,G.A >    l QC ain Clt.Ju   __ 
P' 

 
 
 

//34  e..s- 
Business Name Owner Name Phone Number 

 
 
 

Business Location 
 

Period Requested:"B.. Quarterly $50.00  :Annually $200.00 
(Fee must be paid upon submission of applifatibn) 

 
 
 

U BI Number/WA  St Tax ID N um ber  City Business License Number 
 
Along with your completed Cabaret Application, an up to date diagram, sketch, or plan of 
premises to show seating, dance (dance area minimum size of 120 square feet), restrooms, 
exits, etc... shall be submitted. 

 
The undersigned states these to be true facts and agrees to comply with all laws and ordinances 
of the City of Goldendale applicable to the subject matter thereof. 

 
 
 
 

Date   

P':O 
\)tl  2.  20\4 

 

C\1Or GOLDENO!\Lt 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved by the following: 

OFFICE  USE ONLY 
MUNICIPAL CODE REV I EW 

 
 

Clerk/Treasurer  Date  City Adm inistrator  Date 
 
 

Mayor  Date  City Council Approval on what date 

mailto:swells@ci.goldendale.wa.us


 

1    I   I I 

: :·p: i 

1 

nt 

I 
I 

. I 

I 

I 

 
SO·lO Jutl!) l4lJQNtol 

UO!Cul,lt:tM 'IJtiA 

IIJ J. R 

'VT't'  PI1I'PIV 
JOddad1n::> ••wo41·3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
".iS .iNV'tf8 

1310t!/\3HJ - NOI83Nl  VJit!3Lf'JV 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-· 
 
 

--? 
 
 
 
 

fC"""  - - - 
I\ I 

I 
I 

X  <· :- - 
ri- 

 
 

I 
I 

·- Ijl 

(j) 

>- 
 
·1----ll    0< 

0 
0::: 

I 
I 
I 

I l 
I } 
I j_ 

·! 
·-5--  j_ 

:t;- --- Ill 

I :[ I  
I 

'1 
',_ 

 

!!I!L-::::q=-J==F:::: ::::::::::::::::::::;L_JJ f kMJOJI.AtSL 

I 
f-- - -- ---- L 

-""·" -lilt"" 1   "'"..... 
IL 
1 hZP 

 

 
 
 

0 
...J 
<.!) 
z 
'2 
a:: 
<( 
0.. 

I 
I 

1- 11 
I 
I 
I 

1----111 
I 
I 

1----lll 
 

I 

I 
1--11 

\  I '> 
I 
I 



 

AGENDA BILL:  G2 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  CABARET APPLICATION- HOTRODS BAR 
& GRILL 

 
 
 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15, 2014 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUIRED: 

 
ORDINANCE  _ COUNCIL INFORMATION  _,_,X   

 
RESOLUTION   _ OTHER  _ 

MOTION  ........:X'-'----- 

 
EXPLANATION: 
Attached  is an  application,  including  a floor  plan,  from  the American  Legion  for  an 
annual Cabaret License for 2015. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
MOTION: 

 
I MOVE TO APPROVE AN ANNUAL CABARET LICENSE FOR 2015 FOR HOTRODS 
BAR & GRILL 



 

cg 

CABARET  APPLICATION 
CITY  OF GOLDENDALE 

1103 S Columbus Goldendale WA 98620 
(509) 773-3771  Scan: swells@ci.goldendale.wa.us 

 
 
 
BUSINESS INFORMATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Business Location 

 
 
 

  9)J 3 7cor.; 
Phoe  Number 

 
 
 
Dance Area Size 

 
Period Requested:  o Quarterly $50.00     -i.Annually $200.00 
(Fee must be paid upon submission of application) 

clcrc:;.9c: 
UBNum/W    A t  10 N'uml?er                                                      City Business License Number 

 
Along with your completed Cabaret Application, an up to date diagram, sketch, or plan of 
premises  to show seating, dance  (dance  area  minimum size of 120 square feet), restrooms, 
exits, etc... shall  be submitted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ap   1cant Signature                                                                                                                     Date 
 
 
 

May require  7-10 days for 
Municipal Code Review 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved by the following: 

Clerk/Treasurer 

OFFICE  USE ONLY 
MUNICIPAL CODE REVIEW 
 
 
 
Date City Administrator  Date 

 
 

Mayor Date City Council Approval on what date 

mailto:swells@ci.goldendale.wa.us


 

- 

L 
- k 

,., .I     ft- ._, r.. · ,c:-    .rt.,;  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

,·. - - 
'  )-  c.,-··- ·,,

 
 

I_) iJ ;::_ 
 
 
 
 

..J· 
 
 
 

-:' rJ 
 
 

:...:-: 

 
 

,, 
' 

;,0
 

__ :
 

:J 
.J 
J 

 
 
 
 

_,  ": 
 

:-.:../ 
'•'        . .',f· . \l 

 
 

--    }"h)!; __ _ _·r:..}/_.C.. '
 

_'.. :'·  . 

i:: :..  ...,._ 

- L' {    .   
{ 

-. ·r·.: 
\ I 

t 
7'1_ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

..._.,   ----   -----·· 



 

AGENDA BILL:  G3 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  CAPITAL OUTLAY AMENDMENT- PUMP 
REPAIR 

 
 
 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15, 2014 
 
 
 

ACTION REQUIRED: 
 

ORDINANCE   _   COUNCIL INFORMATION  ..:....:X   

RESOLUTION     _ OTHER    _ 

MOTION  ,_X.;__   _ 

 
 

EXPLANATION: 
Please find attached Karl Enyeart's  memo regarding additional cost for repair of the lift 
station  pump.  This  request  was reviewed  by the Public Works  Committee  and along 
with Karl recommend  that the City approve an addition capital outlay for the lift station 
pump repair in the amount  of $7,030.77  for a total capital outlay of $25,488.12, which 
includes sales tax. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 

MOTION: 
 
I MOVE TO AUTHORIZE AN ADDITION CAPITAL OUTLAY FOR THE LIFT STATION 
PUMP  REPAIR  OF  $7,030.77  FOR  A TOTAL  CAPITAL  OUTLAY  FO  $25,488.12, 
WHICH INCLUDES SALES TAX. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Memo 
 
 

To: Mayor and Council 
 

From:  Karl Enyeart, PE, Public Works Director 
 

CC:  Larry Bellamy, City Administrator 
 

Date:   12/10/2014 
 

Re:  Lift station pump repair- additional request 

City of Goldendale 

 
 
 

Integrated Power Services of Portland, Oregon has been completing the work on the 
lift station motor repair.  Upon steam cleaning the stator for the motor a piece of 
insulation surrounding the wiring fell off. From all available information this appears 
to be damage that was overlooked at the time of original evaluation and not from the 
repair company (a steam cleaning was not done when the motor was received).  This 
additional cost should have been included with the first estimate and there is no 
overlap work that is being charged twice.  A rewind of the motor will need to be 
completed as well as new insulation installed and oven cured on wiring to pass UL 
inspection.  A one year warranty will be provided on the work done.  No further 
damaged  is anticipated since there are no more components  to check. This will 
increase the cost by $7,030.77 over the initial estimate for a total cost of $25,488.12. 

 
I recommend the City approve the additional payment. 



RPOQ2-00001  VS 0 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December  03, 2014 
 

CITY OF GOLDENDALE 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
1103 S. COLUMBUS 
GOLDENDALE, WA 98620 

 
 

Attn:  KARL ENYEART 
 

Integrated Power Services Quotation: RP0087835 Rev 2 

Portland Service Center 
2315 N.W. 21•t Place 
Portland, OR 97210 

Tel503.226.4951  Fax 503.226.7340 

 
Thank you for giving the Portland Service Center the opportunity to provide a quotation for the 
rebuild of the equipment  referenced below. 

 
The following  attachments  make up this quotation: 

 
 

 
Attachment  A:  Work Scope and Pricing for rebuild of: 

HP SPEED VOLTAGE FRAME MFG ID 
 

128 HP 
 

1800 
 

460 
 

360 
 

FAIRBANKS MORSE 
 

NO NAMEPLATE 
 

REF: MOTOR#: PURCHASE ORDER: 
 

Attachment  B:  Integrated Power Services  Standard Terms and Conditions 

 
 

Optional start up and commissioning service is available for this equipment. It is possible this 
option may extend your in service warranty period.  Please contact me for further information. 

 
Within Integrated  Power Services it is our objective to provide outstanding  quality, service and 
support  at an effective cost. We hope you find this quotation  favorable and if there are any 
questions, comments  or concerns  please contact us at the Portland Service Center. 

Sincerely, 

John Vavrek 
Customer Service Manager 
Portland Service Center 



RPOQ2-00001 vs 0 

Page 2 of 3 

 

--- -- 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
1103 S. COLUMBUS 
GOLDENDALE, WA 98620 

 
ATTN:   KARL ENYEART 

 

 
 
 
REPAIR QUOTATION 

Portland Service Center 
2315 N.W. 21•1 Place 
Portland, OR 97210 

Tel503.226.4951 Fax 503.226.7340 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEB/KROUSE 
 

503-226-4951 
 

128HP  1800  460  SUBM 
 

REF:  MOTOR#: PURCHASE ORDER: 
 

WORK SCOPE 
 
 

DISASSEMBLE SUBMERSIBLE PUMP  FURNISH & INSTALL NEW 0-RINGS & SEALS 

STEAM CLEAN & DRY STATOR & ROTOR  RE-ASSEMBLE SUBMERSIBLE PUMP 

ELECTRICAL & MECHANICAL INSPECTION POST TESTING 
 

REPAIR UPPER BEARING HOUSING  PREP & PAINT MOTOR 
 

BEADBLAST, PRIME & PAINT RUSTED HOUSINGS 
 

REPAIR LOWER GUIDE HOUSING 

PREPARE UL DOCUMENTATION 
 
PRE-SHIP QUALITY INSPECTION 

 
REPAIR LOWER GUIDE JOURNAL-GRIND PREP FOR SHIPPING 

NICKEL PLATE LOWER SEAL JOURNAL  REVISION 2: REWIND STATOR 

NICKEL PLATE NDE BEARING JOURNAL  CORELOSSTEST-PRE&POST 
REMOVE STATOR CORE FROM FRAME 

DYNAMIC  BALANCE ROTOR 

PREPARE ALL PARTS ASSEMBLE 

FURNISH & INSTALL NEW BEARINGS 

CLEAN & PREP CORE 
REWIND STATOR 
VPI & OVEN CURE 
ASSEMBLE STATOR IN FRAME 

 

---------1-\:0l-E ----------- DELIVI.RY------ PRIC-E  ----· 
HARDCOPY PURCHASE ORDER REQUIRED, SUB-TOTAL  $23,709.88 
PLEASE FAX TO: 503-226-7340. TAXES 1,778.24 
A $50 ENVIRONMENTAL SURCHARGE 
WILL BE APPLIED TO ALL ORDERS. 

 
TOTAL 

 

$25,488.12 
 

QUOTE VALID 30 DAYS FROM DATE ABOVE. EQUIPMENT LEFTATTHE SERVICE CENTER MORE THAN  90 DAYS WITHOUT A RESPONSE TO THIS 
QUOTATION WILL BE RETURNED LESS REPAIR. INSPECTION AND FREIGHT CHARGES WILL APPLY. SUBJECT TO STANDARD TERMS AND 

CONDITIONS. 



 

INTEGRATED POWER SERVICES LLC 
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE 

REPAIR, PARTS,MODIFICATION, MAINTENANCE, INSPECTION, TEST, RENTAL SERVICE 
 

1. ACCEPTANCE 
All orders are subject to 8Cceptance by Integrated Power  Services LLC  ("Seller ).Any acceptance by  Seller of 
Buyer's order is expressly made  conditionalon Buyer's  assent  to any additional or different terms  and condi tions 
contained herein, and all sales and charges  of the products isted herein shall be,In the case of conflict between 
the  terms and  condllfons of Buyer and  Seller,interpreted and governed exclusively by the terms and conditions 
contained herein. Seller shalll  not be bound by any terms and condllions proposed by Buyer. wnether in its 
purchase order  or otherwise,   which  are additional to or different  from the terms  and  conditions  selforth herein. 
unless  and only if accepted in wriUng by a principal officer of the Sefler  or his designated representative. 

2. TAXES 
The Seller's prices do not include any applicable sales, use,excise,value added or simial r taxes; and the amount 
of any sucl'1 tax Which the  Seller may b e required to pay or collect  will be added to each invoice unless the Buyer 
Mas furnished the Seller with a valid tax eiCemption certificate acceptabl e to the taxing authorities 
Where a Buyer falls to furnish the required documentation, the previously unpaid sales,use, excise, or simil ar tax 
will be billed to the Buyer. 
If. upon  subsequent sales, use,  excise, or simUar tax audit, an exemption certificate  provided  to  the Seller by 
Buyer  i s, tllrough no  fault  of  the  Seller, determined  to be  invalid,  the  Seller  will  attempt  to  acquire  a valid 
exemption certificate, notarized affdi avit of exempt use, or other necessary  documentaUon from Buyer. If Buyer 
fails  to  timely  furnish a  valid  exemption certificate, notari zed  affidavit or other necessary documenlation, the 
previously unpaid sales.use or simar excise tax will be billed to Buyer. 

3. TERMS 
Terms are cash net 30 days. Amounts past due are subject  to a service ct1arge of 1 and 1/2 percent  per month (or 
fraction thereof)  or maximum contract rate permitted by law. If lhe Seller deems  that by reason  of the financial 
condlllon of the Buyer or other'!Nfse, the continuance of any services or shipment on the terms spec ied herein Is 
not  justified, the  Seller  may   require fuor  partial payment in  advance. The  Seller  at  its  option  may  retain 
possession of equipment repaired,modified,inspected, tested.maintained or serviced under thi s agreement until 
its charges for services are paid. If such charges are not pakl within 90 daya folllowing complellon of the work and 
the InvoiCing to the Buyer,the Seller may upon not less than 7 days wrHten nollce  by certified mail to the Buyer at 
the Buyer's last  known address  sell the  equipment  at public  or private sate and appty  the net  proceeds to  the 
Seller charge. 

4.PRICE POLICY 
Prices shall be subject to adjustment to those In effect at time of shipment. 

5.DELIVERY 
Shipping dates gfven by the Seller are approximate and are based on prompt receiP' of information. equipment. or 
access to the equipment at the customer's premise  if wof1c: Is performed on said premise. 
Rentalequipment de ivery dales quoted are based on availabiltiy of stoc-k at the time of quotation and are subject 
to prior rentals. 
The Seller willuse its reasonable efforts to meet the scheduled dates, however,It cannot  be held responsible for 
its  failure  to do so for  causes  beyond its reasonable control  and In no  event  shall  It be  liable for any  loss or 
damage resulting from its failure to deliver the services within the time specified herein. 

6. SHIPPING/HANDLING  CHARGES 
Shipments are F.0.8. point of shipmen!. Shlpplr.g/handllng will be  prepaid and billed as a separate Item on 
the equipment invoice on the basis of SeHer's current shipping/handilng polides. 

7. CHANGES 
Buyer  may  with  the  express  written consent  of the  Seller  make  changes  in  the  specifications for  equpi ment, 
services  or work covered by the contract in such  event the contract price and delivery dates sha11 be equitably 
adjusted. The S e ler shall be entitled to payment for reasonable  profit plus costs and expensesincurred by it for 
services,  work  and material s rendered unnecessary as a result of such  changes  and  for  work  and materials 
required to effect said changes 

8. CANCELLATION 
Undeli'vered parts of any order may  be canceled by  the Buyer only with the written approvalof the Seller. If  the 
Buyer makes an assignment  for  the  benefit of  creditors,  if   a  voluntary   or  Involuntary  petition or  action  In 
bankruptcy or for reorganization or under any other inso vency l aw shall be  filed by or against  the buyer, if  the 
Buyer shalladmi t Its Inability to pay  its debts, if a trustee, receiver or liquidator  is appointed  for any part of  the 
assets of the Buyer, or if the Buyer fails to make  payments to the Seller In accordance with the terms hereof, the 
Seller may  at its opt on cancelall undelivered parts or any order by written notice to the Buyer. 
In the event  of any cancellation of this  order by  either party, the Buyer shall pay the Seller  the reasonable cost 
and expense,Including engineering expense and all commitments to its suppliers and  subcontractors,incurred by 
the Sel!er prior to receipt of notice of such cancetlation,ptus the Seller's usual rate of profit for slmHar work. 

9.ELECTRONIC DATA INTERCHANGE/FACSIMILE (FAX) 
Orders  placed hereunder by Buyer  may be transmitted electronically or via FAX  and  n such event, such  orders 
shall  be subjecl to the  terms  and  conditions  contained in  Seller's Electronic Data Interchange Agreement, in 
addition to the terms and conditions contained herein. 

10. REGULATORY LAWS AND STANDARDS 
The Seller makes no promise or representation tha t its product, services or work will conform to any federal, state 
or local taws. ordinances, regulat ions. codes or standards, except  as particularly specified  and agree d upon for 
compliance In writing  as par t of the quotation  or contract between Buyer  and  Seller. The Seller  prices  do not 
include t he cost of any related Inspections or permits or inspection fees 

1.   11. EXPORT CONTROL 
Products and  associated materials supplied orlicensed under  this agreement may  be subject to various export 
l aws and regutaUons. It is the responsibility of the exporter  to comply with all such laws and regulations. 

12. WARRANTY 
A. WARRANTY  PERIOD 

All repair,inspection, test. rentalservice, modif cation or maintenance sold or serviced by the Seller Is warranted 
to be free  from defects of material and workmanship and to conform to any applicable drawings, specifications, or 
writ!en documents approved  by the Seller for a period of time as detailed below: 
Reconditioned:90 days from date of shipment 
1.  Recondition and standard rewind:1 year In service or 16 months from date of shipment, y,f'licilever 

occurs first 
2.  Recondition and Enduralok rewind:The winding i s warranted for 3 years from date of shipment. 
3.  Recondition and Enduraseal rewind: The winding is warranted for 5 years  from date of shipment 
4. Recondition and Megaseal rewind: The winding Is warranted for 5 years. from date of shipment. 
5.  New Product Sales: 1 year In service or 18 months from dat e of shipment, whichever  occurs first. 

 
The above  warranties shall be  based  on such  equipment operating with  competent supervi sion under  normal 
toad, usage and conditions. 

B.WARRANTY- REPAIR, MODIFICATION, REBUILD 
I f within the  period specified above, tt1e Seller receives  from  the Buyer  written  notice  of any alleged 
defect  or non-conformity  and if  the  services  provided are found not  to be  In conformity  with  this 
warranty (the Buyer having provided the Seller reasonable opportunity to perform any appropriate test 
thereon) the Seller wil!, at its option,correct st.Jch nonconformity or supply a replacement thereof. This 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 

warranty shalll  onyl apply to parts repaired or replaced by the Seller. No separate  warranty  shall app y 
to repaired apparatus as a whole or  to parts  not repaired or replaced  by  the Seller. The Seller shal! 
have  the right to require the Buyer to deliver any apparatus covered by this warranty to a designated 
service   center   and  the  Buyer shall  pay   both  in·bound and  ou·lbound  transportat ion  charges. 
accepting only  the direct and actual coslof apparatus repari or repal cemenl as provided above. 

C. WARRANTY- RENTALS 
The  Seller  warrants to  the Buyer that t he rental equipment when  delivered is  in good  operating 
condlllon and if the Buyer advises the Seller upon receip\ of said equipment  that the equipment does 
not function properly, the Seller will at its option either repair tile equipment or supply a replacement 
therefor subject  to availability. The Buyer will be liable  for any damage  or reconditioning cost  upon 
compteUon of the rentalperiod. 

D. PARTS WARRANTY 
If any part provi ded by the Seller stlal! prove defectiveIn material and/or  workmanship within lhe one 
(1) year  from  the date of sllipment, Buyer  shall  immedi ately thereupon  notify  the Seller In writing of 
such defect. The  Seller  shall,at its opHon, modify, repair, supply a replacement part or refund  the 
purchase pri ce of said part. The  Setter shalll have the option to have the part returned to it.F.O.B.Its 
factory,or to make such adjustment  at the point  ofInstallation. The Seller shall Jnvolce for all travel 
and labor Involved. The Seller shall accept no responsibility I f such part has been 1mproperty operated 
or maintained or if Buyer has permitted any unauthorized modifications, adjustments and/or repairs to 
the part. Parts not manufactured by tile Seller shall be covered by the warranty of the manufacturer or 
supplier thereof. 

E.     WARRANTY  INSPECTION,  TEST,  MAINTENANCE, 
CALIBRATION, CONSULTATION 

The  Seller  warrants that  these  serv ices  will  be  provided  In  accordance  with  accepted  industry 
practice.If any  service fails to meet  the foregoing warranty, the Seller shall dupil cate the service  to 
tl'1e same extent and on the same conditions as the original service rendered- 

F.REMANUFACTURED EQUIPMENT/COMPONENTS 
Allequipment components remanufactured by Seller  will  be  w:manted for  a period of one (1) year 
from date of shipment. Repair of electronic  boards ·non-Reliance will be warranted  for a period of sxi 
(6) months from date of shipment. 

G. EXCLUSIVE WARRANTY 
THESE  WARRANTIES ARE IN  LIEU  OF  AND EXCLUDE AllOTHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR 
STATUTORY WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATIONS, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY 
OF  MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR  A PARNCULAR PURPOSE.IN  NO EVENT  SHALL 
THE  SELLER  BE  LIABLE FOR   SPECI AL  OFl  CONSEQUENTIAL  DAMAGES, OR  FOR  ANY 
OTHER LOSS DAMAGE OR EXPENSE OF ANY KINO, INCLUDING LOSS OF PROFITS ARISING 
IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR  WITH THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE THE 
SERVICES FURNISHED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. THE SELLER DOES NOT WARRANT THE 
DESIGN OF ANY EQUIPMENT,MATERIAL,COMPONENTS OR SERVICES OF OTHERS. 

13.INDEMNITY 
The Seller agrees  to Indemnify the Buyer and hold it harmless from and against any toss actually suffered directly 
from  injury  (induding death)  to any person or damage  to any  property  caused  by the gross negligence of  the 
Seller In the performance of any work hereunder on the premises of Buyer. 

14. PATENT INFRINGEMENT 
The Seller shall defend any suit or proceeding  brought against the Buyer so far as the  sameis based on a claim 
that any apparatus  of the  Seller's degn furnished hereunder or any part thereof, constitutes an infringement of 
any United States patents, if notified promptly  in writing and  given aulhorlty, infom1ation and assistance (at  the 
Seller's expense) for  the defense of the  same  and if such alleged  infringement is not  the result of  a design  or 
other special requiremenl specified  by  the Buyer as the -result  of  the  application or  the  use  to 'Nhich  such 
apparatus Is put  by  the Buyer or  others.  The Sell er will  pay  all damages and  costs  awarded in  such  suit or 
proceeding against the  Buyer. In case such apparatus or part is in such suit held toinfringe any such patent and 
the use thereof is enjoined, the Seller shall at its expense either, at its optiOn,(a) obtain for the Buyer the right to 
continue using  such apparatus or part,or,(b) replace the same  with non-Infringing apparatus, or (c) mocHfy the 
same  so  that II becomes non-infringing, or, (d) remove  said apparatus  and refund  the putcl1ase  pr ce and  the 
transportation and installation cof.IS thereof. 
The foregoing states the entire llabi ty of the Seller to the Buyer for patent infringement. 

15. TITLE 
All scrap resulting from the work shall be the property of the Selller, and tlUe to all rental equpi ment  shall remain 
with the Seller.The tit le and right of possession of equipment repaired,modified,Inspected, lasted or maintained 
under this contract sl1all remain with the Buyer. subject to any applicable lien rights of the Seller and to its right of 
safe in the event of non payment as provided herein. 

16. DISCLAIMER  OF DAMAGES 
IN NO EVENT SHALL SELLER  BE LIABLE FOR ANYTYPE  OF SPECIAL,CONSEQUENTIAL,INCIDENTAL OR 
PENAL  DAMAGES.  W HETHER SUCH  DAMAGES ARISE  OUT  OF  OR  ARE  A RESULT   OF  BREACH  OF 
CONTRACT, WARRANTY,  TORT  (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE),  STRICT  LIABILITY  OR OTHERWISE. Such 
damages shall include but not be limited to loss of profits or revenues, loss of use of the equipment or associated 
equipment, cost  of substitute equipment, facilities, down  time costs,increased construction costs  or claims  of 
Buyer's  customers or contractors for such damages. Buyer agrees that in the event of a transfer, assignment, or 
lease of the equipment sold hereunder that Buyer  shall secure  for the Seller the protection afforded to ilIn this 
paragraph. 

17.LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
The Setter shall not be liable for any loss, claim. expense or damage  caused by, contributed lo by or arising out of 
the acts or omissions of  Buyer  or  third parties,  whether negligent  or otherwise.In  no event  shall  the  Seller's 
liability for any cause of action whatsoever exceed the coslof the Item giving rise to the daim, wtlether  based In 
contract. warranty,indemnity,  or  tort  (induding negilgence).  Any  suit  ar sing  hereunder must  be commenced 
within  one (1) year from tile  dale the cause of action accrues. Except as providedin Artide Indemnity, the Seller 
shall not indemnity any party. 

18. NO RESPONSIBILITY  FOR GRATUITOUS  INFORMATION  OR 
ASSISTANCE 
If Seller provides 8uye1with assi stance or advice which concerns any part slproductsfserv ice supplied hereunder 
or any system  or equipment In which any such part/producVservlce may  be Installed and  whi ch is not required 
pursuant hereto, the furnishing ot such assistance or adVIce shall not subject Seller to any liability, whether based 
In contract. warranty, tort (including negligence) or otherwise. 

19. INTERPRETATION 
Should any term  or provision contained in the contract contravene  or be invalid under applicable taw, the contract 
shall not fail by reason t hereof but shall be construed in the  same manner as if such term or provision had not 
appeared therein. Alt transactions covered by these terms and conditions shall be governed by the taws of the 
state of Delaware.This contract   s not assignable by any party hereto; provided,however, that Seller may assign 
this contract to any purchaser of all or substantially all of Seller's business, whether by slock or asset sale,merger 
or any other  siml!ar transaction. 



 

AGENDA  BILL:  G4 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  CAPITAL OUTLAY PURCHASE OF 
CHLORINATION 

 
 
 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15, 2014 
 
 
 

ACTION REQUIRED: 
 

ORDINANCE  _ COUNCIL INFORMATION  .!...,!X   
 

RESOLUTION  _ OTHER   
 

 
MOTION                       .:_X=------- 

 
 
 

EXPLANATION: 
Please find attached Karl Enyeart's  memo regarding a new chlorination  system at the 
Chlorination   Station   well   site.   This   request  was   reviewed   by  the   Public  Works 
Committee and along with Karl recommends  a capital outlay to purchase a new chlorine 
feeder system. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
MOTION: 

 
I MOVE TO APPROVE  A CAPITAL  OUTLAY  FOR THE PURCHASE  OF A MC4-50 
LITE CONSTANT  CHLOR PLUS CHLORINE FEEDER SYSTEM FROM PUMPTECH, 
INC. FOR $5,374.99 WHICH INCLUDES SALES TAX. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Memo 
 
 

To:  Mayor and Council 
 

From: Karl Enyeart, PE, Public Works Director 
 

CC:  Larry Bellamy, City Administrator 
 

Date:   12/10/2014 
 

Re:  Capital Outlay- New Chlorination System 

City of Goldendale 

 
 
 

Our Chlorination system at the Chlorination Station well site has been requiring 
additional maintenance and repairs at an unacceptable level.  The system was state 
of the art at the time of installation but now is obsolete and requires more annual 
maintenance than the cost of a new simpler system. 

 
Staff evaluated the two most popular systems for chlorination.  A tablet feed system 
and purchase of prepared solution.  The prepared solution has a cheaper capital 
expense but requires much more operation and maintenance.  The tablet feed 
system is more expensive initially but requires less operation and maintenance. 
The tablet feed is better suited for a continuous flow system like we have with the 
mountain springs source.  The capital expense for the tablet system is less than the 
cost for one year of maintenance on our existing system. This cost for the new 
system is less than the RCW 35.23.352(6) bid limit requirement ($7500) for code 
cities. 

 
I recommend the City approve te purchase of a MC4-50 Lite Constant Chlor Plus 
Chlorine Feeder System from Pumptech, Inc. for $5,374.99 



 

 
PumpTech Inc. 
321 S. Sequoia Parkway 
Canby, OR  97013 
Phone: 503-659-6230 
Fax:  503-659-8718 
sandrews@pumptechnw.com 

 
Page:   1 

 

 

Sales Quotation  
 
Customer#: 0177460 

 

TO: 
Karl Enyeart 
City of Goldendale 
1103 S. Columbus Ave. 
Goldendale, WA  98620 
Fax: 509-773-9171 

 

Salesperson:  Shawna Andrews I Alana  Barakat  Quote#: 
Lead Time: 8-12 Weeks ARO  Date: 

FOB: Expires: 
Ship Via:  BEST  WAY 

 
Project Name:  MC4 LONZA 005 - Constant Chlor  System 

 

0117212-A 
11/11/2014 
 

11/1112014 

 

Item Price Qty  Extend 
 

Chlorination System 
 
MC4-50 Lite Constant Chlor Plus Chlorine Feeder System 
- MC4-50 Lite Feeder wfTank, Containment Base & 
Circulation Pump 
- Pump Not Included 
- No Assembly Included 

 
4,999.99 

 
1.00  4,999.99 

Freight To Be Delivered to Site By PumpTech Truck 
Start-Up & Training Not Included- Charge woudl be 
$1,500/day, estimated time 1 day 

0.00 
0.00 

1.00 
1.00 

0.00 
0.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The above order is subject to Pumptech Inc.standard terms and conditions and credit approval which are 
attached and made part of this agreement.  We appreciate your interest in our products and services and if 
you have any questions on our offerings please do not hesitate to call. 
By signature below, I accept this offering: 

 
Signed:       

SubTotal 
 
 
 
 
Sales Tax: 

4,999.99 
 
 
 
 

375.00 

 
Name: -------------- Title: 

Total: 5,374.99 

mailto:sandrews@pumptechnw.com


 

STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS 
 
 
 

SHIPMENT 
 

Estimated shipment from manufacturer can proceed as quoted after receipt of approved submittals and purchase order. Quoted 
shipment time is not guaranteed and is based on information from our suppliers.  Any late delivery charges due to shipment 
beyond the above estimated schedule will not be accepted. 

 
CONDITIONS OF SALE 

 
PUMPTECH INC is not bound by the terms and conditions in Purchaser's Purchase Order or in Purchaser's or Owner's Plans & 
Specifications unless such terms are delivered to PumpTech prior to quotation and referenced in the quotation. 

 
PUMPTECH INC is not responsible for delay, disruption, consequential or liquidated damages of any sort, unless Purchaser 
requests and receives a quotation which includes pricing and terms for such damages. 

 
CREDIT APPROVAL AND PAYMENT TERMS 

 
Credit approval is required by PUMPTECH INC. prior to release of order to manufacturer; however, submittal may begin at the time 
of receipt of purchase order.PUMPTECH. INC.'s payment terms are Net 30 days from invoice date. In some circumstances 
PUMPTECH, INC. may require Progress Payments. Progress payments are due and payable on receipt of invoice.   "Standard 
Progress Payment Plan" is defined as a payment plan that includes the following terms in the Purchase Order or in the agreement: 

 
a.  15% - Fifteen percent on receipt of approved drawings 
b.  30% - Thirty percent with order of major components 
c.  20% - Twenty percent  on receipt of major components at our facility 
d.  30%-  Thirty percent upon shipment 
e.   5% - Five percent  on start up 

 
A finance charge of 1.5% per month will be charged on all past due balances.  If PUMPTECH, INC. is forced to turn this over to a 
collection agency; purchaser agrees to pay costs of the collection to the extent that is allowed by law for commercial accounts. 
Purchaser also agrees to pay attorney fees and court costs in the event of a suit. 

 
WARRANTY 

 
The only warranty/guarantee implied or applied to this quotation are those as put forth by the original manufacturer. Products 
manufactured by PUMPTECH INC. are warranted to be free from defects in material and workmanship for a period of one (1) year 
from the date of installation provided that the product is properly installed, serviced, and operated under normal conditions. 

 
TAXES 

The pricing in the quotation does not include any local, state, or federal taxes. If applicable, taxes will be included on the invoice. 

With the signature below, purchaser agrees to the above terms and conditions, and authorizes PUMPTECH INC. to proceed with 
the order. 

 
 
 

(Purchaser's  signature)  Printed Name & Title  (Date) 



 

AGENDA BILL:  G5 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  BID AWARD FOR LAWN MOWER 
PURCHASE 

 
 
 

DATE: DECEMBER 15,2014 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUIRED: 

 
ORDINANCE.  _ COUNCIL INFORMATION  .!..,!X   

 

RESOLUTION   _ OTHER  _ 

MOTION  :X --- 

 
EXPLANATION: 
Please find attached Karl Enyeart's memo regarding bid results for a new zero turn lawn 
mower. This request was reviewed by the Public Works Committee and along with Karl 
recommends awarding the purchase for a Zero Turn Municipal Park Mower to Small 
Engine Specialties for $10,509.00 for bid #1. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
MOTION: 

 
I MOVE TO AWARD  THE PURCHASE FOR  A ZERO  TURN MUNICIPAL PARK 
MOWER TO SMALL ENGINE SPECIALTIES FOR $10,509.00 WHICH INCLUDES 
TAXES AND FEES. 



 

City of Goldendale 
 
 
 
 

Memo 
 

 
To: Mayor and Council 

 
From:   Karl Enyeart, PE, Public Works Director 

 
CC:  Larry Bellamy, City Administrator 

 

Date:  12/15/2014 
 

Re:  Recommendation for Award of Lawnmower  purchase 
 
 
 

Two bidders made submittals for our advertisement for a Zero Turn Lawnmower.  Small 
Engine Specialties (SES) submitted a bid for a SCAG brand and ROO Equipment submitted 
a bid for a John Deere.  Bid prices for each are shown below: 

 
Bid #1  Bid #2 

Mower Bids SCAG JD 
 
Base Price $  9,406.58 $13,050.62 
Sales Tax @ $  771.34 $  978.80 
Net Bid Price $10,177.92 $14,029.42 
 
Delivery Cost $  275.50 N/A 
Sales Tax @ 7.5% $  22.59 N/A 
 
Blade Accessory $  32.99 N/A 
 
Total $10,509.00 $14,029.42 
 

Option #1 N/A $  2,289.00 
Option #2 N/A NIA 
 
Total with options 1&2 $ 10,509.00 $16,318.42 

 
Demonstrations were requested for both mowers.  SCAG demonstrated the model that was 
bid.  John Deere did not demonstrate but Public works personnel demonstrated a similar 
model owned by the School District.  All members of the Public Works Crew were in favor of 
the SCAG during the demonstration. 

 
I recommend awarding the purchase for a Zero Turn Municipal Park Mower to Small Engine 
Specialties for $10,509.00 for bid #1.  / 



Approval and acceptance of Bid by: 
 

£ . . 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF GOLDENDALE, \VASHINGTON 
Bid Proposal No.   _,  _ 

 
TO:  City of Goldendale 

Public Works Department 
1103 S. Columbus Ave. 
Goldendale, WA 98620 

 
I (or we) agree to furnish one Mower Unit ------=S-=c-=a_..g'------------- 

(Brand Name) 
_  S_C_Z_6_1_V_-8_5_0_F_X  _ within.    ;:::L=e.::..ss:;_t-=h=e-=n-=1..:::2;..:.0_ days 

(Model or Number) 
 

All in accordance with the attached specifications and for the following bid prices: 

Base Price  $  9406.58 

Sales Tax@  8.2% $  771.34 
 

Net Bid Price  $  10177.92 
 

Delivery Cost  $  275.50 
 

Sales Tax@ 7.5%  $  22.59 
 

Blade Accessory  $  32.99 +TAX 
 

Option #1 $  N/A 
 

Option #2  $  N/A 
 

Attached standard specifications of equipment proposed and any changes not in accordance with 
the specifications.  Reference attachment#   1:...      _ 

 

 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF BIDDER: 
Small Engine Specialties 

1026 N 34th Ave. 
Yakima, WA 98902 

 
Publications Date: 
_November 12 and 19, 2014   

 
 
 
Authorized  ntatiV 

 
Bid Opening Date: 
_December 9, 2014 



Approval and acceptance of Bid by: 
 

p  

 
 

CITY OF GOLDENDALE, WASHINGTON 
Bid Proposal No.   _ 

 

 
TO:  City of Goldendale 

Public Works  Department 
1103 S. Columbus Ave. 
Goldendale, WA 98620 

I (or we) agree to furnish one Mower  U nit  Jo '(\. e._\-€ 
n  . (Brand Name) 

_"_".2-
=. 

---g-'- --'--'0=--"'------ within  ...::_;-=-a o..::__   _ 
(Model or Number) 

_   days 

 
All in accordance with the attached  specifications and for the following bid prices: 

Base Price  $  1 5
j 
. QSO .. fn 

Sales Tax @ f , S  $  q7o.?o 
 

Net Bid Price $ /C2ci,'-1   
Delivery Cost  $  0 
Sales Tax@ 7.5%  $  0 
Blade Accessory $  0 
Option #1 $     d-(5'1   
Option #2 $  N/,;1   

 
Attach ed standard  specifications of equipment proposed  and any changes not in accordance with 
the specifications.  Reference attachment # _.....S..c.o..".:·-"'!1.. =M- ---=.::::c.'.-.:'<\  o.. \..l..-  _ 

 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF BIDDER: 

/(()0 Egu•    rnrnt Co. 1'5LfI d.. 
fiL)  y  d-Oc'o, ea. t3 ox  3Z"s 
Wc--scor-..  9/0&S 

 

Publications Date: 
_November 12 and 19, 2014    _ '=' 5:::=? 

Authorized  Representative 
 

Bid Opening Date: 
_Decem ber 9, 2014  _    



 

AGENDA BILL:  G6 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  ANIMAL CONTROL AGREEMENT WITH 
BINGEN 

 
 
 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15,2014 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUIRED: 

 
ORDINANCE  _ COUNCIL INFORMATION  ..:....;;X   

 

RESOLUTION  _ OTHER   
 

MOTION                    :_;X:._                      _ 
 
 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Rick Johnson met with representatives  from the City of Bingen regarding  extension  of 
the  interlocal  agreement  for  animal  control  services.  The  City  of  Bingen  wishes  to 
continue the agreement for 2015. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
MOTION: 

 
I MOVE TO CONTINUE THE INTERLOCAL  FOR  ANIMAL  CONTROL SERVICES 
FOR  THE  CITY  OF  BINGEN  IN  THE  AMOUNT  OF  $15,000.00  FOR  EACH 
CALENDAR YEAR OF 2015. 



Interlocal Agreement for Animal 
Control Services, 2015 - 1 

 

 
 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES 
 

This is an agreement between the City of Goldendale and the City of Bingen (which may 
heretnafter be referred to as "Goldendale" and "Bingen" respectively, pursuant to which 
Goldendale agrees to provide, primarily through its animal control officer and impound kennel, 
certain animal control services for specified consideration. Goldendale and Bingen are municipal 
corporations and may contract with one another for services under RCW Chapter 39.34. 

 
THE PARTIES AGREES AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. Goldendale is designated, pursuant to BMC 6.04.110 as poundmaster authority for 

Bingen. Poundmaster duties shall include but are not limited to: 
 

a.  Housing animals impounded pursuant to state, local or Bingen Municipal 
Ordinance, laws, rules and regulations (and as any may be amended) until such 
time as, at the direction of Bingen, the animals are returned to the owner or 
custodian or euthanized or otherwise disposed of; and 

b. Notifying Bingen, as soon as  possible, that an animal has been impounded from 
Bingen and providing Bingen with any information known to Goldendale that 
might assist in identifying the owner or custodian of the animal; and 

c.  Goldendale's impoundment facility shall be available to Bingen and for Bingen 
animals and their owners in the same manner and hours as for Goldendale animals 
and their owners. 

 
2.  In addition to poundmaster duties, Goldendale shall assist Bingen with general 

enforcement of state, local and Bingen's animal control ordinances, and as any of the 
same may be amended. 

 
3.  Such assistance shall include but not be limited to an animal control officer employed by 

Goldendale: 
 

a.   Spending at least one day a week (at least 6 hours, between 7 am and 8 pm), 
rotating days to include weekends (i.e. not spending the same day of the week 
every week) patrolling the Bingen area; and 

b.  In addition to such patrolling, assisting, when feasible, Bingen staff and police 
officers with capture, seizure and transportation of animals; and 

c. Promoting public education in Bingen regarding animal control issues relevant to 
Bingen and its citizens; and 

d.  Providing such information and documentation as may be necessary for 
enforcement procedures, including dangerous dog and judicial hearings; and 

e.  If necessary, testifying at enforcement procedure hearings, including dangerous 
dog and judicial hearings. 



Interlocal Agreement for Animal 
Control Services, 2015 - 2 

 

h, h 

4.  Goldendale's animal control officer is appointed to act as animal control officer for 
Bingen to enforce all applicable animal enforcement laws, rules and regulations, as they 
now exist or as they may hereafter be amended. 

 
5.  Goldendale shall provide facilities, equipment and supplies as necessary to accomplish 

the animal control services set forth herein. 
 

6.  Bingen shall make best efforts to notify owners of an impounded animal that the animal 
has been impounded and what must be done to have the animal released from impound to 
the owner or agent. 

 
7.  Bingen shall collect license fees and other animal control related fees and shall verify 

necessary vaccinations for the animals from Bingen, verifying information to the animal 
control officer, or other impound agent, as may be necessary to release an animal to its 
owner or agent. All impound fees for animals shall be collected and retained by 
Goldendale. 

 
8.  Bingen shall pay the amount ofFifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00) annually, payable 

in quarterly installments of Three Thousand Seven Hundred and Fifty Dollars 
($3,750.00) on January 151

 April 15th, July 15th and October 151
 of each year this 

agreement is in effect, which amount shall be prorated for any part of a quarter. 
 

9.  The payments under paragraph 8 above are inclusive for the services set forth herein, 
provided that such payment shall not include the impound cost for any day over seven 
days for each stay for any one animal. If Bingen chooses to have any animal stay more 
than seven consecutive days, Bingen shall pay for such impoundment at the then current 
impound rate per day. 

 
10.   This agreement may be terminated by either party at any time upon 30 days written 

notice to the clerk treasurer of the other party. Absent such notice, this agreement 
terminates December 31, 2015 and may be continued only upon agreement of the 
councils of Goldendale and Bingen. 

 
11.  Goldendale agrees to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless Bingen, its officials, 

employees and agents from any and all liability, demands, claims, causes of action, suits 
or judgments, including costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith, for deaths 
or injuries to persons arising out of, in connection with, or incident to the performance of 
this contract by Goldendale, its officials, employees or agents except those caused by 
Bingen's negligence or intentional acts or omissions. This indemnity agreement shall 
include any claim made against Bingen by an employee of Goldendale or subcontractor 
or agent of Goldendale, even if Goldendale is thus or otherwise immune from liability 
pursuant to the worker's  compensation statute. In the event oflitigation between the 
parties to enforce rights under this section, reasonable attorney's  fees and costs shall be 
allowed to the prevailing party. 



Interlocal Agreement for Animal 
Control Services, 2015 - 3 

 

City Clerk 

 
12.   No administrative entity is created by this agreement and to the extent that any 

administration is required, the respective mayors or their respective designees shall 
perform the administration; no real or personal property shall be acquired by the parties 
jointly pursuant to this agreement. Upon approval by the City Councils of Bingen and 
Goldendale, this Agreement shall be effective upon being filed with the Klickitat County 
Auditor. 

 
13.   Goldendale shall provide Bingen with monthly reports detailing weekly activity including, 

but not limited to, warnings issued (name and address of dog owner and name of dog), 
tickets written (name and address of dog owner and name of dog), the number of service 
requests to which the officer responded, and the number of animals transported to the 
impoundment facility from Bingen. 

 
14.   Goldendale shall immediately notify the City of Bingen by e-mail when a dog is 

impounded. The e-mail shall include a description of the dog, photograph of the dog and 
when (date and time) and where the dog was found/picked up. 

 
 
 

CITY OF BINGEN  CITY OF GOLDENDALE 
 
 
 
 

By:    
Mayor 

By:  

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

Attest: ---------- ------------------ 
 
Attest: -----------------------

- City Clerk 
 
 
 

Approved by the Bingen City Council  Approved by the Goldendale City Council 

on     , 2014.  on   , 2014. 



 

AGENDA BILL:  G7 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  PROSECUTING ATTORNEY AGREEMENT 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15, 2014 

ACTION REQUIRED: 

ORDINANCE.  _  COUNCIL INFORMATION  .=....:.X   

RESOLUTION   _ OTHER     
 
MOTION                   :X....:..__                            _ 

 
 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The Mayor appointed a committee to interview the three applicants for the selection of 
the City's next prosecuting attorney. The committee was made up of Clinton Baze, Rick 
Johnson, Larry Bellamy, Rick Hansen, Len Crawford and Gary Hoctor. The interviews 
were conducted on December 2, 2014. After deliberation of the committee regarding the 
applicants  it  was  recommended  that  the  Mayor  negotiate  a  professional  services 
contract with Gwendolyn Grundei. 

 
Please  find  attached  a  red  line  version  and  final  version  of  an  agreement  with 
Gwendolyn Grundei to act as the city's prosecuting attorney. The red line version is 
attached to show the changes made to the existing contract the City has with with Mr. 
Hanson. The agreement term is for two years at $4,000 per month. This compensation 
amount  has  not  increased  since  2008.  The  scope  of  attorney  services  includes 
additional responsibilities for representing the City on contested infractions and 
dangerous dog code issues. In addition the attorney will be responsible to hire a special 
deputy in the event of ethical conflicts of interest. The City will provide non-exclusive 
office space as well as payment for training on prosecutorial matters. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
ALTERNATIVES: 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 
 
MOTION: 

 
I MOVE  TO  AUTHORIZE   THE  MAYOR  TO  ENTER  INTO  A  TWO  YEAR 
PROFESSIONAL  SERVICES  CONTRACT WITH GWENDOLYN GRUNDEI IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $4,000 PER MONTH EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015 



 

PROFESSIONAL  SERVICE CONTRACT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the City of Goldendale, 
Washington, a municipal corporation, ("City") and L. Eugene HansonGwendolyn 
Grundei, an attorney member of the Washington State Bar ("Attorney"), to act as 
the Prosecuting Attorney for City. 

 
1.  AGREEMENT:   Attorney hereby agrees to provide City with his 

professional services as City Prosecuting Attorney and City agrees to compensate 
attorney as provided below for the stated term. 

 
2. TERM:  This Agreement shall take effect on the  1st day of January, 

2015 and expire at midnight, December 31,  2016. 
 

3.  TERMINATION: City may terminate this Agreement at any time prior to 
its expiration upon thirty (30sixty (60H days written notification to Attorney and 
Attorney may terminate this Agreement at any time prior to its termination upon 
sixty (60) days written notification to City.  Termination by either party may be 
elected for any reason within the sole discretion of the terminating party. 

 
4.  COMPENSATION: City shall pay attorney the sum of Three Thousand 

Five Hundred Dollars ($ 4.000.00) per month for services performed by 
Attorney in the month following performance of such services.  Attorney shall 
invoice City for such payment on or before the last Monday of each month of 
service.  Payment shall be considered a nonrefundable retainer and full 
compensation for work performed. 

 
5.  SCOPE OF ATTORNEY SERVICES:  Attorney shall professionally 

perform all customary and usual duties associated with the criminal prosecution 
function of a City Prosecuting Attorney at all stages of proceedings, including 
appeals to higher courts, contested infractions and shall further advise the City's 
police department on day to day matters regarding enforcement of City criminal 
ordinances.  In addition, the Attorney shall assist with the dangerous dog 
declaration procedure and representing the City at any hearing before the 
Municipal Judge in accordance with the Goldendale Municipal Code Chapter 6.04. 
He shall exercise his professional judgment concerning such matters.  In the event 
the Attorney decides to dismiss or amend a charge, the arresting officer shall be 
notified and consulted prior to the dismissal or amendment, whenever reasonably 
possible.  He shall be solely responsible for the manner in which such matters are 
performed, scheduling of work, hours of work devoted thereto, establishing and 
maintaining adequate file documentation and file retention policies, any 
employment of such other individuals as may be necessary to carl)! out his duties, 
and acquisition of any necessary equipment or tools of the trade.  Attorney shall 
not engage in representation of clients with claims adverse to City, whether civil or 
criminal in nature, or act in any other manner contrary to the Rules of Professional 
Conduct or other applicable law.  Attorney shall maintain adequate minimum 



 

staffing and availability so that City inquiries of Attorney regarding attorney 
services may be answered expeditiously and at no additional cost to the City. 

In the event that ethical conflicts of interest arise wherein Attorney cannot 
personally represent City in any matter, Attorney shall engage a special deputy to 
pursue such matter. Attorney shall notify any such special deputy that he or she 
shall be subject to the terms of this agreement, including status as an independent 
contractor as regards the City, payment of taxes, and all other terms herein. 
Attorney shall retain responsibility for assuring to the City that any special deputy 
faithfully and fully fulfills the terms of this agreement in all respects. 

 
6.  CITY RESPONSIBILITIES:   City shall provide Attorney with its up to 

date Municipal Code Book, via the City's web page and its good faith cooperation 
with Attorney.  In the event that ethical conflicts of interest arise wherein Attorney 
cannot personally represent City in any matter, Attorney shall engage a special 
deputy to pursue such matter. Attorney shall notify any such special deputy that he 
or she shall be subject to the terms of this agreement, including status as an 
independent contractor as regards the City, payment of taxes, and all other terms 
herein.  Attorney shall retain responsibility for assuring to the City that any special 
deputy faithfully and fully fulfills the terms of this agreement in all respects.  The 
City shall provide non-exclusive office space to Attorney for the purpose of 
conducting interviews.  The City will also pay for one training on prosecutorial 
matters, mutually agreed upon by the parties. 

 
7.  ASSIGNMENT:  Attorney shall not assign, transfer, or subcontract 

this Agreement without obtaining prior written approval from the City, except as 
may be expressly allowed herein. 

 
8.  TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS:  Attorney shall be solely responsible 

for compensating Attorney's employees and its special deputies and for paying all 
related taxes, deductions and assessments, including but not limited to federal 
income tax, FICA, social security tax, assessments for unemployment  and 
industrial injury, and other deductions from income which may be required by law 
or assessed as a result of this Agreement.  In the event City is assessed a tax or 
assessment as a result of this Agreement, Attorney shall pay the same before it 
becomes due. 

 
9.  INDEPENDENT  CONTRACTOR:  The parties agree that Attorney is 

an independent contractor with the responsibility and authority to control and direct 
the performance of the details of the work described herein in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement.  The implementation of contracted 
activities and the results achieved are solely the responsibility of Attorney.  No 
agent, employee, subcontractor, or representative of Attorney shall be deemed to 
be an employee, agent, servant, or representative of the City for any purpose, and 
the employees, agents, subcontractors, and representatives  of Attorney shall not 
be entitled to any of the benefits the City provides for its employees.  Attorney 
shall be solely and entirely responsible for his acts and for the acts of his agents, 



 

 

employees,  subcontractors, special deputies, or otherwise, during the performance 
of this Agreement. 

 
CITY OF GOLDENDALE  PROSECUTING  ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 
Clint Baze, Mayor 
Grundei 

L. Eugene HansonGwendolyn 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 

Connie Byers, Clerk/Treasurer 



 

PROFESSIONAL  SERVICE CONTRACT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the City of Goldendale, 
Washington, a municipal corporation, ("City") and Gwendolyn Grundei, an attorney 
member of the Washington State Bar ("Attorney"), to act as the Prosecuting Attorney for 
City. 

 
1.  AGREEMENT:  Attorney hereby agrees to provide City with his professional 

services as City Prosecuting Attorney and City agrees to compensate attorney as 
provided below for the stated term. 

 
2. TERM:  This Agreement shall take effect on the 151 day of January, 2015 and 

expire at midnight, December 31, 2016. 
 

3.  TERMINATION:  City may terminate this Agreement at any time prior to its 
expiration upon sixty (60) days written notification to Attorney and Attorney may 
terminate this Agreement at any time prior to its termination upon sixty (60) days written 
notification to City.  Termination by either party may be elected for any reason within the 
sole discretion of the terminating party. 

 
4.  COMPENSATION: City shall pay attorney the sum of Three Thousand Five 

Hundred Dollars ($4,000.00) per month for services performed by Attorney in the month 
following performance of such services.  Attorney shall invoice City for such payment on 
or before the last Monday of each month of service.  Payment shall be considered a 
nonrefundable retainer and full compensation  for work performed. 

 
5.  SCOPE OF ATTORNEY SERVICES:  Attorney shall professionally perform all 

customary and usual duties associated with the criminal prosecution function of a City 
Prosecuting Attorney at all stages of proceedings, including appeals to higher courts, 
contested infractions and shall further advise the City's police department on day to day 
matters regarding enforcement of City criminal ordinances.  In addition, the Attorney 
shall assist with the dangerous dog declaration procedure and representing the City at 
any hearing before the Municipal Judge in accordance with the Goldendale Municipal 
Code Chapter 6.04.  He shall exercise his professional judgment concerning such 
matters.  In the event the Attorney decides to dismiss or amend a charge, the arresting 
officer shall be notified and consulted prior to the dismissal or amendment, whenever 
reasonably  possible.  She shall be solely responsible for the manner in which such 
matters are performed, scheduling of work, hours of work devoted thereto, establishing 
and maintaining adequate file documentation and file retention policies, any 
employment of such other individuals as may be necessary to carry out his duties, and 
acquisition of any necessary equipment or tools of the trade.  Attorney shall not engage 
in representation of clients with claims adverse to City, whether civil or criminal in 
nature, or act in any other manner contrary to the Rules of Professional Conduct or 
other applicable law.  Attorney shall maintain adequate minimum staffing and availability 
so that City inquiries of Attorney regarding attorney services may be answered 
expeditiously and at no additional cost to the City. 



 

In the event that ethical conflicts of interest arise wherein Attorney cannot 
personally represent City in any matter, Attorney shall engage a special deputy to 
pursue such matter. Attorney shall notify any such special deputy that he or she shall be 
subject to the terms of this agreement, including status as an independent contractor as 
regards the City, payment of taxes, and all other terms herein.  Attorney shall retain 
responsibility for assuring to the City that any special deputy faithfully and fully fulfills the 
terms of this agreement in all respects. 

 
6.   CITY RESPONSIBILITIES:  City shall provide Attorney with its up to date 

Municipal Code Book, via the City's web page and its good faith cooperation with 
Attorney.  The City shall provide non-exclusive office space to Attorney for the purpose 
of conducting interviews.  The City will also pay for one training on prosecutorial 
matters, mutually agreed upon by the parties. 

 
7.  ASSIGNMENT:  Attorney shall not assign, transfer, or subcontract this 

Agreement without obtaining prior written approval from the City, except as may be 
expressly allowed herein. 

 
8.  TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS:  Attorney shall be solely responsible for 

compensating Attorney's employees and its special deputies and for paying all related 
taxes, deductions and assessments, including but not limited to federal income tax, 
FICA, social security tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and 
other deductions from income which may be required by law or assessed as a result of 
this Agreement.   In the event City is assessed a tax or assessment as a result of this 
Agreement, Attorney shall pay the same before it becomes due. 

 
9.  INDEPENDENT  CONTRACTOR:  The parties agree that Attorney is an 

independent  contractor with the responsibility and authority to control and direct the 
performance of the details of the work described herein in accordance with the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement.   The implementation of contracted activities and the 
results achieved are solely the responsibility of Attorney.  No agent, employee, 
subcontractor, or representative of Attorney shall be deemed to be an employee, agent, 
servant, or representative of the City for any purpose, and the employees, agents, 
subcontractors, and representatives of Attorney shall not be entitled to any of the 
benefits the City provides for its employees.  Attorney shall be solely and entirely 
responsible  for his acts and for the acts of his agents, employees, subcontractors, 
special deputies, or otherwise, during the performance of this Agreement. 

 
CITY OF GOLDENDALE  PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 
Clint Baze, Mayor  · 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
Connie Byers, Clerk/Treasurer 

Gwendolyn Grundei 



 

AGENDA BILL:  G8 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  CIVIL ATTORNEY AMENDED AGREEMENT 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15,2014 

ACTION REQUIRED: 
 

ORDINANCE,   _   COUNCIL INFORMATION  X   

RESOLUTION     _  OTHER    _ 

MOTION  ,X;...:__   _ 

 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Please find attached a proposed change in fee structure with Menke Jackson Beyer. 
The  fee  structure  change  requested  will  increase  their  currently  hourly  rate  from 
$175.00 per hour to $195.00 per hour, effective January 1, 2015. The associates rate 
will increase from $150.00 to $170.00 per hour. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
MOTION: 

 
I MOVE TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A REPRESENTATION AND 
FEE   AGREEMENT   BETWEEN   THE   CITY   OF   GOLDENDALE   AND   MENKE 
JACKSON BEYER EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015. 



 

MENKE JACKSON BEYER,LLP 
Attorneys at Law 

 
807 NORTH 39TH AVENUE  • YAKIMA, WASHINGTON 98902 

(509) 575-0313 • FAX: (509) 575-0351 
 

ANTHONY F. MENKE 
ROCKYL. JACKSON 
G. SCOTT BEYER 
KIRK A. EHLIS 

 
 
 
 
 

October 24, 2014 
 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT 
PRIVILEGED & CONFIDENTIAL 

COMMUNICATION 

KENNETH W. HARPER 
QUINN N. PLA NT 

 
 
SEANN  M. MUMFORD 

 
Mr. Larry Bellamy 
City Administrator 
City of Goldendale 
1103 South Columbus 
Goldendale, WA 98620 

 

 
Re:   Proposed Change in Fee Structure 

 
Dear Larry: 

 
Over  the  years,  this  law firm  has  specialized in providing legal  services  for cities, 
counties,  towns,   and   special   purpose  districts.     Because   of  our   longstanding 
attorney-client relationships and  the  regular and ongoing need for legal services  by 
our municipal clients,  we have  traditionally been able to maintain reduced  legal fee 
rates.   The  private sector  rate per  hour  in  our  region  for similarly sophisticated 
work is considerably higher  than the rates we charge  our municipal clients. 

 
Our  current hourly  rate for the City is$ $175.00 and  we have  maintained that rate 
since June 2010.   Due to the  circumstances described  below, we want  to give early 
notice of our intent to adjust our rates commencing January 1, 2015. 

 
A.   Statewide Municipal Rates.   Based  upon 2013-2014  AWC data  for cities over 

15,000  in population, the average hourly  rate  for cities that contract for legal 
services is in excess of $200.  The hourly  rate  charged by our firm is less than 
the current market rate. 

 
B.  Experience. Our  law  firm  emphasizes municipal law.   The  attorneys in  our 

office have decades  of experience with  municipal law  matters.  Our attorneys 
possess expertise in subject  matters such as labor, employment, land  use, tort 
defense, and general municipal representation. 



 

4t7 

Mr. Larry Bellamy 
City Administrator 
City of Goldendale 
October 24, 2014 
Page 2 

 
 
 

C. Escalation  of Overhead Costs.    While  our  firm  has  maintained the  same 
hourly   rate   for   the   past   four   and   one-half   years,   overhead  costs   have 
increased significantly over  the  same  period  of  time.    These  costs  include 
employee   salaries, health  insurance, our  professional insurance,  utilities, 
office supplies, and electronic research tools. 

 
D.  New Fee Structure. Our current hourly  rate  of $175.00  per hour will increase 

to  $195.00,  effective  January 1,  2015.    The  hourly  rate  for  associates  will 
increase  from  $150.00   an   hour   to  $170.00   an   hour   at the   same   time. 
Enclosed  with this letter is a new agreement for the City Council's approval. 

 
We recognize  that over  the  last  few years  our  municipal clients  have  been  called 
upon to make  sacrifices due to reduced  revenues. During these  times  we have made 
our  own  sacrifices by avoiding  any  rate increases as  long  as  feasible.    We  have 
always, and  will  continue, to make  every  effort  to keep  our  rates as  low as  good 
business judgment will dictate. 

 
We pride  ourselves in  providing the  most  efficient  and  cost effective  services  that 
are  available to you.  We know you have a choice in who does your legal  work.   We 
think   it  is  important to  provide  the  information contained in  this  letter to  our 
municipal clients  so that you can assess  the value  that we provide to you. 

 
We look forward to continuing to serve your needs. Please do not hesitate to contact 
me  with  any  questions or input you have  regarding this  letter.   On behalf  of my 
partners, I would like to thank you for your continued trust in our firm. 

 

 
Yours Very Truly, 

 
 
 
 

d _(gboTT BEYER 
 

GSB:jmk 
 
Enc. 



Representation and Fee Agreement 
City of Goldendale 
Page 1of 2 

 

REPRESENTATION AND FEE AGREEMENT 
 

The parties  to this Agreement  are  the law firm  of Menke Jackson Beyer, LLP, 
located at 807 North 39th Avenue, Yakima, Washington, hereinafter referred to as 
"FIRM," and  CITY OF GOLDENDALE, located  at 1103  South  Columbus, 
Goldendale, Washington,  hereinafter  referred  to as "CITY."  Whereas, the CITY 
is desirous  of retaining  the  FIRM for  the  purposes  of advice, counseling,  and 
representation pertaining  to matters specified below. 

 
THE PARTIES agree to the following terms and conditions: 

 
 

ARTICLE I -STATEMENT OF WORK 
 

The FIRM shall represent  the CITY in all legal proceedings  (excluding criminal) 
involving  the CITY as directed  by the Council and its appointed officials.  Work 
will  be coordinated with  the City  Administrator and  will include, but  not  be 
limited  to, drafting,  preparation and review of ordinances  and resolutions, 
preparation  and/ or   review   of  all   contracts,   deeds,   legal   documents and 
instruments,  attendance  at   City   Council   meetings   upon   request   and   the 
rendering of legal opinions and such other legal services as the CITY or its duly 
elected and appointed officials may request or require. 

 
 

A RTICLE II - FEES AND COSTS 

The CITY agrees to pay the FIRM on the following basis: 

A.       The CITY agrees to pay the FIRM the sum of one hundred ninety- 
five ($195.00) dollars per hour for services of partners, one hundred 
seventy ($170.00) dollars per hour for services of associates, one 
hundred ($100.00) dollars per hour for services of legal interns, and 
sixty-five ($65.00) dollars per hour for support staff.   Hours are 
calculated in quarter-hour increments. 

 
B. The CITY shall reimburse  the FIRM for any and  all costs incurred 

by the FIRM associated  with providing representation to the CITY, 
including  but not limited  to meals, lodging, mileage, long distance 
telephone  charges,  photocopying charges, facsimile charges, filing 
fees, deposition transcription charges,  on-line  research,  arbitrator 
costs, etc. 

 
C.  The CITY agrees to pay a flat fee for travel time between  the FIRM 

and the CITY of $300.00 round  trip using Highway  97. If Highway 
97 is not open, an alternate  route will be billed at the hourly  rate 
above plus mileage at the Internal Revenue Service rate per mile). 



Representation and Fee Agreement 
City of Goldendale 
Page 2of 2 

 

ARTICLE III - TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 

The CITY shall  pay the FIRM at its 2nd  regularly  scheduled  council meeting  of 
each month  (3rd Monday  of the month)  provided  the billing for the  previous 
month  is  received  by  Tuesday,  prior  to  the  3rd Monday  of  the  month,  for 
voucher/warrant processing.  If billing is not received as indicated above, it will 
be paid on the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
 

ARTICLE IV- TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement  shall  become effective January 1, 2015, and shall  be subject to 
termination by either party upon fifteen (15) days written notice. 

 
Dated this day of 2014, the  parties  confirm  their 
agreement   to  the  above   terms  and  conditions   through  their  representative 
signatures below: 

 
 

CITY OF GOLDENDALE 
(CITY) 

MENKE JACKSON BEYER, LLP 
(FIRM) 

 
 
 
 

CLINTON BAZE 
Mayor 

G. SCOTT BEYER 
Partner 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 

CONNIE BYERS 
Clerk-Treasurer 



 

AGENDA BILL:  G9 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  UNIFORMED OFFICERS UNION CONTRACT 
FOR 2015-2017 

 
 
 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15, 2014 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUIRED: 

 
ORDINANCE  _  COUNCIL INFORMATION   .:....::X   

RESOLUTION   _  OTHER    _ 

MOTION    :X --- 

 
EXPLANATION: 
A 2015-2017 collective bargaining  agreement between the uniformed officers and the 
City has been negotiated. The changes from the current contract include the addition of 
a vacation buyback program (see page 24) and wage increases in the amount of 2% for 
each of the three years of the contract (see page 34). 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
MOTION: 

 
I MOVE TO AUTHORIZE  THE MAYOR  TO EXECUTE  A 2015 - 2017 COLLECTIVE 
BARGAINING  AGREEMENT    BETWEEN   THE   CITY   OF   GOLDENDALE   AND 
COUNCIL 2 WASHINGTON STATE COUNCIL OF COUNTY AND CITY EMPLOYEES 
REPRESENTING LOCAL 1533-G UNIFORMED OFFICERS. 



 

 
 
 

2015-2017 
 
 

COLLECTIVELY BARGAINED AGREEMENT 
 
 

Between 
 
 

CITY OF 
GOLDENDALE,WASHINGTON 

 
 

and 
 
 

COUNCIL 2 
WASHINGTON STATE COUNCILOF 

COUNTY AND CITY EMPLOYEES 

REPRESENTING 

LOCAL 1533-G 
UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES 

(POLICE DEPARTMENT OFFICERS) 
 
 
 
 

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE,COUNTY,AND 
MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES,AFL-CIO 

 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE 
 

JANUARY 1,2015 THROUGH DECEMBER 31,2017 



 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

ARTICLE I  PREAMBLE..................................................................................H........ . .....1 
ARTICLE II  RECOGNITION AND CHECK OFF.........................................................1 
ARTICLE III NONDISCRIMINATION ..........................................................................2 
ARTICLE IV DEFINITIONS ............... ................................................................................2 
ARTICLE V MANAGEMENT RIGIITS.............-...............................................................5 
ARTICLE VI EMPLOYEE RIGHTS..................................................................................6 
ARTICLE VII CONTRACTING OUT............................................,......,...........................9 
ARTICLE VIII NEPOTISM .....................................................................................................10 
ARTICLE IX SENIORITY..................................................................................................11 
ARTICLE X PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES..............................................................11 
ARTICLE XI DISCIPLINARY ACTION .........................................................................12 
ARTICLE XII HOURS OF WORK ......................................................................................15 
ARTICLE XIII LAY OFF AND RECALL...........................................................................18 
ARTICLE XIV HOLIDAYS...................................................................................-...............19 
ARTICLE XV VACATION I ANNUAL LEAVE ..............................................................21 
ARTICLE XVI SICK LEAVE AND SHARED SICK LEAVE POOL...............................25 
ARTICLE XVII OTHER LEAVES.........................................................................................28 
ARTICLE XVIII TRAINING AND TRAVEL.......................................................................29 
ARTICLE XIX GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE .....................................................................30 
ARTICLE XX UNION VISITS............................................................................................32 

\ 

ARTICLE XXI HEALTII AND WELFARE .......................................................................33 
ARTICLE XXII WAGES.........................................................................................................34 
ARTICLE XXIII JOB POSTING, TRANSFER AND PROMOTIONS................................36 
ARTICLE XXIV ENTIRE CBA ...............................................................................................37 
ARTICLE XXV SEPARABILITY ...........................................,........................37 
ARTICLE XXVI SAVINGS CLAUSE ....................................................................................37 
ARTICLE XXVII TERM OF AGREEMENT...........................................................................37 

 
 
Addendum 11.3 Verbal Reprimand Addendum 
16.21  Shared Leave Contribution 
Addendum 16.22 Shared  Leave Pool Application 
Addendum 18.1  Training and Travel 
Addendum 22.8  Wage Grid 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Page 1 

2015-2017 CBA Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 

 

 
 

ARTICLE I- PREAMBLE 
 
 

1.1      This Collectively  Bargained  Agreement  hereinafter referred  to as the "CBA" is 
between the City of Goldendale, hereinafter referred to as the "Employer/' and Council 
2, Washington State Council of County  and City Employees, representing Local 1533-G, 
American  Federation  of State, County  and Municipal  Employees, AFL-CIO, hereinafter 
referred  to as the "Union." 

 

 
1.2      The purpose of the Employer  and Union in entering into this CBA is to set forth 
their entire CBA with regard  to wages, hours and working conditions so as to promote 
efficient operations; the morale  and  security  of employees covered  by this CBA; and 
harmonious relations  giving  full  recognition  to the  rights  and  responsibilities of the 
Employer,  the Union and the employees. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE II -RECOGNITION AND CHECK OFF 
 
 

2.1       Exclusive Bargaining  Agent:  The City CBA recognizes the Union as the sole and 
exclusive  bargaining agent  for all regular  full-time  and  regular  part-time  Uniformed 
Employees in the Police Division as certified by the Public Employment Relations 
Commission (PERC) on July 7, 1993, Case #10519-E-93-1739 (adjusted  in 1997 for RCW 
41.56.430), excluding   the  Chief,  Assistant  Chief, management personnel  and  elected 
officials. 

 
2.2       Membership:  All employees and  respective  positions  who are members  of the 
Union  on the effective date of this CBA shall remain members  in the Union.  All future 
employees shall, as a condition  of employment, become members of the Union within 
thirty-one (31) days  after  being  employed.   All newly  created  Bargaining  Unit  jobs 
and/or positions shall  be noticed  to the Union Representative within  ten (10) working 
days  of being created.   Wages, hours and  working  conditions  for said  position(s) shall 
be negotiated by the parties. 

 
2.3       Dues Deduction: The Employer  agrees to deduct monthly  Union dues  from the 
wages  of each employee.  Such deductions shall be remitted  to the Washington State 
Council   of  County  and  City  Employees,  P.O.  Box  750, Everett,  WA  989206-0750. 
Included with  each  remittance shall  be a list of names  indicating  the salary  and  the 
amount deducted for each employee. The Union agrees  to indemnify  the Employer and 
save  the Employer harmless from and against any and  all claims, against  the Employer 
arising  out  of administration of this  Article, including the  amounts of  Union  Dues 
deducted from earnings. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Page 2 

2015-2017 CBA Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 

 

 
 

2.4      A_pplicability of Personnel  Policy:   If  the CBA does  not specifically address  a 
subject matter, then the City of Goldendale's Personnel Policies will apply to bargaining 
unit members. 

 
2.5      Personnel  Policies Changes:   During  the term of this CBA, if the City Council 
decides  to modify  the personnel  policies referenced  in 2.4 above which would  change 
the  wages,  hours,   or  working   conditions   addressed  in  the  personnel   policies  of 
Employees  covered  by this CBA, then  the City agrees  to negotiate about  the changes 
including negotiations subsequent to implementation if necessary. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE III- NONDISCRIMINATION 
 
 

3.1      Nondiscrimination:  It is mutually  agreed  that there shall be no discrimination 
because  of lawful  union  activity, union  membership, race, creed, color, religion, sex, 
age, marital status, national origin or physical, mental or sensory  handicaps that do not 
prevent proper  performance of the  job, unless  based  upon  a bona  fide occupational 
qualification.    The Union  and  Employer  representatives shall  work  cooperatively  to 
assure  the achievement of equal  employment opportunity.   Furthermore, employees 
who feel they have been discriminated against shall be encouraged to use the Grievance 
Procedure set under this CBA prior to seeking relief through other channels. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE IV-  DEFINITIONS 
 
 

The  following  definitions apply  throughout the  CBA as  used  herein,  the  following 
terms unless the context indicates another  meaning: 

 
4.1      Anniversary Date:   Original  date  of hire into  the Employer's  services, adjusted 
for leaves without pay, and/or breaks in service. 

 
4.2      Bona Fide Emergency:  Inclusive of but not limited  to life threatening situations, 
civil  disorders, natural disasters,  sudden  unexpected happenings, unforeseen 
occurrences  or  conditions,   complications   of  circumstances,  sudden  or   unexpected 
occasion for action; Acts of God. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Page 3 

2015-2017 CBA Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 

 

 

 
 
 

4.3      Class:    A  group   of  positions  sufficiently  similar  in  duties,  responsibilities, 
authority, and minimum qualifications to permit combining them under a single title, 
and to permit an application of common standards for selection and compensation. 

 

 
4.4      Dismissal: The termination of employment of a regular full-time, regular part- 
time employee pursuant to Article XIX. 

 
4.5      Employees:  All reference to employee in this CBA, and designates both sexes. 
Whenever  the male gender  is used, it shall be construed  to include both male and 
female employees. 

 

 
4.6      Employer: The City of Goldendale. 

 
 

4.7      Employer's Appointing Authority: The Mayor or his/her designee. 
 
 

4.8      Immediate Family:   An employee's  immediate family includes the employee's 
spouse  (or domestic  partner),  parents, grandparents,  brothers, sisters, children,  step 
children, and grandchildren. 

 

 
4.9      Position:    A  group  of  duties  and  responsibilities  normally  assigned  to  an 
employee. 

 

 
4.10    Promotionffransfer: If the six month  (6) probationary  period of an employee 
who has been promoted/transferred to a new classification is found to be unacceptable, 
the employee shall have the right to return  to the position from which the employee 
was promoted/transferred.  Any employee who is promoted/transferred  to a higher 
classification shall be placed at the minimum salary for that class unless that minimum 
is lower than or the same as the employee's salary at the time of the promotion/transfer. 
At no time shall the rate of pay in the higher classification be less than the previous rate 
of pay that  the employee received in the classification from which the employee was 
promoted. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Page 4 

2015-2017 CBA Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 

 

 
 

4.11    Regular  Full-Time Employees:    An  employee  who  performs  bargaining   unit 
work on a full-time basis (forty (40) hours per week.) 

 

 
4.12     Regular Part-Time Employee:  Employees who perform bargaining unit work on 
a scheduled  basis for an indefinite period of time and who has a normal work schedule 
less than forty (40) hours per week.  Said employees are entitled to receive base pay for 
the  position, the opportunity to progress  across the  pay plan  structure  in accordance 
with the length of service, and are also entitled to benefits on a pro rata basis, excluding 
dental  and  vision  insurance.    Regular  part-time  employees work  less then  eight  (8) 
hours  a day, or less than forty  (40) hours  a week on a permanent basis, for six (6) or 
more consecutive months. 

 

 
4.13     Regular  Seasonal  Employees:   Employees  hired  to work  in a regular  position 
more than  three (3) months  but less than  six (6) months.   Seasonal employees  are not 
subject to the provisions of this CBA. 

 

 
4.14     Resignation:  The   voluntary  action   by   an   employee  of   terminating  their 
employment. 

 

 
4.15     Seniority:    (Definition  Only)  Seniority  for  regular   full-time  employees and 
regular   part-time   employees  shall  consist  of  continuous  service  of  an  employee 
(including  temporary employee  time) for that period of time beginning from their date 
of hire . No employee shall have seniority established  prior  to satisfactory  completion 
of the probation period.   The employee's earned  seniority  shall not be lost because  of 
absence due  to illness, authorized leave of absence, or temporary lay off. In the case of 
authorized leave of absence without  pay or lay off, the employee will not earn seniority 
during the period of absence.  Seniority terminates when an employee resigns, retires, is 
discharged or is not rehired within one (1) year of lay off. 

 

 
4.16    Temporary Employee:  Employee(s) hired  to work for a defined period  of time, 
in a regular  position, or for overload,  or special  project work, not to exceed  three  (3) 
months.   Temporary employees shall  not  accrue  benefits  and  are not  subject  to the 
provisions of this CBA. 

 

 
4.17    Union:   Council  2, Washington  State  Council  of County  and  City  Employees, 
Local 1533-G, American  Federation  of State, County,  and  Municipal  Employees,  AFL- 
CIO. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local1533-G - Uniformed  Employees 

PageS 

2015-2017 CBA Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 

 

 
 

ARTICLE V- MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 
 
 

5.1      Core  Mana  ement   Ri hts:     The  Union  agrees  that  the  Employer  has  core 
management rights which are controlled  by the Employer.  The Employer has the right 
to make and implement .those decisions without negotiations  about the decision(s) and 
the effect(s). Those core rights include,.but are not limited to the following: 

(a)  The right to hire, transfer, promote, and/or layoff employees; 
(b)      The  right   to  adopt,   change  and/or   discontinue   operations,   practices, 

and/or  the work of employees; 
(c) The right to establish and/or modify job classifications and descriptions; 
(d)      The right to adopt  and/or  modify work rules, procedures, policies, and/or 

directives; 
(e)  The right to discipline employees; 
(f)       The   right   to   adopt,   modify   and/or   make   any   and   all   budgetary 

determinations; 
(g)  The right to determine the hours of work; 
(h)  The right to make and enforce reasonable safety rules and regulations; 
(i)  The right to implement new equipment and procedures; 
(j)       The  right  to determine and  declare  when  an  emergency  exists and  the 

actions necessary to deal with the emergency.   Emergency includes life 
threatening situations,     civil    disorders,   natural     disasters,    sudden 
unexpected   happenings,    unforeseen      occurrences     or     conditions, 
complications   of  circumstances,   sudden  or  unexpected   occasions   for 
action. 

 

 
5.2      Cooperation:   The Union  agrees  to  give  full  cooperation  in  carrying  out  the 
functions  vested  in  the  Employer   for  the  conduct  of  its  business  and  the  efficient 
management and  operation,  and  the  prevention of violations  by its members  of the 
provisions of the  CBA or  the  rules  and  regulations herein  agreed  to.   Violations  by 
employees of the provisions  of this CBA or the rules and regulations  referred  to above 
will warrant reasonable disciplinary action. 

 

 
5.3      Statutory Law:   Nothing  in this CBA shall be interpreted to interfere  with  the 
rights  of management, inclusive  of  the City  Council,  the Mayor,  the  Administrator 
and/or  the Chief. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Page6 

2015 - 2017 CBA Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 

 

 
 

5.4      Past Practice: The Employer may change, alter or terminate past practices subject 
to the  Employer  providing  the Union  thirty  (30) calendar  days written  notice of the 
proposed  change during  which time the Employer, if the Union so requests, will meet 
with  the Union to negotiate  its decision  to change past practice and  the effects thereof 
for a period not to exceed the thirty (30) calendar days, after which time the Employer is 
free to proceed with the change to past practices.  In the event of a bona fide emergency, 
as defined  herein, the Employer has the right to change past practices giving as much 
notice as is practicable  under  these circumstances  and an opportunity to negotiate the 
matter  with  the Union; all of which  shall occur  within  adequate  time  to permit  the 
Employer to respond  to the emergency. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE VI - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 
 
 

6.1    Personal  Life:   The  private  and  personal  life and  activities  of  the employee, 
unless  representing a  conflict of interest,  unless  detrimental to the employee's work 
perfqrmance or  unless directly  detrimental to the Employer's services, detrimental to 
the Department's services and  the programs administered by the Agency, are not 
legitimate grounds or cause for disciplinary, discriminatory or other comparable actions 
initiated  by management. 

 

 
6.2      Personal  Rights:  In the event  of charges or complaints  made  to the Employer 
against any employee, except where  there is clear and immediate danger  to person(s) or 
property, no Employer disciplinary action shall be initiated in response  to such charge 
or  complaint  until  the  employee  has  been  apprised  of  the  allegation  and  has  had 
reasonable opportunity to respond, in which instance the employee shall be informed of 
the identity of the person or party making such charges or allegations, except in the case 
of  harassment  or  other   similar   cases  where   the  accuser's   identity   must   be  kept 
confidential  by law.  The parties  respect the individual's right to confront their accuser 
except  as  provided  above,  but  if the  accuser  identity  is provided, there  shall  be no 
retaliation  by  the  Employer  or  any  of  the employee's representatives in  regards  to 
charges  or complaints.   If there  is retaliation, the employee  will be subject  to 
termination/discharge.  If the Employer  determines to bring disciplinary  action against 
an employee for any  reason,  the employee  shall be apprised  of rights  of appeal  and 
representation, as provided by the Union and the grievance procedure. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Page7 

2015 - 2017 CBA Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 

 

 
 

6.3       Representational Rights:   Each employee or a designated  representative  (with 
written  authorization  from  the  employee),  management  and  management's 
representatives  shall have access to the employee's personnel file for the purpose  of 
grievances  and   disciplinary   actions  or  other   proper   purposes.     All  derogatory 
information  that  becomes a  matter  of  record  and  is  inserted  into  the  employee's 
personnel  file shall be brought  to the attention of the employee.   The employee shall 
have ample opportunity  to respond  and either challenge the propriety or validity for 
inclusion in the personnel file or to insert in the personnel file documentation  the 
employee thinks necessary to challenge contentions made in the derogatory material. 
Employees have the right to examine their personnel file, as it is maintained by the City 
of Goldendale.  An authorized representative of the Union may examine an employee's 
personnel file if the employee so authorizes  in writing.   All material placed into an 
employee's file, excluding customary and usual bookkeeping records, shall be brought 
to the attention of the employee and signed by the employee signifying that they have 
read it.  The employee shall be given the opportunity  to attach their comments.  A copy 
of any entry pertaining to job competence or conduct will be given to the employee. 

 

 
6.4      Weingarten Representation:  Employees shall have the right to have present their 
representative  at any meeting between Management and the employee if said meeting 
is called for disciplinary consideration  adversely affecting their conditions of 
employment; or if the meeting is anticipated  to be confrontational, respective of their 
Weingarten Rights. 

 

 
6.5      Working  Conditions:    The  Employer  and  employee(s) will cooperate  in  the 
endeavor  to maintain safe and healthful working conditions.  The Employer agrees that 
no employee should work or be directed to work in a manner or under conditions that 
do  not  at  least  comply  with  minimum  accepted  safety  practices or  standards as 
established  by the Washington State Division of Safety and the Washington State 
Department of Labor and Industries. 

 

 
6.6     Grievance Rights:  Any employee within the bargaining unit who believes they 
have a grievance may seek their remedy by the grievance procedure  provided  in the 
CBA  herein.    A  grievance  is  defined   as  a  dispute   regarding  the  interpretation, 
application or implementation of the specific terms and conditions of this CBA. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

PageS 

2015 - 2017 CBA Original w/Signatures 12-5-14 

 

 
 

6.7      Work R ules:  Employees shall be made aware in writing  of existing work  rules, 
new work rules, or changes to existing work rules.  Except in a declared emergency, the 
Employer will give ten (10) working  days notice prior to a rule taking effect. 

 

 
6.8      Personal Property Loss:  Employees  may submit claims for work related  loss of 
personal   property   unavoidably  lost   or   damaged   while   working,   subject   to   the 
Employer's approval. 

 

 
6.9     Local Union Officers/Stewards:  Every Local Union Officer/Steward  shall be 
recognized as a representative of the Union. 

 
(a)      The name of the Union Officers and Stewards shall be affirmed in writing 

by  the Local Union  Secretary  to the Employer  within  ten (10) working 
days after this CBA is signed, and  thereafter within ten (10) working  days 
after  any  change  in  the  designation   of  the  local  Union  Officer(s)  or 
Steward(s). Local Union Officer and Steward  selection is an internal  Local 
Union process which is not governed by this CBA. 

 

 
(b)      The  Union  Officers  and  Stewards may  engage  in  the  adjustments of 

grievances  with the Employer. The Employer may require the adjustment 
of grievances  on the Employer's time, without  loss of employee paid  time 
when circumstances require. 

 

 
(c)      The Union Officers or Stewards shall not leave their job in order  to contact 

other employees regarding grievance resolution  without  prior permission 
from the Employer. 

 

 
(d)      Through  the Employer, employees  may voluntarily donate  compensatory 

time or vacation  time to the local Union Officers and Shop  Stewards  for 
paid time lost for Union business.                                              · 

 

 
(e)      A Union  Officer  or Steward has no  authority to  give orders  regarding 

working  assignments to any employee except in the case where  the Union 
Officer/Steward is in a lead or supervisory position.  The Employer shall 
have authority to impose disciplinary  action in the event a Union 
Officer/Steward acts without authority in this regard. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page 9 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

6.10    Personnel   File/Records:     For  each  City  employee,   a  personnel  file  shall  be 
maintained.  The file shall show  name, title, department, salary, past changes in status 
as  an  employee,  and  whatever   additional information   these  rules or  the  Employer 
requires.   Changes in employee status shall be recorded in the respective employee's 
personnel  file.   This file shall be retained  in accordance  with state and federal  record 
keeping and personnel  file regulations. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE VII· CONTRACTING OUT   
 
 

7.1      Contracting Out/Subcontracting:  The Employer  shall have the right  to contract 
out  or subcontract work  without negotiations  about  the decision and/or  its effects the 
work which has previously or historically been contracted  out or subcontracted. 

 

 
7.2      Bargaining  the Effects of Contracting Out/Subcontracting:  The Employer  shall 
have the right to contract out or subcontract work  not previously contracted  out which 
would  adversely  affect the normal  hours  of work (not overtime, nor call-back, nor any 
other  types of premium pays or work  hours) of current  bargaining unit employees at 
the time the Employer  makes such  position.   Prior to the Employer implementing the 
contracting out or subcontracting, the Employer  will provide thirty (30) calendar  days 
written  notice of this position  to the Union, and provide  an opportunity to bargain 
collectively in good faith the decision of the Employer and its effects. 

 

 
7.3       Bona  Fide  Emergency:    The  notice  and  discussion   provisions  of  this  Article 
regarding the Employer's position  to contract  out  or subcontract work  and  its effect 
shall not apply in situations where  the Employer  contracts out or subcontracts work  to 
provide services in the event of a bona fide emergency. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page 10 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

ARTICLE VIII - NEPOTISM 
 
 

8.1  Employment of Relatives·(Nepotism): 
 
 

(a)      Employee's   immediate   family  members   and   those  living  together   as 
domestic  partners  will  not  be employed  by  the City  under  any  of  the 
following circumstances: 

 
(1)       Where one of the parties would  have authority  or practical power 

to supervise, appoint, remove, or discipline the other; 
 

(2)       Where one party would be responsible for auditing  the work of the 
other; or, 

 
(3)       Where other circumstances exist which would place the parties in a 

situation  of actual or reasonably foreseeable conflict between  the 
interest of one or both parties and the best interests of the City. 

 
(b)       No relatives closer than fourth  degree  as defined in RCW 11.02.005(5) as 

now codified or hereafter amended, shall be employed within the same 
department of the City.   Departments are defined  as those approved by 
the City Council and  as shown  in the current  organizational  chart of the 
City. 

 
(c)      If two  employees  marry,  become  immediate family  members  or  begin 

living together  as domestic partners, and as a result, the circumstances 
prohibited  by Section (a) or (b) exist, only one of the employees  will be 
permitted   to  stay  employed with  the  City.    The decision  as  to  which 
employee will remain  with the City must be made by the two employees 
within  thirty (30) calendar days of the date they marry, become immediate 
family  members,  or begin sharing  living quarters  with each other.  If no 
decision   has   been   made   during   this  time,  the  most   recently   hired 
employee will be terminated. 

 

 
8.2  Definitions/Nepotism: [For Purpose of This Article Only] 

 
 

(a)      Immediate   Family:     An   employee's  immediate   family   includes   the 
employee's spouse,  child,  parent,  siblings,  mothers  and  fathers-in-law, 
sons  and  daughters-in-law, grandparents, and  step  relatives of the same 
degree listed above. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page 11 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

ARTICLE IX- SENIORITY 
 
 

9.1     Seniority:   Length of service with the Employer, as well as individual skills, 
knowledge,  and  efficiency of the  employees,  shall be taken  into consideration when 
recalling, promoting, or transferring. 

 

 
9.2      Probationary Period: 

 
 

(a)      In the event an employee accepts a transfer or a promotion, and in spite of 
conscientious  effort, fails to meet job standards within the six (6) months 
probationary  period   they   will  revert   to  their  former   position.      The 
employee  may bump  a probationer within their original department first, 
then a probationer in another  department provided  they are qualified. 

 
(b)      An employee  transferring back to a position they previously held and had 

completed  an initial probation period will not be required  to serve an 
additional probation. 

 

 
9.3      Seniority  Ceases  to  Accrue:   Seniority,  or  probationary days  worked   towards 
seniority, will be canceled and employment terminated by any of the following events: 

 
(a)  Voluntary retirement; 

 
(b)  Discharge for just cause; 

 
(c) Resignation or termination; 

 
(d)  Continuing layoff/RIF in excess of twelve (12) consecutive months. 

 
9.4      Written  Seniority  List:   The Employer  will issue a written  seniority  list  to the 
Union's  President  on  or  before  January  151h   each  year.   The  Union  will  have  until 
February 151h  to consider Employer errors and submit corrections. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE X- PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES 
 
 

10.1    Probationary Employee:   A new employee will be on probation until they have 
actually  worked  twelve (12) consecutive months  after completion  of the basic law 
enforcement academy in the classification.  During this period, the new probationary 
employee: 



City of Goldendale CBA Page 12 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

(a) Will not have seniority or other job rights; 
 

(b)  May be laid off or terminated at the discretion of the Employer; 
 

(c)      Will be evaluated  by the department head during  probation  to help gain 
regular employee status; 

 
(d)      Upon   the  successful   completion  of  the  probationary  period,  the  new 

employee  will be entered  on  the seniority  list as of the original  date  of 
original hire; 

 
(e)      Notice  of end  of  probationary period  shall  be given  in  writing  to  the 

employee within five (5) working days after completion of the one (1) year 
probationary period, the period being computed  from the original date of 
hire   or   from   the   date   of  successful   completion   of  the  basic   law 
enforcement  academy, whichever is later; 

(f) Employees on probation do not have the right to the grievance procedure. 

(g) Employees  promoted  to a higher  classification  must  complete  a six (6) 
month probationary period. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE XI - DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 
 

11.1    Implementation: If the Employer has a reason to discipline an employee, it shall 
take  reasonable  measures to carry  out  the  discipline  in  a  manner  which  will  least 
embarrass  the employee  if possible.  The Employer  shall have the right to implement 
the following forms of discipline: 

 
(a) Verbal Reprimand: Supervisor or Department Head; 

 
(b)  Written Reprimand:  Department Head or Designee; 

 
(c)      Suspension Without Pay:  Department Head, Administrator, Mayor (up to 

ten (10) working days); 
 

(d)      Demotion  (if  applicable):   City  Administrator or Mayor, in conjunction 
with the Department Head; 

 
(e)  Termination:  City  Administrator  or  Mayor,  in  conjunction   with   the 

Department Head. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page 13 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

11.2    Degrees. of Discipline: The degree of discipline administered  is dependent on the 
severity  of the infraction, the employee's record of discipline, performance reviews and 
other  relevant  factors except  as provided herein.    Disciplinary  action will follow  the 
doctrine of "just cause." 

 
11.3    Timelines:   References  to  disciplinary  actions  in an  employee's  personnel  file 
shall be maintained in the personnel file as follows: 

 
(a)      If the disciplinary action is a verbal reprimand, the reference thereto shall 

be for the supervisor's use for a period  not  to exceed a period  of twelve 
(12) months.   At the annual  review,  the employee  may  request  that  the 
verbal  reprimand be  removed  from  their  supervisor's file.   The  verbal 
reprimand form is attached  as Addendum 11.3. 

 
(b)      If the disciplinary  action is a written  reprimand, the reference thereto shall 

remain in the employee's personnel file for a period of twelve (12) months 
from  the date of the last infraction.  At the annual  review, the employee 
may request  that the written  reprimand be removed from their personnel 
file.  If there exists another  disciplinary action as a result of a similar or 
substantially similar form of misconduct,  then and in that event, both 
references  to  the  written  reprimand shall  remain  in  the  personnel   file 
twelve (12) months from the date of the last infraction. 

 

 
(c)      If the  disciplinary  action  is a suspension without  pay, then  and  in that 

event,  said  disciplinary action  shall  remain  in  the personnel file for  a 
period  of two (2) years from the date of infraction.  At the annual review, 
the employee may request  that the suspension be removed  from  their 
personnel file.   If there  exists another disciplinary  action  resulting  in 
suspension without  pay  as  a result  of  a similar or substantially similar 
form of misconduct, then and in that event, both references to suspensions 
without pay shall remain in the personnel file for a period of two (2) years 
from the date of the last infraction. 

 

 
(d)      Disciplinary    action   consisting    of   a   discharge    shall   remain    in   the 

employee's personnel  file on a permanent basis. 
 

(e)      If a written  reprimand, or suspension discipline is issued  to an employee, 
that  employee  has  the  right  to attach  their  version, or  rebuttal of  that 
discipline to be placed in their personnel file along with the discipline. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page 14 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

11.4    Notice:  Untimely  notice of disciplinary  action shall not negate the disciplinary 
action.   The employee shall  be informed  before any  pre-disciplinary  or  disciplinary 
meeting  of the subject of the meeting  and  their  right  to Union representation at that 
meeting. 

 

 
11.5    Signatures:  Employees shall sign disciplinary actions as evidence only of having 
read the disciplinary  action.  A copy of disciplinary  action document shall be provided 
to the employee and the Union at the time the employee signs it. The employee shall be 
afforded   the  opportunity  to  submit   a  letter  of  explanation/rebuttal  which  will  be 
attached  to the Employer's disciplinary action document. 

 

 
11.6    Suspension  With Pay: At the discretion of the Employer or department head, an 
employee  may be suspended with pay and benefits pending investigation of allegations 
of  misconduct   when   the  nature   of  the  allegation   compromises   the  ability  of  the 
employee  to perform  their duties. If the charges are substantiated, disciplinary  action 
will  be  taken  in  accordance   with   the  nature   of  the  offense.    If the  charges   are 
unfounded, the employee will be restored  to duty and provided  a letter of exoneration. 
Under all circumstances, the employee's due process rights will be respected. 

 

 
11.7     Iust  Cause:    Employees  may  be  disciplined   for  just cause.    Employees  may 
receive  disciplinary   action  up  to  and  including  discharge  for  misconducts and/or 
violations  including but not limited to the following examples: 

 

 
(a)  Tardiness or absence from work without just cause; 

 
(b  Abuse of sick lave; 

 
(c) Willful falsification of reports; 

(d) Unauthorized use of equipment; 

(e) Theft of City property; 

(f) Willful damage  to City property; 

(g)  Recklessness; 

(h)  Malfeasance, misfeasance, or neglect of duty; 
 

(i)  Incompetence; 
 

G) Insubordination or gross misconduct; 



City of Goldendale CBA Page 15 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

(k)      Using  or  working   with   the  presence   of  intoxicants  or  drugs   in  an 
employee's blood, breath  and  /or  urine  (See Personnel  Manual  for  the 
Drug  and  Alcohol Testing  Policy and  Procedures Manual).   The parties 
have agreed  that the Personnel  Manual Drug  and Alcohol Testing Policy 
and Procedures shall apply to non-CDL employees in this bargaining unit; 

 
(1)         Failure  to report  for  work  at  the end  of an approved  leave of absence 

period or using a leave of absence for reasons other then those for which it 
was granted;    . 

 
(m)  Failure to report for work after cancellation of leave of absence; 

(n)  Failure to report to work after a layoff; 

(o) Excessive abuse of rest periods after warning  by supervisor. 
 
 

11.8    Access to Personnel  Files:   Employees  shall  be given  immediate,  uncensored 
access to their personnel file upon demand. The Union's representative may be granted 
access to personnel files pursuant to PERC rulings. 

 
11.9    Placement of Materials:  The Employer shall notify the employee when any and 
all disciplinary  material is placed into  the employee's personnel  file.  The employee's 
signature, denoting  that  the  employee   has  read  the  material,  is  required   on  these 
materials (see 6.3). 

 
 

ARTICLE XII·HOURS OF WORK   
 
 

12.1     Regular  Hours:    The  regular   hours  of  work  each  day  shall  be  consecutive. 
Reference to consecutive hours  of work in the balance of this Article shall be construed 
generally  to include lunch periods. 

 
12.2    Scheduled Work Days: Scheduled  work days shall consist of consecutive hours, 
including meal periods  and  paid  rest periods,  respective  of the Fair Labor Standards 
Act (FLSA). The rest/relief periods will be paid as though the time had been worked. 

 
12.3    Work Week:  The work week shall be forty {40) hours of work for all Uniformed 
employees, inclusive of a meal period  of thirty  (30) minutes.   The normal  work  week 
shall consist of five (5) consecutive eight (8) hour days, followed by two (2) consecutive 
days of rest, or four (4) consecutive 10 hour days, followed by three (3) consecutive days 
of rest, except as may be agreed  to by the parties.   However,  in order  to provide the 
Uniformed employees  the benefit of shift rotations  an exception  to the SIB's, or 4/10's 
formula shall occur during  regular shift rotations, vacations and emergencies. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Loca] 1533-G- Uniformed EmpJoyees 

Page 16 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015-2017 CBA 

 

 

 
 
 

12.4    Work Shift:   Eight (8) or  ten (10) consecutive  hours  of work  shall constitute  a 
normal work shift.  All employees shall be scheduled to work on a regular work shift. 
Each shift shall have a regular  starting  and quitting  time.  Employees understand that 
special  assignments  and  bona-fide  emergencies  may  interrupt or  extend  the  given 
regularly  scheduled work shift. 

 

 
12.5   Posting of Work Schedules:   Normal  work  schedules  showing  the employee's 
shifts, working days and hours as established  by the Employer shall be posted or made 
available  to the employee  at  least one  (1) calendar  week  prior  to the effective date, 
unless  a  bona  fide  emergency  should  dictate  otherwise.    It shall  be  posted  on  the 
department bulletin board at all times. 

 

 
12.6    Relief Periods:   Employees  will be afforded  a fifteen (15) minute  relief period 
during each shift half of four  (4) hours or more duration.  These relief periods  will be 
paid as time worked. 

 

 
12.7    Overtime: 

 
(a)      Overtime:   Work  authorized and  performed  in excess of the scheduled 

work day or work week. 
 

(b)       Each employee  shall  receive one  and  one-half  (Ph) times  their  regular 
straight  time hourly rate of pay for the following: 

 
(1) All work authorized and performed  in excess of forty (40) hours  in 

one week. 
 

(2)      All work  authorized and performed  in excess of eight (8) hours in 
any eight (8) our work day, or all work  performed  in excess of ten 
(10) hours in any ten (10) hour work day, if working a 4/10 shift. 

 
(c)      Holiday pay, including the "Personal  Holiday," shall be included  as "time 

worked"  for  the  purpose  of  determining  whether   an  employee   has 
"worked" forty (40) hours in a week. 

 
(d)      Vacation leave, sick leave, comp time, and/or  bereavement leave, shall be 

considered  as "time  worked" for the purpose of determining whether an 
employee has "worked" forty (40) hours  in a week, or eight (8) hours  in a 
day. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  17 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

12.9    Fourteen  (14) Day  Notice:   The  Employer,  upon  fourteen  (14) working   days 
written  notice to the Union, may change  the work  schedule  from or to 5/8's or 4/10's 
respectively, emergencies excepted. 

 

 
12.10  Callback: 

 
 

(a)      Callback:  A time when  an employee  is called to perform non-scheduled 
work. 

 
(b)      Employees  who  are  called  back  to work  shall  receive one and  one-half 

(1.5) time their regular  straight time hourly  rate of pay for all hours  work; 
provided, however,  the employee shall receive not less than two (2) hours 
at the overtime rate. If an employee  is called out a second time outside of 
the first two (2) hour  period, the employee  shall receive an additional 
emergency callback of not less than two (2) hours  at the overtime rate. 

 

 
(1)      Previously   scheduled  overtime   attendance  shall  be  paid   at  a 

minimum rate of one (1) hour at the overtime  rate of pay (time and 
one half (1.5) the employee's regular rate of pay). 

 
(2)      By example, these scheduled overtimes shall be f or but not limited 

to the following  types:  Subpoenaed court  time, council meetings, 
planning meetings, training meetings, and committee meetings. 

 

 
12.11  Court Time: 

 
(a)       When an employee is required  to appear  and/or  testify in court as a result 

of their employment during  regular work hours, they shall be paid at their 
regular  hourly  rate of pay  and  shall apply  as time worked  towards the 
forty (40) hour overtime  threshold. 

 
(b)       When an employee is required to appear  or  testify without  twenty four 

(24) hour  notice, they  shall  be paid  at the rate of one and  one-half  (1.5) 
times their  regular  hourly  rate  of pay for the actual  time in court  with a 
minimum of two (2) hours. 

 

 
12.12  Safety  Time  Off:    The  Employer  shall  make  a  reasonable effort  to  provide 
employees with a minimum of  twelve  (12) hours  Safety Time off between scheduled 
shifts. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  18 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

12.13 Shift Exchange: Uniformed employees may exchange shifts when unforeseen 
circumstances  arise provided  they first request and  receive approval  from the Chief of 
Police  or  their  designee.    Such  exchange  of  shifts  does  not  constitute  a  basis  for 
entitlement to overtime compensation. 

 
 

ARTICLE XDI- LAY OFF AND RECALL 
 
 

13.1    Lay Off/Redtiction In Force (RlF): Layoff, although  not limited to the following, 
shall ordinarily be for lack of work and/or  lack of funds. The Employer has the right to 
determine which classification(s) will be the subject of layoffs and  the Employer  will 
notify the Union regarding the classification(s) which will be subjected to layoffs. If it is 
determined that layoffs are necessary, employees will be laid off in the following order: 

 
(a)      In the event of a layoff, employees  will be laid off from  the affected  job 

classification(s), giving consideration  to seniority within the affected 
classification and  the ability  of the employee  to perform  the remaining 
work available,  without further  training  as determined  by the Employer. 
When  two (2) or more employees  have  relatively equal experience, skill 
and ability to do the work without further  training as determined by the 
Employer, the employee(s) with the least seniority will be laid off. 

 
(b)      Further, a senior person  whose  classification  has been  determined to be 

the subject of the layoff may bump  down into another classification within 
the Department based on seniority, skills and knowledge,  special 
qualifications, no further need of training and ability to do the work, all as 
determined by the Employer  and  in accordance with Civil Service Board 
Rules. 

 
13.2   Recalled  To Employment:   After  lay  off, a  recalled  employee  must  normally 
report   for  work   within   twenty-four   (24) hours   after  being  formally   notified   by 
registered  mail. The employee will notify the Employer of their intent to return  to work 
within  twenty-four  (24) hours of the registered  mail notification.  If the period of layoff 
has exceeded thirty (30) days, the employee will be allowed five (5) working days from 
the date the registered  mail letter is received to report  to work.  In order  to be eligible 
for recalt  the employee must keep on file with the Employer a current mailing address. 

 
(a)      Employees  called   to  return   from   lay  off  to  a  position   which   they 

previously held and had completed an initial probationary period  will not 
be required  to serve  an additional probation, except if the position  to be 
filled has changed substantially or if certifications have expired or are 
required, as determined by the Employer. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  19 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 

 
 
 

13.3    Recall Status:   Employees  who are laid off shall be placed on recall status  for a 
period  of one (1) year.  If there is a recall, employees who are still on recall status  shall 
be recalled in the inverse order of their layoff. 

 

 
13.4    Recall Process:  When an employee is recalled, the Employer will send a certified 
letter  to the employee  advising  the employee  of the recall.  An employee interested in 
returning to work must  respond within five (5) working days after receiving the letter 
by written communication to the Employer. 

 

 
13.5    Removal from Recall Status:  Employees on lay-off status who have been recalled 
to  the  classification  from  which  they  have  been  laid  off  and  have  refused  shall  be 
removed  from recall status. 

 
 

13.6    Accruals:    Benefits shall  not  accrue  during lay  off.   Employees  recalled  who 
accept  the recall within  one (1) year from the date  of the lay off shall have previously 
accrued seniority  and sick leave prior to lay off restored. Recalled employees shall not 
be required  to serve a six (6) or twelve (12) month  probationary period. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE XIV - HOLIDAYS 
 
 

14.1    Paid Holidays:  These holidays shall  be designated as paid  holidays  for  those 
employees who fill regular positions: 

 
Holiday Dates to be Observed 

New Year's Day January 1 
Martin Luther King Day 3rd Monday in January 
President's' Day 3rd Monday in February 
Memorial Day_ Last Monday in May  
Independence Day July4 
Labor Day 1st Monday in September 
Veteran's'  Day November  11 
Thanksgiving Day 41h  Thursday in November 
Day After Thanksgiving 41h  Friday in November 
Christmas December  25 

Two (2) Floating Holidays at Employee's choice. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  20 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

14.2    Floating Holidays:    Each employee  may  select  two  (2) floating holidays  each 
calendar year, and the  Employer must grant the holiday provided: 

 
(a)      The employee  has been continuously  employed  by the City for more than 

six (6) months. 
 

(b)      The  floating   holiday   must   be   taken   during  the   calendar   year   or 
entitlement to the day will lapse, except when an employee has requested 
a floating holiday and the request has been denied. 

 
(c) The employee  and the supervisor may agree upon an alternate date. 
(d)      If, however, the employee  is working  four  (4) ten (10) hour  days work 

week,  the  additional   two  (2) hours  holiday   pay  may  come  from  the 
vacation leave balance. 

 

 
14.3    Holiday Pro-Rated for Part-Time Workers:  Regular part-time employees shall be 
paid straight time on a pro-rated basis, based on regularly scheduled hours of work. 

 

 
14.5    Holiday  Scheduled  During  Time Off:  If an  employee  receives the designated 
holiday  off as part of his/her  regularly  scheduled  hours  of work,  he/she shall receive 
eight  (8) straight  time  hours  of lieu  time.   He/she  shall  not  receive any  additional 
holiday  pay, nor lieu time off. 

 

 
14.6    Holiday-Called  In  to  Work:    Employees  called  in for  work  on  a  designated 
holiday shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1¥2) their regular rate of pay. 

 

 
14.7    Holiday Worked as a Regular Work Day: Employees whose regularly scheduled 
shift starts during  one of the designated holidays  listed in 14.1 above shall be paid at 
time and one-half (1:Y2) their regular rate of pay.  In addition, the employee shall receive 
eight (8) straight time hours of lieu time off. 

 

 
14.8    Lieu Time and Carry-Over: 

 
(a)  Lieu time only applies to holidays. 

 
(b)       Beginning January 1, 2010, lieu time may be accumulated and carried over 

from month  to month  January  1 until December 31 up to a maximum  of 
eighty (80) hours.  Any lieu time in excess of one hundred  (100) hours will 
be forfeited. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  21 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

ARTICLE XV- VACATION I ANNUAL LEAVE 
 
 

15.1  Vacation Accrual: 
 

(a)  Earned   vacation  leave  is  paid  leave.  Vacation  leave  shall  accrue  in 
accordance with the following schedule: 

 
Months of 

Completed Service 
Monthly Accrual Rate 

InHours 
 Yearly Rate inHours 

Per Year 
DOH-24 08.00  96 
25-60 10.00  120 
61-108 12.00  144 
109-168 14.00  168 
169 and over 16.00  192 

 

(b)      The philosophy behind  annual  leave is to allow the employees time away 
from  the workplace  for  rest and  relaxation,  so that  upon  their return  to 
that workplace, they are refreshed and able to perform to their optimum. 

 

 
15.2     Accrual Onset:  Upon satisfactory completion  of six (6) months employment the 
employee shall  be  credited  with  five  (5) vacation  leave  days.    Employees  shall  be 
notified of accumulated vacation leave on a regular basis. 

 

 
15.3  Accrual Regular Part-Time: Annual leave with pay computed  at the same rate 
according   to  the  time  actually  worked shall  also  be  allowed   to  regular  part-time 
employees who are employed  on a regular  basis.  Accrual shall be on a continuing  non- 
annual  basis. 

 

 
15.4    Accrual Earned:  Vacation leave accrues on a bi-monthly basis.  Vacation leave is, 
however,  not  available  for  use  until  earned  and  posted   to  the  employee's accrued 
vacation  leave following  the end of the current  pay period.  Employees are responsible 
to monitor  their accrual balance to avoid shortfalls or excesses. 

 
15.5    Choice of An nual Leave:  To the extent possible, annual  leave shall be granted at 
the time requested  by the employee.  If the nature  of work  makes it necessary  to limit 
the number of employees on vacation at the same time, the department head shall make 
a  determination as  to which  employees are  permitted their  annual  leave.   A senior 
employee shall  have preference  except  they shall not  bump a junior employee  if said 
junior  employee  has  first  applied and  received  approval for  the use of their  annual 
leave. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  22 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 
 
 

15.6    Work  During  Vacation Period:  Any  employee  who  is requested  to and  does 
work during  their vacation period shall be paid for regular hours at the rate of time and 
one-half  (11h) their regular  rate and  shall retain  their unused  annual  leave for use at a 
later date.  Employees shall be subject to call back during vacation periods. 

 

 
15.7   Vacation Rights:  Vacation rights in case of lay-off or separation.   Any employee 
who is laid  off, discharged, retired  or separated from the service of the Employer  for 
any reason, prior  to taking their vacation  shall be compensated in cash for the unused 
vacation they have accumulated at the time of separation. 

 

 
15.8    Vacation  Rights {Entry Level Officer Only):   At  the  discretion  of the Chief of 
Police, vacation time may be granted before the end of the probation  period. 

 
 

15.9    Maximtml Vacation Carryover/Exception/Payout: 
 
 

(a)      For those employees  who, as of December 31, 2006, have an accumulated 
leave balance of Jess than  two  hundred forty  (240) hours,  the maximum 
number   of  vacation   leave   hours  which   may   be  carried   over   from 
December 3181 of one year  to January  181 of the next year is two hundred 
forty (240) hours.  There cannot be accrued  vacation leave in excess of two 
hundred forty (240) hours  carried  over except as subject to the provisions 
of subsections (d) and  (e) below.  If the Employer  determines  that neither 
(d)  and/or   (e)  below  will  be  granted, then   the  excess leave shall  be 
forfeited. 

 

 
(b)       For  those  employees who  have  an  accumulation of  vacation  leave  in 

excess  of  two  hundred  forty   (240) hours   as  of  January  1,  2007,  the 
following approach  shall be implemented: 

 

 
(1)      First, the employee must use their normal vacation leave accruals in 

the year; 
 

 
(2)      Second, the employee must  use an  additional forty  (40) hours of 

accrued vacation  leave; 
 

(3)      If subsections (1) and  (2) above  are met,  then  the City  will buy 
down   up   to  forty   (40)  additional  hours   f rom   the  employee's 
vacation leave bank; 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  23 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

(4)      If subsection  (1) above  is met and  subsection  (2) above is not met, 
then the City will only buy  down  the vacation leave balance in an 
amount  equal to the additional hours  taken in subsection (2) above 
up to forty (40) hours; 

 

 
(5)      Any vacation balance not taken or brought down as outlined  in 

subsections (1), (2) and  (4) cannot be carried over except as noted  in 
subsection  (c), (d) and  (e) below.   For example, an employee  must 
use all of their  vacation  leave accrued  in any one  (1) year  and  in 
addition   use   an  additional  forty   (40)  hours.    Assuming   the 
employee   uses  all  of  their   yearly  accrued   leave  and   uses  an 
additional forty (40) hours  of leave, the City will buy down  an 
additional forty  (40) hours.  If, however,  the employee  uses all of 
their yearly accrued  leave and only uses thirty (30) hours, then the 
City will only  buy  down  an additional thirty  (30) hours.    In this 
second case, a total of twenty  (20) hours  would  not be carried over 
to the next year. 

 

 
(6)      The buy  down  provision outlined   in subsection  (3) above  will be 

added  to the final paycheck of the year. 
 

 
(7)      The  Employer's determinations  regarding  the  above  provisions 

shall be final and binding on the parties. 
 

NOTE: The parties  understand and  agree  that  everyone,  including the Chief 1 

Assistant  Chief, Sergeant  and  police officers, will need to work shifts and work 
together  to bring help bring down  the vacation accruals to the two hundred forty 
(240) hour  maximum over the course of the next several years. 

 

 
(c)       In addition, the parties have acknowledged that there are a few employees 

who  have  accumulated so  much  vacation  leave  that  the  provisions  of 
section (b) above will not be sufficient to bring their vacation leave balance 
below  two hundred forty  (240) hours  during the term of this agreement. 
Therefore, the provisions  of section (b) above will 'Continue for those 
employees through the successive  years until they reach the two hundred 

· forty  (240) hour  carryover  limit.  In the case of these few employees who 
have  significant  accumulations, if at the end  of 2009 they still have a few 
hours (not  more  than  fifteen  (15) hours),  then  the  above  use-and-buy 
down provisions in (b) above will continue for 2010. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  24 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 
 
 
 

(d)      Vacation  leave over  the maximum  accumulation cannot  be carried  over 
unless  the   department  head,    with    the   concurrence   of   the   City 
Administrator, has acknowledged in writing  that the employee could not 
be released to take the requested  vacation leave and only if the Employer 
determines that the provisions of subsection (e) below will be applied. 

 

 
(e)      If the  department  head,  with  concurrence   of  the  City  Administrator, 

determines that it is in the best interest of the Employer and its operations 
to  provide  compensation for  the  additional accrual  of  vacation  leave 
above  two-hundred and  forty (240) hours,  the Employer  may, on a case- 
by-case basis, determine whether  to authorize the additional  vacation 
carryover  balance or provide compensation in lieu of forfeiture or neither, 
in the sole discretion of the Employer.  This allowance, if approved by the 
Employer, is limited  to forty (40) hours  and  the balance beyond  the forty 
(40) hours  shall be forfeited.   The exercise of thjs determination is on a 
case-by-case basis and  shall not  be used  as any  type  of precedent with 
regard  to the allowance  of compensation or additional time off carryover 
for vacation leave in excess of two hundred forty (240) hours. 

 

 
15.10:            Vacation buy back program:        The   Employer    would    implement   a 
vacation  buy back program  were the employee could sell back to the city up  to 1/3 of 
their accrued vacation leave within a twelve (12) month  calendar  year.  The decision to 
exercise this option the Employee shall request  the vacation buy back prior to December 
1st  of  the  year  in  which  the  Employee   is  requesting.   The  Employer  will  pay  the 
Employee  their vacation pay out within the first ten {10) days of December. 

 
 

Example:  A 10 year employee accrues 13.67 hrs per month  at 165 hours per year. 
165  hours  vacation  leave  ®  1/3  (.333) would  equal  55 hours  of  vacation  time 
payable  to you at your current hourly rate. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  25 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

ARTICLE XVI- SICK LEAVE AND SHARED SICK LEAVE POOL 
 
 

16.1     Earned:   Sick leave is earned  by an employee  at the rate of eight (8) hours  for 
each month of completed  service.  Employees earn eight (8) hours of sick leave on their 
first month  of employment if they are placed  on the payroll on or before the fifteenth 
(15th) of the  month  and  actually  work  continuously through  the  rest  of the  month. 
Terminating employees  do not  receive sick leave  credit  for the month  in which  they 
terminate unless  they  actually  work  continuously through the fifteenth  (15th) of the 
month.  Part time employees earn sick leave prorated to their time worked. 

 

 
16.2  Eligibility:  An  employee  must  have  completed   their  probationary period  as 
defined  in  this  CBA before  they  become  eligiblfor sick  leave. At  the end  of  the 
applicable  probationary period, they will have earned  eight (8) hours  of sick leave per 
month of probationary status. 

 

 
16.3     Accumulation Cap:   Sick leave is accumulated to a total of nine hundred and 
sixty (960) hours, after which time, if not taken, lapse month by month; which means at 
no  time can an employee  have more than  nine hundred and  sixty (960) hours  of sick 
leave due. 

 

 
16.4     Usage: Sick leave may be taken for any of the following reasons: 

 
(a)  Illness or injury  which incapacitates the employee  to the extent  they are 

unable to perform their work; 
 

(b)  Health   care  provider  appointmcnt(s)  for  the  employee   or  immediate 
family only; 

 
(c) Emergency illness in the employee's immediate family. 

 
 

16.5     Accrual  Usage:    Employees  may  only  use  the  actual  number   of  sick  leave 
hours/days accumulated.    Sick leave  accrues  on  a  bi-monthly  basis.    Sick leave  is, 
however,   not  available  for  use  until  earned   and  posted  to  the  employee's accrued 
vacation  leave following  the end of the current pay period.   Employees are responsible 
to monitor their accrual balance to avoid shortfalls and excesses. 

 

 
16.6   _Sick Leave While on Annual Leave:  Sick leave can be claimed for employees on 
annual leave.  Proof of illness shall be documented by the attending physician or health 
care provider. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  26 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

16.7    Cash  Out  Upon  Resignation:    Upon  voluntary  resignation,  an employee  shall 
receive payment  for twenty five percent (25%) of accumulated  sick leave not to exceed 
two hundred forty (240) hours. 

 

 
16.8    Cash Out Upon Employee's Death: In the event of the death of an employee, the 
employee's  estate   shall   receive   payment    for   one   hundred  percent   (100%)  of 
accumulated sick leave, not to exceed two hundred forty (240) hours. 

 

 
16.9    Sick Leave Notification:   In order  to qualify  for  time spent  on  sick leave, an 
employee  shall, unless physically unable to do so, notify their immediate  supervisor  of 
the leave as soon as possible.  The immediate  supervisor  shall be notified of scheduled 
appointments in advance. 

 

 
16.10  Sick Leave Charged:  Sick leave is charged  in units of half (1h) hours.   Amounts 
greater  than half (Y2) an hour  shall be charged  as a full hour.   Only  working days are 
charged and at the rate of one (1) regular work day of sick leave for each day of absence. 
Part day sick leave shall commence at the time the employee leaves the work area and 
shall end at the time the employee returns to the work area. 

 

 
16.11  Sick Leave Exchanged:  At the employee's  option, annual  leave may be used as 
sick leave. 

 
16.12  L&I Cla im:  An employee  receiving industrial insurance  time loss payments due 
to  an  on-the-job  injury  may  use  annual   leave  during   the  period   covered,  or  the 
Employee  may request  sick leave  to compensate for the difference  between industrial 
insurance compensation and full pay upon submitting evidence of amount of industrial 
insurance payment  received. 

 
16.13  Health  Care Provider's Report:  At the Employer's discretion, a health  care 
provider's report for sick leave may be required for incidents of sick leave lasting longer 
than three (3) consecutive days. 

 

 
16.14  Accumulation  Notification:   Employees  shall  be notified  of their  accrued  sick 
leave balance on a regular basis. 

 

 
16.15  Usage Incentive:  An employee  who  accrues and  maintains the total allowable 
sick leave entitlement (nine hundred sixty (960) hours) shall be given a Twenty Five and 
00/100 Dollar  ($25.00)  monthly  salary  increase  for as long  as the total entitlement  is 
maintained. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  27 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

16.16   Final Average  Salary:   When  applicable  upon  retirement  of an  employee,  the 
Employer  shall make available to the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) the 
unused sick leave days computed into hours, to add  to the gross amount of salary used 
in determining "final average salary."  (PERS I only) 

 

 
16.17   Family & Medical  Leave  Act:  The parties  are subject to compliance  with  the 
Family & Medical Leave Act (FMLA). 

 
 

16.18  Maternity/Paternity: In accordance  with  the  FMLA, Maternity/Paternity leave 
will  be considered  without sexual  discrimination.   As a  part  of Maternity/Paternity 
leave, the employee may consume any earned leaves. 

 
16.19  Sick &  Vacation/Annual Exhausted:   In  the event  a permanent employee  has 
sustained a disability causing all of their accumulated vacation and sick leave credits to 
be  exhausted,  other  permanent employees of the  Employer  may voluntarily transfer 
any amount of their accumulated vacation credit to be used by the disabled employee in 
lieu  of sick leave.   An employee may transfer  vacation  credit at the same  ratio as the 
employee's salary is to the disabled employee's salary.  All transfers must  be approved 
in advance  by the City Administrator. 

 

 
16.20   Leave Contribution Program/Shared Leave Pool: 

 
(a)      This "Shared  Leave Pool" consisting of earned  leave time, is resultant of a 

voluntary  participation by  employees.   Any  employee  may  contribute 
their choice of earned  leave  time hours  to this pool at rate not to exceed 
ten (10) hours  per month.  The minimum increment  of donation is one (1) 
hour.  All hours  contributed become  the  property of the "Shared  Leave 
Pool."   Employees  may  make their donations by indicating that intent in 
writing   to  the  Clerk  Treasurer.   However,  employees  who  choose  to 
donate earned  leave time may reduce their personal earned  leave balance 
down to but not less than ten (10) working days. 

 
(b)      Any employee who suffers from an illness, injury, impairment, or physical 

or mental  condition  such  that  the employee has depleted or will shortly 
deplete   their  total  available  earned  leave  may  apply  in  writing   to  the 
"Shared  Leave Pool." 

 
(1)      It is understood by the parties  that  those employees applying for 

hours from the Shared  Leave Pool are ineligible for continuation of 
Washington State Industrial Insurance benefits. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  28 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

(c) Applications   will  be  reviewed   by  the  Shared  Leave Pool  Committee. 
Decisions  of  the  Shared   Leave  Pool  Committee  shall  be  made  by  a 
majority vote.   The Shared Leave Pool Committee will consist of the 
following: 

 
1.        One (1) Goldendale City Council Personi 

 
2.        The Mayor of Goldendale or his/her designeej 

 
3.        One (1) designee from Local1533-G. 

 
 

16.21  Shared Leave Contribution Form: Local 1533-G Shared Leave Contribution  Form 
(Please See Addendum 16.21). 

 
 

16.22  Leave Pool  ApplicaHon Form:    Local 1533-G Shared  Leave Pool  Application 
Form (Please See Addendum 16.22). 

 
 
 

ARTICLE XVII - OTHER LEAVES 
 
 

17.1    Civil Leave:   Any  employee  who  is called  for  jury or  other  civil duties  shall 
receive   from   the   Employer   the   difference   between   their   regular   pay   and   the 
compensation received for jury or other civil duties for the actual time they are required 
to be absent from work because of such duty. Any such absence shall not be counted as 
accumulated sick or annual leave. 

 

 
17.2    Military Leave:  A regular employee  who is an active member of any organized 
reserve  of the Armed  Forces of the United  States  shall  be entitled  to and  granted  a 
military  leave of absence from his/her employment for a period  not  to exceed twenty 
one (21) days during each year beginning  October 151  and ending September  301h.   Such 
leave shall be granted  in order  that the employee  shall be able to participate  in his/her 
mandatory active training duty.  Such military leave shall be in addition  to any vacation 
or  sick  leave  to which  the employee  might  otherwise  be entitled  to, and  shall  not 
involve any loss of efficiency rating, privileges, benefits or pay.  Verification of military 
orders may be required.   The employee  shall, in advance,  provide  an official copy of 
his/her  military  orders, if available.  During  the period of military  leave, the employee 
shall receive from the Employer their regular full pay compensation. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  29 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 

 
17.3     Bereavement   Leave:    In  the  event   of  a  death   in  the  immediate   family,  an 
employee may use three (3) days bereavement leave from their sick leave balance when 
a death  occurs in the employee's immediate family. 

 

 
17.4   Leave of Absence for Union Work: 

 
 (a) Local elected Union delegates may be given time off without  pay to attend 

local,  state  council  or  international conferences,  conventions, or 
 workshops provided it does not affect normal Employer operations. 
 

(b) 
 

Due to the engagement of the Employer's business, the Union Bargaining 
Team  is  granted   time  off with  pay  for  the  preparation of negotiations 

 documents and for time spent in the negotiations process. 
 

(c) 
 

Written requests  for leave time off may be made to the Employer. 
 

(d) 
 

Not  withstanding a  bona  fide  emergency, such  application should   be 
made  to the Employer  at least fourteen (14) working  days  in advance of 

  the date  the requested  leave is to become effective. 
 

17.5 
 

Lea 
 

ve Pay Status:   The  Employer  may  grant  leaves  with or  without pay  on a 
case-by-case  basis.  These  leave requests  will be evaluated on their individual merits. 
The granting of such  leave time shall be individually unique  unto itself and  shall not 
establish a precedent or establish  a past practice. 

 

 
17.6    Required  Trainin&/Licensure:   Required   training/licensure time  shall  count  as 
time worked  and apply  towards the forty  (40) hour/eight (8) hour  overtime  threshold 
and shall be paid at the appropriate rate. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE XVIII -TRAINING AND TRAVEL 
 
 

18.1    See Addendum 18.1. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  30 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

ARTICLE  XIX - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
 

19.1    Employee Grievances:  Crucial to the cooperative  spirit with which this CBA is 
made between  the Union and Employer is the sense of fairness and  justice brought by 
the parties to the adjudication  of employee grievances. Should any employee feel their 
rights and privileges under  this agreement  have been violated, they shall consult with 
their Union Representative.  Discharge of a probationary employee is not subject to the 
Grievance Procedure. 

 

 
19.2    Adherence to Timelines:  Each grievance must be submitted  in accordance with 
the following  procedure within  the time frame set forth  herein below, and  if it is not 
submitted within  the applicable  time frame, then said  grievance  shall be considered 
waived and forever lost.  All time limits may be extended by mutual written agreement. 

 

 
19.3    Steps/Timelines: 

 
 

(a)      Step  1: The  aggrieved  employee  and  their  Union  Representative  shall, 
within  ten  (10)  working  days  of the  date  that  the grievance  occurred, 
present  the facts in writing  to their supervisor, with a copy to the Public 
Safety Director.   Within  ten (10) working  days  thereafter, the supervisor 
shall submit  his/her  written  answer  to the Union Representative  and  the 
aggrieved  Employee, with a copy to the Public Safety Director. 

 

 
(b)       Step  II:   Should  the  aggrieved  employee  decide  that  the  reply  of the 

supervisor  is unsatisfactory; the aggrieved  employee shall within  ten (10) 
working  days submit the facts of the grievance in writing to the City 
Administrator. Upon receipt of the written facts of the grievance, the City 
Administrator shall within  ten (10) working  days submit  his/her  written 
answer to the Union Representative and the aggrieved employee. 

 

 
(c)      Step III: Should  the aggrieved employee decide that the reply of the City 

Administrator  is  unsatisfactory,   the  Union  Grievance  Committee shall 
within  twenty  (20)  working  days  submit  the  facts of the  grievance  in 
writing  to the Mayor or his designee.  Upon  receipt of the written  facts of 
the grievance, the parties shall arrange for a meeting  between  the Union 
Grievance Committee and the Management Grievance Committee within 
twenty  (20) working days for the negotiation  of the issue.  The Employer 
will then issue a decision within  twenty  (20) working days from the date 
of the meeting. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  31 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 

(d)       Step IV: If the decision is contested,  the grievance shall be submitted to 
final and binding arbitration within thirty (30) working  days following  the 
date  of receipt of the decision  referenced  in Step III hereinabove  and  in 
accordance  with  the following provisions.  The Employer and the Union 
agree that final and binding arbitration  shall be before a single arbitrator. 

 

 
19.4    Union/Employer Grievance:   A grievance  by the Union against the Employer  or 
by  Employer  against  the Union  must  be filed in written  form  to the Employer  or  to 
Union's Staff Representative respectively  within  twenty  (20) working  days  after  the 
parties knew or reasonably should  have known of the event giving rise to the grievance. 
Thereafter,  the Employer/Union's Staff Representative shall  respond  in writing  to the 
other  party  within  twenty  (20)  working   days  after  receipt  of  the  grievance.    If no 
agreement is reached within thirty (30) working days, the grievance shall be referred for 
arbitration. 

 

 
19.5    Final and Binding Arbitration:  In Step III, failure to timely appeal the grievance 
shall  render  final and  binding the decision  established  in Step  III hereinabove.  The 
request shall specifically identify the issue(s) related to the grievance as previously 
established  during the original finding of said grievance. 

 

 
19.6    Arbitrator -Selection:  The Employer  and  the Union  will request  an arbitrator 
from  the Public Employment Relations Commission (PERC).  In the event  that either 
party  rejects the PERC assigned  arbitrator, then  the City and  the Union  will request 
PERC to submit  a list of eleven  (11) names of arbitrators from  which the selection will 
be made.   The process of elimination will take place by way  of the Employer  and  the 
Union having  the right to strike  two (2) names  from the list.  The party will strike  the 
first name; the other  party  shall  then strike one; then  the parties  shall each strike  one 
more name, alternately, until the remaining  name shall be the arbitrator. 

 
19.7    Decision- Time Limit: The arbitrator shall hear the matter at the earliest possible 
date. 

 
19.8    Limitation, Scope and Power of Arbitrator: 

 
(a)      The arbitrator shall not have the authority to add  to, subtract  from, alter, 

change or modify the provisions of this CBA. 
 

(b)      The  power   of  the  arbitrator  shall  be  limited   to  interpretation  ot  or 
application  of the terms  of this CBA or to determine whether  there  has 
been  a violation  of the terms of this CBA by either  the Employer  or  the 
Union and/or employee(s). 



City of Goldendale CBA Page  32 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 

Original w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015 - 2017 CBA 

 

 
 
 

(c)      The  arbitrator shall  consider  and  decide  only  the  question  of issue(s) 
raised at Step II and said arbitrator shall not have the authority  to consider 
additions, variations,  and/or  subsequent grievances beyond  the grievance 
submitted at Step  II, unless  the parties  agree  in writing,  to combine  the 
issues of similar grievances into one arbitration. 

(d)  The  arbitration shall  be conducted  in accordance  with  PERC rules  and 
regulations. 

 
19.9   Arbitration Award- Damages- Expense: 

(a)      Arbitration awards shall  not be made  for time prior  to the date  of this 
occurrence upon which the grievance is based. 

 
(b) Each   party    hereto    shall   pay   the   fees   and   expenses   of   their   own 

representatives, witnesses  and other costs associated with the presentation of 
their case and half (1/2) the expense of the arbitrator and half 012) the expense 
of a court  reporter  and the transcript.   Local president  or designee,  grievants 
or   witnesses  that   normally    would   be   working   during  an   arbitration 
proceeding will be paid at their regular rate of pay by the employer.  This will 
not include  overtime.  Each party  shall be solely responsible  for paying for 
their own attorney fees and expenses. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE  XX - UNION VISITS 
 
 

20.1    Union  Visits:   The  Employer  shall  admit  to  the  Employer's  property, during 
working  hours, any  authorized representative or representatives of the Union for the 
purpose of ascertaining whether  or not this CBA is being observed by the parties hereto 
and to assist in adjusting grievances.   The privilege shall be exercised so no time is lost 
unnecessarily to the Employer.    Such Union representative(s) shall make prior 
arrangements for such visits with the Employer, or his designated representative, before 
entering the Employer's premises. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G Uniformed  Employees 
2015 - 2017 CBA 

Page 33 

Original  w/ Signatures 12-514 

 

) 

) 

 
 

ARTICLE XXI- HEALTH AND WELFARE 
 
 

21.1    Medical & Hospital  Insurance:   The Employer  provides  fully paid medical  and 
hospital  insurance for  all  regular  full-time  employees and  a  prorated   medical  and 
hospital  insurance for regular  part time employees commencing on the first (1st) day of 
the month after completion  of the employee's initial thirty (30) day employment period. 
Effective  beginning  January  1, 2007, the  Employer  shall  move  the  employees  to the 
AWC PPO plan.  There shall be an open enrollment period and the benefits of this new 
plan  will be explained  to the employees.  The Employer's contribution  to dependant 
medical  insurance  premiums is  limited  to ninety  percent  (90%) for  the term  of  the 
agreement. The employees shall pay ten percent (10%) by payroll deduction. 

 
21.2     Dental Insurance: The Employer  provides a dental insurance plan for all regular 
full time  and  regular  part-time  employees and  their dependents, commencing on  the 
first  (151 day  of the month  after  completion  of the employee's initial  thirty  (30) day 
employment period. 

 

 
21.3  Vision Insurance: The Employer  provides a vision insurance  plan for all regular 
full time  and  regular  part time  employees and  their dependents, commencing  on  the 
first  (151 day  of  the month  after  completion  of the employee's initial  thirty  (30) day 
employment period.                          · 

 
 

21.4    Insurance Committee:  The City of Goldendale and Local 1533G will establish  an 
insurance  committee  of   two   (2)  representatives  from   the   City   of   Goldendale 
management and two (2) representatives from Local1533G. 

 

 
(a)       The purpose of the committee  will be to review the insurance programs 

and  benefit  packages  and  to make  recommendation to the City  and  the 
Local as to  changes  to  the insurance  packages, in order  to bring  about 
more responsible utilization of benefits.  The committee  may also compare 
the  present   insurance  packages  to  any  other  insurances   that  may  be 
available and make recommendation to the City and the Local on possible 
changes of insurance providers. 



City of Goldendale CBA Page 34 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 
2015 -2017 CBA Original wI Signatures 12-5-14 

 

 
 

(b)       The City agrees to provide the committee and the Union a notice of the 
equivalent number  of days notice the City receives from its broker and/or 
carrier  regarding changes   to  existing  plans  and/or   discontinuance of 
existing plans less the normal communication timeframes (days) from the 
broker and/or carrier and from the City to the Union and committee.  For 
example,  if the broker and/or  carrier  provide  sixty (60) calendar  days  of 
notice  to  the  City  and  the  notice  takes  three  (3)  calendar  days  to  be 
received  by  the  City  and  then  the  City's  notice  to the  committee  and 
Union  takes  three  (3) calendar   days,  then  the  window  to  discuss  any 
changes  or  discontinuance of present  insurance  plans  would  be 
approximately fifty-four  (54) calendar  days subject to the availability  of 
the parties  and  the setting of meeting(s).   The committee and  Union are 
limited  to  making  recommendations only.     After  the  discussions but 
within the timeframe of the notice issued by the broker and/or  carrier, the 
City  reserves  the  right  to  make  the  final and  binding  decision  and  to 
implement the decision. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE XXII - WAGES 
 
 

22.1     Hourly  Rate:  The employees' regular  hourly  rate of pay shall be calculated  by 
dividing  the monthly rate of pay by 173.33. 

 
22.2     Wages:  Effective January  1, 2015, the wage  grid for calendar  year 2014 will be 
increased  by Two Percent (2%).  The calculations shall be determined by the Employer. 

 
Effective January 1, 2016, the wage grid for calendar  year 2015 will be increased 

by Two Percent (2%).  The calculations shall be determined by the Employer. 
 

Effective January 1, 2017 the wage grid for calendar  year 2016 will be increased 
by Two Percent (2%).  The calculations shall be determined by the Employer. 

 

 
22.3     Longevity   Incentive  Increment  Pay  Schedule:    Longevity  incentive,  annually 
adjusted  on the employee's respective  anniversary date, is the Employer's recognition 
of  the skills, knowledge and  experience  that  the employees bring  to their  positions. 
Longevity  is earned  by  regular  full-time employees and  regular  part-time  employees. 
Longevity  shall be adjusted  by the employee's anniversary date, if they are placed on 
the Employer's payroll on or before the 15th of the month,  the employee's anniversary 
date for longevity  shall begin the first day of that month.   If an employee is placed on 
the Employer's payroll  on or  after  the 16th of the month, the employee's anniversary 
date for longevity shall begin the 16th of the month. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed Employees 

Page 35 

Original  w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015-2017 CBA 

 

 
 
 

22.4  Longevity pay shall be paid as follows: 
 

(a)  Monthly Payment:  To each eligible employee,  to be paid each month with 
their monthly  pay. 

 
(b)   Longevity  pay will be prorated as follows:  Twenty (20) hour  work  week 

earns half (1/2) of the employee's respective longevity incentive. 
 

 
22.5  Longevity  incentive  pay  changes  its accrual  rate on  the Employee's  respective 
anniversary date. 

 

Completed 
Years of 
Service 

Monthly 
Longevity 

Hourly Longevity 
Increment Pay 

I 

Increment Pay 
8 $  30.00 .17 

9 $  60.00 .35 

10 $ 80.00 .46 

11 $100.00 .58 

12 $125.00 .72 

13 $150.00 .87 

14 $175.00 1.01 

15 $200.00 
I 

1.15 

16 $225.00 1.30 

17 $255.00 1.47 

18 $285.00 1.64 

19 $315.00 1.82 

20 $345.00 1.99 

21 $375.00 2.16 

22 $405.00 2.34 

23 $435.00 2.51 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed Employees 

Page 36 

Original  w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015-2017 CBA 

 

 
 

22.6    Paydays:     Shall  be  on  or  before  the  51h    and  201h    of  each  calendar   month. 
Provisions for an earlier payday for an employee on vacation, leave, etc., shall be made 
at the Employer's discretion. 

 

 
22.7    Wage Grid:  Attached  as Addendum 22.7 will be the wage grid for 2010, which 
shall  be determined and  prepared by  the Employer  based  on  formulas  set forth  in 
section 22.2 Wages, above. The wage grid applies to all regular full-time employees and 
prorated for all regular part-time employees. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE XXIII- JOB POSTING, TRANSFER AND PROMOTIONS 
 
 

23.1    Right of First Refusal: Current employees holding bargaining unit positions will 
be given right of first refusal for filling job vacancy through  transfer or promotions.   If 
current employees  are not  qualified  to assume  the duties,  the Employer  may  recruit 
from outside  the current work force. 

 

 
23.2    Vacancies  Filled:    The  Employer's decision  to  fill a  vacancy  by  transfer  or 
promotion of a current employee will be made on the basis of the provisions contained 
in Article IX, Section 9.1- Seruority, in this CBA. 

 

 
23.3   In House  Posting:   Announcements of position  vacancies  will be posted  in all 
departments for five (5) working  days prior to the announcement of the position  to the 
public. 

 
 

23.4    Nature  and  Type  of  Examinations:    An  examination for  a  position  may  be 
written,  verbal,  a  measure   of  physical   fitness,  or  any   performance   test,  or  any 
combination thereof.  Examinations shall consist of material  that tests fairly and equally 
the capacity and fitness of an applicant  to perform effectively the duties of the position 
for  which  the examination  is given.   The necessity  for an examination  and  the type 
thereof shall be determined by the department head  with  the advice of the Employer. 
In cases  where  a  physical  examination is  deemed   advisable   for  the  position,  the 
Employer shall pay the cost. 

 

 
23.5    Notification:  All applicants for employment shall be notified  in writing  if they 
may be affected by any action at the time of the following: 

 
(a)  Receipt of application; or 
(b)  Disqualification for cause; and/or 
(c) The filling of the position applied for. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed Employees 

Page 37 

Original  w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015-2017 CBA 

 

 
 
 

23.6   New Job Rates and Wages:  The Employer has the right to establish new job 
classifications.  Under RCW 41.56, rates of pay for new job classifications are negotiable. 
New job classifications are considered vacancies. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE  XXIV- ENTIRECBA 
 
 

24.1    Entire CBA: This CBA constitutes the complete and entire CBA by and between 
the parties and no other agreement and/or  understandings, written  or otherwise,  prior 
to the signing of this CBA shall be binding  on the parties except this provision does not 
preclude   parties   from   presenting  evidence   regarding  the   parties'   intentions  for 
language provision and/or  changes to language. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE  XXV- SEPARABILITY 
 
 

25.1    Separability: 
 

(a)       In accordance  with  the  Rules  and  Regulations  of the Washington State 
Public Employment Relations  Commission,  under  RCW 41.56, this CBA 
supersedes all conflicting City ordinances,  rules and  policies and  all 
conflicting RCWs. 

 
(b)      If any provision  of this CBA or its supplements shall be held invalid  due 

to federal or state statutes,  the remainder of this CBA shall not be affected, 
and the parties agree to meet and negotiate the affected sections. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE XXVI- SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 
 
26.1   Savings Clause:  Should  any provision of this CBA be found  to be in violation  of 
any federal, state or local law, all other  provisions  of this shall remain in full force and 
effect for the duration of this CBA. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE  XXVII- TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
 
27.1    Term  of Agreement:    This  Agreement shall  become effective January  1, 2015, 
except as otherwise provided, and shall remain in effect until December 31, 2017. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed Employees 

Page 38 

Original  w/ Signatures 12-5-14 2015-2017 CBA 

 

 
 

27.2 Successor CBA:  The parties agree  that negotiations for a successor CBA will 
attempt to begin in August of any given last year of any current CBA. 

 
 
 

EXECUTION  . 
 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands on the dates indicated 
below, herein on the  day of December .   2014. 

 
 
 

FOR 1HE UNION: FOR THE EMPLOYER 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eddie Allan 
Staff Representative Council2 

Clint Baze, Mayor 
Oty of Goldendale 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Doug Frantam 
President Local 1533-G 

Larry Bellamy 
City Administrator 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Leo Lucaterd 
Vice President Local1533-G 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Jay Hunziker 
Bargaining Team I Uniformed 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed Employees 
Addendum 11.3- Verbal Reprimand 

 

 
 

ADDENDUM 11.3 
VERBAL REPRIMAND 

 
 

1.  Tardiness or absence from work without  just cause. 
2. Abuse of sick leave. 
3.  Unauthorized use of equipment. 
4.  Recklessness. 
5.  Neglect of Duty. 
6.  Incompetence. 
7.  Insubordination. 
8.  Failure to report  to work  at the end of an approved leave of absence period  or 

using a leave of absence for reasons other than those for which it was granted. 
9.  Failure to report to work after cancellation of leave of absence. 
10.  Excessive abuse of rest periods after warning by supervisor. 
11.  Any other  just causes as set forth in Civil Services Rules, arbitration  cases and/or 

statutes. 
 

Notes:  _  _ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Supervisor and Date  Signature of Employee and Date 
 
 

The   employee,   by   signing   this 
document, is not admitting guilt, only 
that the employee has seen and received 
it. 

 
 
 

This Verbal Reprimand shall be removed from  Supervisor's file no later  than  one  (1) 
year from date above. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed Employees 
2015-2017 CBA- Addendum 16.21 -Shared Leave Contribution 

 

 
 

ADDENDUM 16.21 
SHARED LEAVE CONTRIBUTION 

 
 

Local1533-G Shared Leave Contribution 
 
 
 

Nrune:   
 
 

Date Submitted to Local 1533-G.:   _ 

Department:  _ 

Work Phone:.   _ 
Home Phone:.  _ 

My Shared Leave Contribution consists of the following  type(s) of earned  leave: 

I have indicated the respective number(s) of hours: 
 

 
Type of Leave:.   Hours:·.-------- 

 

 
Type of Leave: . Hours: . 

 
 

Type of Leave: . Hours:.   
 
 
 

Signature:  _ 
 
 

Otherbtlormation:.   



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G- Uniformed  Employees 
2015- 2017CBA- Addendum 16.22- Shared  Leave Pool Application 

 

 
 

ADDENDUM 16.22 
SHARED LEAVE POOL APPLICATION 

 
 

Local1533-G Shared Leave Pool Application 
 
 
 

Name:   
 
 

Date Submitted to the Local:  _ 
 

 
Department:   

 

 
Work Phone:   _ 
Home Phone:  _ 

 
 

In generalities, please attach a statement of your illness, injury, impairment or physical 
or mental condition:** 

 

 
**(This information shall remain confidential)** 

 
 

An attached statement from your Physicians may be helpful to the Shared Leave 
Committee in reaching their decision. However, such a statement is not mandatory and 
is voluntarily submitted at the choice of the employee. 

Shared Leave Pool Committee meeting date: ----------- 

Shared Leave Pool Committee Recommendation: Approved:  _ 
Denied:.  _ 

 
 

Committee Comments:.                                                                                                      _ 
 
 

***Employees may request a written decision.*** 
 
 
 
 
 
City Council Person 

Date:  _ 

 
 
 
Larry Bellamy, Administrator 

Date:. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Loca] 1533-G - Uniformed  Employees 
2015 - 2017 CBA - Addendum 22.7- 2015 Wage Grid 

 

 
 

ADDENDUM 18.1 
TRAINING AND TRAVEL 

A.  GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

1.   Needs  of the City or  Department:   The need  for travel  is based  on  the 
requirements of a specific job or Department.  While the convenience  of 
the employee  shall be considered,  the City or Department needs shall be 
the  more  important factor.    Any  travel  outside  Washington  or  Oregon 
must be pre-approved by the Mayor, or his/her designee. 

 

 
2.       Cost Reimbursement Basis: Travel expenses  to out-of-City locations shall 

be provided  on a reasonable and prudent basis as approved by the 
Department Head or designee. 

 

 
3.     Sharing  of Costs:  Employees  attending the same function  should  share 

transportation  whenever    possible.     If not   feasible  due   to  different 
departure times or dates, the most cost-effective method  is to be used.  If 
employees incur  extra expenses  for their own  convenience; they will be 
required to pay for the additional costs. 

 

 
4.  Travel  to  and  from  Home:   Travel  to  and  from  one's  home  to  their 

regularly assigned work site is not a reimbursable travel expense. 
 

 
5.  Travel Funded  by Another  Agency:  When an organization other than the 

City  of Goldendale agrees  to  pay  out-of-area  travel  expenses for  City 
employees,  reimbursement will be according  to that organizations travel 
policies. 

 

 
6.        Authorization for Travel:   Employees  requesting  authorization for travel 

will submit  requests  to their Department Head.   Without approval by the 
Mayor,   or  his/her   designee,   no  unauthorized  travel   companions   are 
allowed in City vehicles. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed  Employees 
2015-2017 CBA- Addendum 22.7-2015 Wage Grid 

 

 
 

B. TRAVEL EXPENSES: 
 

1.   Advance  Travel  Funds:   Advance travel funds  must be approved by the 
City Administrator prior to the issuance of an Advance Travel Check for 
the specific amount.  The advance funds  request  must be documented as 
to exact need and cost and approved by the Department  Head prior to 
presentation  to  the  City  Administrator.    All  of  the  above  mentioned 
should be accomplished  in such a time frame to allow sufficient time for a 
check to be issued, preferably  one (1) week prior to scheduled  travel 

 
2.         Mileage Reimbursement Rate:  Whenever  possible, a City vehicle should  be 

used for travel for authorized City business.   The Internal Revenue Service 
rate  for  mileage  is  used   when   City  of  Goldendale   representatives or 
employees use  their  personal  vehicles  for authorized City business.   The 
purpose of such  reimbursement is to cover costs of gas; oil, maintenance, 
and insurance.  Mileage is calculated  at the IRS approved  rate. 

 
3.   Insurance  Requirements:   State  law  requires  that  owners  of  motorized 

vehicles carry  an established amount of liability  insurance.   Employees 
who fail to do so while using their personal  vehicle for City business may 
have travel expenses  related to the use of their personal vehicle denied. 

 
4.  Receipts  for  Public  Transportation:   When  using  public  transportation, 

receipts are required  for reimbursement.  Public transportation includes, 
but may not be limited to, airline, railroad, bus, taxi and airport  limousine 
service.  Hotel transportation should  be used whenever  possible. 

 
5.   Airline Travel:  When airline travel is required, the most economical  ticket 

is to be purchased. It is acknowledged that airfares are frequently lower if 
a schedule  is established to the convenience  of the airline.  Such schedules 
may  result  in  an  employee  staying longer  at  the  destination than  the 
business  trip  requires.   If savings can be substantiated as a result,  meal 
and lodging expenses may be approved by the Department Head. 

 
6.  Parking:     Receipts  for  parking  must   be  included   with   requests   for 

reimbursement, when available. 
 

7.       Use of City Vehicles:  Employees  attending training, etc., outside the City 
of Goldendale will  make  every  attempt   to utilize  City  vehicles.    When 
utilizing  City vehicles, all receipts  for expenses  (!&v gas, oil, etc.) will be 
required for reimbursement. 

C.  MEAL EXPENSES: 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed  Employees 
2015-2017 CBA- Addendum 22.7-2015 Wage Grid 

 

 
 
 

1.  Meals will be reimbursed by presenting receipts and a completed  Travel 
Expense Voucher to the Mayor, or his/her  designee, within  ten (10) days 
of return. Meals may be charged  on the room bill, however, meal receipts 
should be submitted with the hotel bill. 

 
2.   Unless  otherwise  approved by  the  Department Head,  maximum  meal 

rates  for  twenty-four (24) hours  or  greater  should  not  exceed  the  per 
diem rates outlined  in the Washington State Travel Rates prepared  by the 
Office of Financial Management. If traveling  less than a twenty-four (24) 
hour period  the per meal subsistence guidelines attached  hereto  (and as 
the  same  shall  be  updated) should   be  used.  Reimbursement may  be 
made  for meals in excess of the above limits when the meal is part of an 
official business function,conference banquets. Exceeding the above 
limits  requires  a written explanation to the City Administrator in order 
to be considered for reimbursement. 

 
3.        The  reasonable cost of  meals  during or  in  conjunction  with  meetings 

directly  related  to City business  held  either  in Golden ale or at another 
location are allowed. 

 
4.  Receipts are required for reimbursement. 

 
 

D.  LODGING EXPENSES: 
 

1.   Lodging in out-of-area locations will be reimbursed at cost.   As a general 
rule,  reasonable lodging  should   be sought (See the  Washington State 
Travel  Rates prepared by the Office of Financial Management). In a case 
where  the City has a contract  vendor  in the area, then the employee must 
use   the   vendor.     Lodging    should    be  obtained    at   commercial  or 
government rates  whenever possible.    Receipts  for  lodging   must   be 
turned in at the time of the request  for reimbursement. A purchase order 
may also be used and the City will be billed directly.  The per diem rates 
outlined in the Washington State Travel  Rates prepared by the Office of 
Financial  Management should   be used  as a  guideline.   Exceeding  the 
above  limits requires a written  explanation to the City Administrator in 
order  to be reimbursed. 

 

 
E. REGISTRATION  AND   CONFERENCE   FEES:  Required   registration and 

conference fees may be handled in one of three ways: 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed  Employees 
2015-2017 CBA- Addendum 22.7-2015 Wage Grid 

 

 
 

1.  Where  time  allows,  the  City  pays  the  fee  directly  to  the  conference 
sponsor prior to the event; 

 
 

2.  A purchase order  may be written  to the conference sponsor  and the City 
will be billed directly for the registration fee; or, 

 

 
3.   The employee  personally  pays  the  fee and  is reimbursed  as part  of the 

reimbursement request.  A copy of the employees canceled personal  check 
or a receipt  and  a  copy  of the  registration form  must  be submitted for 
reimbursement. 

 

 
F.  ALLOWABLE MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES: Other allowable  expenses  may 

include  but  are  not  limited  to car  rentals;  rental  of rooms  to conduct  official 
business;  charges  for  photocopying or  other   clerical  requirements; business 
telephone calls; personal phone calls incidental to City business(a call to let 
family  know  you  arrived safely  or  will be  late  returning  and  the like, not  to 
exceed five  dollars  ($5.00) per trip), ferry  tolls; and  the like.  Itemized  receipts 
must be submitted for reimbursement. When questions arise about appropriate 
expenditure or procedure, the State  travel  regulations should  serve as a guide. 
If the State regulations do not cover the questions,  the Mayor or his/her designee, 
and/or   the  City  Council   has   the  authority  to  accept  or   reject  claims   for 
reimbursement. 

 

 
G.   UN REIMBURSABLE  EXPENSES:  Certain travel  expenses  are  considered as 

personal and are not essential to the transaction of official agency business and 
are not reimbursable. Such unallowable expenses include but are not limited  to 
laundry or valet service; entertainment expenses  including the cost of alcoholic 
beverages;  tobacco  products; radio,  television,  movie  or  VCR rental;  cost  of 
transportation  to  and   from   places   of  entertainment; cost  of  personal trip 
insurance; lengthy personal use charges;  cost of room service; cost of personal 
reading materials; barber  or  beauty   parlor  expenses; personal  toilet  articles; 
postage;   medical   or  hospital  expenses;  theft,  loss  or  damage  to  personal 
property; expenses   for  spouse,  family  or  other   persons   not  authorized  to 
receive reimbursement; and the like. 



City of Goldendale CBA 
Local 1533-G - Uniformed  Employees 
2015-2017 CBA- Addendum 22.7-2015 Wage Grid 

 

 
 

ADDENDUM 22.7 
2015 Wage Grid 
(20fo increase) 

 
Salary Schedule 
2015 Wae Grid 

 Step A Step B StepC StepD Step E Step F StepG StepH Step I 
Position 6 months 6months 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year + 
UNIFORMED OFFICERS          
Police Sergeant          
Police Officer I Lateral Entry          
Police Officer (Probationary)          

 
Notes: 
1.  Probationary Police Officer is now the first two steps (Step A and Step B) of the Police Officer Range 
2.  Step G changes from a 2 year step to a 1 year step 
3.  Step H changes from a 2 year step to a 1 year step 
4.  A Lateral Police Officer would at least start the grid at Step C 
5.  For a lateral Police Officer it would  take 6 years to move through to the highest step 
6. For an entry level Police Officer it would  take 7 years to move through to the highest step 
7. Per the applicable formula, the average of the two CPI's times 85% is 3.87% increase for 2007 Pay Plan 

 
Movement by Officer into this grid: 
1.  Kevin Dyment will remain at Step I with longevity 
2. Jay Hunziker will move to Step I on 5/16/07 
3.  Leo Lucatero will move to Step H on 10/1/07 and Step I on 10/1/08 
4.  Reggie Bartowski will move to Step G on 2/1/07, Step H on 2/1/08 and Step I on 2/1/09 
5.  Mike Smith will move to Step G on 7/1/07, Step H on 7/1/08 and Step I on 7/1/09 
6.  Stan Berkshire will move to Step F on 4/16/07, Step G on 4/16/08 and Step H on 4/16/09 
7. Dominic Mutch will move to Step Eon 9/16/07, Step F on 9/16/08 and Step G on 9/16/09 
8.  Chris Wyzykowski will move to Step B on 4/1/07 (Assuming his hire date was10/8/06) 



 

AGENDA BILL: G10 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:   RECOMMENDATION FROM BUDGET 
COMMITTEE ON TOURISM EVENT 
SUPPORT 

 
 
 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15,2014 
 
 
 

ACTION REQUIRED: 

ORDINANCE,  _  COUNCIL INFORMATION  X   

RESOLUTION   _ OTHER     
 
MOTION                --=X --- 

 
 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Please find attached the recommendation for funding tourism events. All the events and 
their requests are listed. The funding recommendations for each of  the events are 
outlined in red and totals $48,000. The Budget Committee recommends the adoption of 
this recommendation. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
MOTION: 

 
I MOVE TO DIRECT STAFF TO PREPARE A RESOLUTION THAT APPROVES  THIS 
RECOMMENDATION AND FURTHER  THAT STAFF PREPARE  CONTRACTS  WITH 
EACH OF THE EVENT ORGANIZERS. 



 

Budget Committee 
Recommendation for Funding Tourism Events 

 
 
 
  EVENT  REQUEST  RECOMMENDATION 

 
Volcanic Promotions 
• Maryhill Festival of Speed $10,000  $  8,000 

 
Goldendale Motorsports Association 
• Comm. Days Show 'n Shine Car Show 
• Concours de Maryhill Open Car Show 

 

 
$  2,500 
$  2,500  $  5,000 

 
Abate of Washington 
• Festival of Wheels  $  6,025  $  5,000 

 
Greater Goldendale Chamber of Commerce 
• Tourism Promotion 
• Visitors Information Center 

 
 
$  5,000 
$17,500 

 

 
$  5,000 
$12,500 

 
Golden Phoenix Assembly #158 
• Breakfast for the Festival of Speed $  500 $  500 

 
Brighter Goldendale Christmas Committee 
• Candy Cane Lane Parade & Event  $  500 $  500 

 
Goldendale Farmers Market 
• Weekly Market Costs  $  1,050 In Lieu 

 
The General Store 
• Trunk or Treat $ 1,500 $  500 

 
Central Klickitat County Parks & Rec District 
• Golden Man Triathlon $  1,000 $  500 

 
W.E. Rock Events LLC 
• Rock Crawl  $  3,500  $  2,500 

 
Goldendale Jaycees 
• Community Days  $ 8,000 

 
 
$  8,000 

 
Totals: $59,575 $48,000 



 

AGENDA BILL:  G11 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:   RECOMMENDATION FROM PUBLIC  WORKS 
COMMITTEE ON WCNIP 

 
 
 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15,2014 
 
 
 

ACTION REQUIRED: 
 

ORDINANCE  _ COUNCIL INFORMATION  ..:....:X   
 

RESOLUTION  _ OTHER   
 

MOTION   :X_,__  _ 
 
 
 

EXPLANATION: 
Please find  attached Karl  Enyeart's  memo  discussing  the  project scope 
recommendation for the West Columbus Neighborhood Improvement Project. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
MOTION: 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Memo 

City of Goldendale 

 
 

To: Mayor and Council 
 

From:  Karl Enyeart, PE, Public Works Director 
 

CC: Larry Bellamy, City Administrator 
 

Date:   12/15/2014 
 

Re:  Project scope recommendation of the West Columbus Neighborhood 
Improvement Project. 

 
 
 

Attached are: 
 

 
• Map of proposed project 
• Preliminary Construction estimate with base and alternate bids 

 
The public works committee met on Monday December 8th to discuss project scope 
and parameters for design of the West Columbus Neighborhood  Improvement 
Project.  The attached map shows the proposed location of the project area that will 
be designed and bid. There are 3 alternate blocks listed that will be constructed if bid 
prices are low enough. All utilities will be evaluated for each block to avoid utility 
replacement  after new pavement is installed.  The attached construction estimate 
does not include water and sewer improvement costs. 

 
The street width will be 21' of paved width with rolled curbs. This does vary from our 
GMC standard and will need council approval.  Intersections will have 30' radius on 
curb returns to accommodate for the narrower streets.  Most buffers betweens curb 
and sidewalk will be restored with gravel surfacing for parking. In general, sidewalks 
will be replaced where existing sidewalks exist with a minimum of one sidewalk per 
block.  Some trees will be removed as a part of this project.  Where trees are 
removed, new trees will be planted and placed to avoid future utility and structure 
interference. 

 
12.12.330 Streets--Width. 
The minimum normal width of streets in the city shall be thirty-six feet from face to 
face of curb and the minimum width of right-of-way shall be sixty feet for all new 
construction, unless otherwise approved by the city council.  (Ord. 1149 (part), 1995; 
prior code §12.10.260) 



 

The 100 block of Burgen will its existing sewer main replaced in place (south side of 
the street). The expectation is no trees will need to be removed on this block. There 
is a good chance roots may be in existing sewer service lines. These lines will be 
replaced to the edge of right of way Uust behind the sidewalks). All effort will be 
made to avoid damaging trees during this construction. A chip seal will be applied to 
the street at the completion of sewer line trenching and paving. 

 
The committees design selection required the project scope to be scaled back from 
the area originally proposed due to funding. This scope provides for improvements 
that will benefit the streets in the worst condition. 

 
I recommend  approval of this project scope for the West Columbus Neighborhood 
Improvement Project. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• Page 2 



 

 
 

  Road Construction Cost Funding Source Bid Schedule 
DARLAND     

100 Block ColumbusIntersection onlv  $13,624.60 City Base Bid 
200 Block  $0.00   
300 Block  $0.00   

COLLINS     
100 Block  $106,978.45 CDBG Base Bid 
200 Block  $91,692.51 City Base Bid 
300 Block  $95,381.21 City Base Bid 

BURGEN     
100 Block Chip SealOnly  $11,700.00 City Base Bid 

200 Block  $105,623.64 CDBG Base Bid 

300 Block  $104,120.22 CDBG Base Bid 
Allyn     

200 Block  $94,544.48 CDBG Base s1·d 
300 Block  $96,471.52 CDBG Base B1d 

Golden     
200 Block  $68,339.10 City Alternate  3 

300 Block  $69,586.34 CDBG Base Bid 
400 Block  $61,896.96 City Base Bid 
500 Block  $59,782.74 City Base Bid 
600 Block  $54,106.73 City Alternate  2 

Grant     
200 Block West Sidewalk Onlv  $10,192.50 City Base Bid 

300 Block  $67,839.50 CDBG Base Bid 
400 Block  $56,992.56 City Base Bid 
500 Block  $61,989.92 City Ba se Bid 
600 Block  $51,930.01 City Alternate 1 

  $1,282,792.98    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pioneer Surveying and Engineering, Inc. 
125 Simcoe Drive 

Goldendale, WA 98620 
Phone (509) 773-4945   Fax: (509) 773-5888 



 

CITY OF GOLDENDALE 
PROPOSED 

WEST COLUMBUS NEIGHBORHOOD   IMPROVEMENT  PROJECT 

 
 

200      100 0  200  400 

 
SCALE  FEET 

 
 
 
 
 
 

LE GEND 
 

 
PROJECT  AREA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROJECT MAP 
 

CITY OF  GOLDENDALE 

 
 
FIGURE 

125  Simcoe  Drive 
Gold endele,   Wuhlnaton    96820 1103  S. Columbus  A ve. WEST COLUMBUS NEIGHBORHOODI-----1 

Phone  (509)   773-4945,  Fox  (509) 773-0668 
N E-Me.ll  pseegorae.nel 

Codl endole, Wo. 98620 
5oq-773-3771 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
SECTION  20,   T  4 N,  R  J 6  £.  WM 
KUCXITAT  COVNTY  "ASHJNCTON 

1-2 



 

AGENDA BILL:  G12 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  PROFESSIONAL  SERVICES CONTRACT ON 
WCNIP 

 
 
 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15, 2014 
 
 
 

ACTION REQUIRED: 
 

ORDINANCE   _  COUNCIL INFORMATION  .:....::X   

RESOLUTION    _  OTHER    _ 

MOTION  ..:...X.o__   _ 

 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Assuming the Council approves the scope recommendations for the West Columbus 
Neighborhood  Improvement  Project,  Pioneer  Surveying  and  Engineering  is ready  to 
move forward on the design of the chosen scope of work. The Public Works Committee 
wants to move forward on the project to bid the project as early as possible in 2015. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
 
 
MOTION: 

 
I MOVE TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL  SERVICES 
CONTRACT WITH PIONEER  SURVEYING AND ENGINEERING FOR DESIGN 
ENGINEERING SERVICES OF THE WEST COLUMBUS  NEIGHBORHOOD 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $182,475. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Memo 

City of Goldendale 

 
 

To:  Mayor and Council 
 

From:  Karl Enyeart, PE, Public Works Director 
 

CC:  Larry Bellamy, City Administrator 
 

Date:   12/10/2014 
 

Re:   Professional Services Contract with Pioneer Surveying and Engineering, Inc. 
for design engineering services of the West Columbus Neighborhood 
Improvement Project. 

 
 
 
 

Attached are: 
 

• Proposal and Contract for Professional Engineering Services 
• Exhibit "A" Terms and Conditions 
• Exhibit "8" Scope of Work 
• Map of proposed project 
• Preliminary construction estimate 

 
The total estimated engineering cost of $182,475 falls within the standard allowable 
fee for design engineering services.  This contract will be billed on an hourly not to 
exceed basis. 

 
The total estimated construction cost is $ $1,789,407 with sales tax and contingency. 
The estimated engineering design cost is 10.2% of construction costs. An additional 
contract will be needed for the construction administration and inspection during 
construction.  That contract should be secured after bid opening. 

 
The estimated for street work is $1,282,793 with an additional $506,614 for water 
and sewer improvements. 

 
I recommend approval of this contract with Pioneer Surveying and Engineering for 
engineering  services on the West Columbus Neighborhood Improvement Project. 



Goldendal e, WA  98620 
Phone (509) 773-4945  Fax: (509) 773-5888  

Pioneer  Surveying and Engineering, Inc 
- ------ 

Civil Engineering  and Land Planning 
 
 
 
 
 

Project No: ----- 

PROPOSAL AND CONTRACT 

PROJECT NAME:   2015 WEST COLUMBUS NEIGHBORHOOD PROJECT 
 

DATE:  December 10, 2014 
 

SUBMITTED TO: 
FIRMNAME& 
ADDRESS: 

CITY OF GOLDENDALE 
1103 S. COLUMBUS AVE. 
GOLDENDALE, WA  98620 

 
 

PHONE: 
EMAIL: 

(509) 773-3771 
kenyeart@ci.goldendale.wa.us 

FAX:   (509) 773-9171 
CELL: 

 
JOB DESCRIPTION:Design Phase 

 
JOB LOCATION: GOLDENDALE, WA 

 
CONTACT PERSON:    DUSTIN CONROY, PE/PLS 

 
PIONEER  SURVEYING AND ENGINEERING,  INC. agrees to furnish the following 
services for the shown compensation amounts: 

 
SEE ATTACHMENT #1 -SCOPE OF WORK 
SEE EXHIBIT A, B AND C 

 
 
 
 
 

CONTRACT AMOUNT: BI BLLED HOURLY - TOTAL NOT TO EXCEED 
$182,475.00 

 
START DATE:  December 2014 

 
 
 
 
 

Pioneer Surveying and Engineering, I nc. 
1 25 Simcoe Drive 

mailto:kenyeart@ci.goldendale.wa.us


Goldendal e, WA  98620 
Phone (509) 773-4945  Fax: (509) 773-5888  

 
 
 

See ITEM 6, EXHIBIT "A11 in reference to authorization and compensation for EXTRAS. 

Payment to be made as follows: 

Billings will be made monthly for work performed.   Payment for undisputed charges will 
be due 30 days after receipt of invoice. Interest  in the  amount 1.5% per month will be 
charged on any unpaid undisputed  balance after 30 days unless prior arraignments  have 
been made. 

 
THIS PROPOSAL AND CONTRACT IS GOVERNED BY THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS ON THE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "A". PLEASE READ. 

 
NOTE:    This Proposal may be withdrawn by PIONEER SURVEYING AND 
ENGINEERING, INC. if not accepted within 30 days. 

Authorized 
Signature    

 

Title 
 

   
 

Date 
 

   
 
 

Acceptance of Proposal:  I have read the above prices, specifications and all the terms and 
conditions printed on the attached EXHIBIT "A" and they are satisfactory and are hereby 
accepted.     PIONEER   SURVEYING   AND   ENGINEERING,   INC.  is  authorized  to 
commence work as specified and agreed to herein.  Please sign both copies of the Contract 
and send one copy back to PIONEER SURVEYING AND ENGINEERING, INC. 

Authorized 
Signature    

 

Title 
 

   
 

Date 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pioneer Surveying and Engi neering, Inc. 
I 25 Si mcoe Dri ve 



Pioneer Su rveying and Engineering, Inc. 
125 Simcoe Drive 

Goldendale, W A 98620 
Phone (509) 773-4945  Fax: (509) 773-5888 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT"A" 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 

SECTION 1.   APPROVAL:   The  acceptance  of this  proposal  constitutes  a binding  contract 
between PIONEER  SURVEYING  AND ENGINEERING,  INC. and Purchaser of services 
(hereinafter referred to as Client), according to all the terms and conditions. 

 
SECTION 2.  TERMS OF PAYMENT:  Payment for services specified herein will be due and 
payable 30 days after receipt of invoice unless otherwise specified herein. 

 
Any monies not paid when due under this contract shall bear a Finance Charge at the rate of 1.5% a 
month on the balance until paid. 

 
SECTION 3.  TERMINATION: This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon seven 
(7) days written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance 
with the term thereof.   Such termination shall not be effective if that substantial failure has been 
remedied before expiration of the period specified in the written notice.  Either party may terminate 
this contract  with thirty (30) days'  prior written notice to the other.   In the event of termination, 
PIONEER SURVEYING  AND ENGINEERING,  INC. shall be paid for services performed to the 
termination notice date plus reasonable termination expenses. 

 
SECTION 4.  JOB CONDITIONS:   The Client shall give PIONEER SURVEYING AND 
ENGINEERING, INC. free and unobstructed  access at all times to the place where work is to be 
done. 

 
SECTION 5. DELAYS:  PIONEER SURVEYING AND ENGINEERING,  INC. shall not be 
responsible  for delays or the inability to complete the services where occasioned by causes of any 
kind or extent beyond its control. 

 
SECTION 6.  EXTRAS:  If the Client requests an alteration, modification or deviation from the 
original   Scope  of  Work  the  Client  agrees  to  pay  the  extra  costs  that  occur.     PIONEER 
SURVEYING  AND ENGINEERING,  INC. shall identify and negotiate with the Client any such 
changes in Scope prior to commencing work on said changes. 

 
SECTION 7.  EXTRA DIRECT EXPENSES:  The Client shall  pay directly, and on a timely 
basis, for such items as: 

 
a. Preliminary and final title certificate. 

b.  Any and all application,  processing, and recording fees, and review fees 
associated with the project. 
c.  Any  Administrative  Services  Agreement,  which  may  be required  by  a 
rev1ewmg agency. 

d.  Field investigations, or special studies not performed by the ENGINEER, 
e. Reproduction  and  "out of  pocket"  expenses,  mileage, equipment  rental, 
etc. 
f.  In the event that sales or other professional  services taxes are initiated in 
the State of Washington  during  the course  of this Agreement,  Owner agrees  to 



Pioneer Su rveying and Engineering, Inc. 
125 Simcoe Drive 

Goldendale, W A 98620 
Phone (509) 773-4945  Fax: (509) 773-5888 

 

 
 

increase Engineer's compensation  accordingly  to offset said taxes, unless already 
included in the maximum price. 

 
 

SECTION  8.  VENUE- ATTORNEY  FEE:  The Client expressly agrees that should it become 
necessary for PIONEER  SURVEYING  AND ENGINEERING,  INC. to place this contract in the 
hands of an attorney for collection, or if suit shall be brought to collect any of the principal and 
interest due under this contract, the Client shall pay, in addition to the principal and interest due, a 
reasonable  attorney fee and, further, the Client shall pay all costs of the legal action, including but 
not limited to, filing fees, deposition costs, service fees, payment for witnesses, and court costs. 

 
SECTION 9.  COST OPINIONS:  Any cost opinions or project economic evaluations provided by 
PIONNER  SURVEYING  AND  ENGINEERING,  INC.  will  be  on  a  basis  of  experience  and 
judgment, but since it has no control over market conditions or bidding procedures, PIONEER 
SURVEYING AND ENGINEERING,  INC. cannot warrant that bias, ultimate construction cost, or 
project economics will not vary from these opinions. 

 
SECTION 10.  NOTICE OF LIEN:  The Client acknowledges that the notice has been given that 
a mechanic's  or  materialman's  lien  may  be  filed  by  PIONEER  SURVEYING  AND 
ENGINEERING, INC. for materials and services furnished under this contract and that the Client 
hereby consents that such lien may be filed as security for materials and services furnished to him 
under this contract.   The Client expressly  waives all other notice requirements  that a lien may be 
claimed. 

 
SECTION  11.  CONSTRUCTION  WITHOUT  CONSTRUCTION  MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES:   The Owner understands that there may be misinterpretations of the Engineer's plans 
and specifications  during construction  which may lead  to errors and subsequent  damages. If the 
Owner elects  to proceed with the work without the Engineer providing construction  management 
services,  resident  engineering  services,   or  on-site  observation   services,   the  Owner  agrees  to 
indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the Engineer against any and all claims which may arise out 
of the acts of the contractor performing work that is not in compliance with the intent of the design 
documents. 

 
SECTION 12.  LIMITATION OF LIABILITY:  To the maximum extent permitted by law, 
PIONEER SURVEYING AND ENGINEERING,  INC.'s liability will not exceed the compensation 
received by PIONEER SURVEYING  AND ENGINEERING,  INC. under this Agreement plus the 
limits of any errors and omissions insurance maintained by PIONEER SURVEYING AND 
ENGINEERING, INC. 

 
SECTION 13. DISPUTES:  This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted under the laws 
of the State of Washington.  The parties agree that in the event it becomes necessary to enforce any 
of the terms and conditions of this contract, that the form, venue and jurisdiction in that particular 
action shall be in Klickitat County, Washington. 

 
SECTION 14. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS:   All drawings, plans, specifications, and other 
related documents prepared by PIONEER SURVEYING  AND ENGINEERING,  INC. shall be the 
property of the Client.  Any reuse shall be at the Clients sole risk and the Client shall indemnify and 
hold hannless  PIONEER SURVEYING AND ENGINEERING,  INC. for any costs or damages 
resulting from such reuse. 



Pioneer Su rveying and Engineering, Inc. 
125 Simcoe Drive 

Goldendale, W A 98620 
Phone (509) 773-4945  Fax: (509) 773-5888 

 

 
 
 
 

Attachment #1-- SCOPE OF WORK- 2015 West Columbus Neighborhood Project 
 

Both parties hereto agree that the following constitute project goals, objectives, parameters, and 
constraints or limitations and establish hereby periodic review procedure by which the parties can 
mutually evaluate progress and compliance in meeting these criteria: 

 
Provide all design phase engineering. 

 

 
 

Objectives:  Design Phase Engineering 
I.    Meetings with landowners 
2.   Meet with utility companies 
3.   Prepare plan and profile drawings 
4.   Public presentation 
5.   Complete project design 
6.   Prepare detail drawings 
7.  Develop cost estimates 
8.  Prepare specifications 
9.   Prepare final contract documents for bid 
10. Advertise bids 
11. Bid opening 

 
 

Review and Evaluation: This is a schedule for evaluation meetings and performance reviews to 
assess the progress of the Consultant. On or about the dates listed 
below, 

 
Review and evaluation will occur on a monthly basis prior 
to construction. 



Pioneer Su rveying and Engineering, Inc. 
125 Simcoe Drive 

Goldendale, W A 98620 
Phone (509) 773-4945  Fax: (509) 773-5888 

 

 
Attachment #2- PAYMENT SCHEDULE- SCOPE OF WORK- 

 
2015 West Columbus Neighborhood Project 

 
For the services performed, the Consultant will be paid monthly as charges accrue on a cost plus 
fixed fee basis. Costs will include direct labor costs, overhead costs, and direct (expense) costs, 
Charges will include costs incurred during the billing period plus a portion of the fixed fee based on 
the Consultant's estimate of the percentage of work completed. The cost ceiling (which does not 
include a fixed fee), which the Consultant will not exceed without this agreement being formally 
amended in writing, and the fixed fee, which will not be increased except for a written amendment 
to this agreement increasing the Scope of Work, are listed below for each element of the Scope of 
Work. 



Pioneer Su rveying and Engineering, Inc. 
125 Simcoe Drive 

Goldendale, W A 98620 
Phone (509) 773-4945  Fax: (509) 773-5888 

 

 
Engineer Estimate with approximate quanities 
WEST NEIGHBORHOOD STREETS PROJECT 
1218/2014 

Prepared for:  City Of Goldendale 

BID SCHEDUE 1• 21FT SECTION, RO  ED CURB,8' GRAVEPARKING 
Item No. Description Units Unit Price Quantity Total Price 

1 MOBILIZATION s  0 $      111,292.54 
2 RESET TRAFFIC SIGNS EA $  275.00 34 $  9,350.00 
3 MAILBOX SUPPORT·TYPE I EA $  500.00 64 $  32,000.00 
4 ADJUST COVERS AND GRATES TO GRADE  COMMON PROPOSAL EA $  200.00 36 $  7,200.00 
5 REMOVAL OF STRLJCTIJRES AND OBSTRUCTIONS LS $  2,000.00 17 $  33,500.00 
6 UNSUITABLE TRENCH AND FOUNDATION MATEFML (COMMON PROPOSAL) CY $  30.00 707 $  21,198.00 
7 EXCAVATION CY $  10.50 7106 $  74,613.00 
8 COMMERCIAL HOT MIX ASPHALT TN $  90.00 2043 $      183,870.00 
9 CRUSHED SURFACING, TOP COURSE TN $  23.00 1138 s 26,174.00 
10 CRUSHED SURFACING, BASE COURSE TN $  20.00 4396 s 87,920.00 
11 GEOTEXnLE FABRIC SF $  0.20 150481 s 30,096.20 
12 PAVEMENT REMOVAL CY $  27.00 1149 $  31,016.75 
13 GRAVEL SURFACING TN $  15.00 696 $  10,445.49 
14 CURB RAMP EA $  2,000.00 56 $      112,000.00 
15 CURB AND GUTTIERS· TANDARD LF $  14.00 1215 $  17,010.00 
16 CURB AND GVTTER • ROLLED CURB LF $  14.00 9329 $      130,606.00 
17 CURB AND GUTTIERT· RANSITIONS LF $  25.00 37 $  925.00 
18 CONCRETE SIDEWALK SF $  4.00 39319 $      157,276.00 
19 PAINTED CROSSWALK LINE SF $  10.00 2520 $  25,200.00 
20 RESET LIGHT POLE EA $  200.00 0 $ 
21 PROJECT TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL LS $ 1,000.00 17 $  17,000.00 
22 ESC LEAD DAY $  100.00 97 $  9,700.00 
23 SURFACE RESTORATION LS s  3,000.00 16 $  48,750.00 
24 REMOVE TREES EA $ 2,000.00 0 $ 
25 LANDSCAPING SY $ 2,000.00 16 $  32,000.00 
26 48" DIA STORM MANHOLE EA $ 3,000.00 5 $  15,000.00 
27 CONNECT TO EXISTING STORM MANHOLES EA $ 800.00 0 $ 

 
30 

12" DIA STORM SEWER PIPE 
CATCH BASIN ·ROLLED CURB 

LF 
EA 

$ 45.00 
$ 1,600.00 

570 
19 

$  25,650.00 
$  30,400.00 

31 CATCH BASIN·STANDARD GRATE EA $  1,300.00 2 $ 2,600.00 
SUBTOTAL SCHEDULE 1  $   1,282,792.98 



Pioneer Su rveying and Engineering, Inc. 
125 Simcoe Drive 

Goldendale, W A 98620 
Phone (509) 773-4945  Fax: (509) 773-5888 

 

1 8" DIA SANITARY SEWER PIPE EA s  38.00 2503 $  90,108.00 
2 10" DIA STORM SEWER PIPE LF $ 44.00 1100 $  48,400.00 
3 48" DIA SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE EA $  3,000.00 20 $  60,000.00 
4 CONNECT TO EXISll NG SEWER MANHOLE EA $  800.00 5 $  4,000.00 
5 SHORING OR EXTRA EXCAVATION (CLASS A) LS $  1,000.00 21 s  21,000.00 
6 COMMERCIAL HOT MIX ASPHALT TN $  90.00 434 s 39,058.32 
7 CRUSHED SURFACING, TOP COURSE TN $  23.00 240 $  5,510.79 
8 CRUSHED SURFACI NG, BASE COURSE TN $  20.00 719 $  14,375.97 
9 SEWER LATERAL LF $  20.00 3580 $  71,600.00 
10 PAVEMEREMOVAL CY $  27.00 200 $  5404.50 

SUBTOTAL SCHEDULE 2  $      359,457.58 
SALES TAX AT7.5%  $  26,959.32 
SUBTOTAL SCHEDULE 2 WITH SALES TAX  $    386,416.90 

 

 
BID SCHEDULE 2 - SEWER 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BID SCHEDULE 3   WATER 
1 REMOVE FIRE HYDRA EA $  750.00 1 $  750.00 
2 INSTALL FIRE HYDRA EA $  3,850.00 2 $  7,700.00 
3 INSTALL 8" PVC WATER PIPE LF $  35.00 1350 $  47,250.00 
4 INSTALL 8" PVC WAllER PIPE CONNECllONS EA $  1,000.00 8 $  8,000.00 
5 COMMERCIAL HOT MIX ASPHALT TN $  90.00 163 $  14,634.68 
6 CRUSHED SURFACING, TOP COURSE TN $  23.00 90 s  2,064.83 
7 SERVI CE LINE LF $  20.00 1200 s  24,000.00 
8 CRUSHED SURFACING,BASE COURSE TN $  20.00 269 $ 5,386.50 
9 PAVEMEREMOVAL CY $  27.00 75 $ 2,025.00 

SUBTOTAL SCHEDULE 3  $    
 SALES TAX AT 7.5%  $  8,385.83 

SUBTOTAL SCHEDULE 3 WITH SALES TAX  $    120,196.83 
 

SUBTOTAL SCHEDULE 1 $ 1,282,792.98 
SUBTOTAL SCHEDULE 2 INCLUDES SALES TAX $  386,416.90 
SUBTOTAL SCHEDULE 3  INCLUDES SALES TAX $   120,196.83 
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $1,789,406.70 
Design Engineering $    182,475.00 
  $   1,971,881.70 



Pioneer Surveying and Engineeri ng, Inc. 
125 Si mcoe Drive 

Goldendale, WA 98620 
Phone (509) 773-4945  Fax: (509) 773-5888 

 

 
  Road Construction Cost Funding Source Bid Schedule 
DARLAND     

100 Block Columbus Intersection onlv  $13,624.60 City Base Bid 

200 Block  $0.00   
300 Block  $0.00   

COLLINS     
100 Block  $106,978.45 CDBG Base Bid 
200 Block  $91, 

 
City Base Bid 

300 Block  $95,381.21 City Base Bid 
BURGEN     

100 Block Chip SealOnlv  $11,700.00 City Base Bid 
200 Block  $105,623.64 CDBG Base Bid 
300 Block  $104, 20.22 CDBG Base Bid 

Allyn     
200 Block  $94,544.48 CDBG Base Bid 
300 Block  $96,471.52 COBG Base Bid 

Golden     
200 Block  $68,339.10 City Alternate 3 
300 Block  $69,586.34 CDBG Base Bid 
400 Block  $61,896.96 City Base Bid 
500 Block  $59,782.74 City Base Bid 

600 Block  $54,106.73 City Alternate 2 
Grant     

200 Block West Sidewalk Only  $10,192.50 City Base Bid 

300 Block  $67,839.50 CDBG Base B1.d 

400 Block  $56,992.56 City Base Bid 
500 Block  $61,989.92 City Base Bid 
600 Block  $51,930,01 City Alternate 1 

  $1,282,792.98   



 

CITY OF  GOLDENDALE 
PROPOSED 

WEST COLUMBUS NEIGHBORHOOD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 

 
 

200  100 0 200  400 

 
SCALE FEET 

 
 
 
 
 
 

LEGEND 
 

 
PROJECT AREA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1  6-25-n  PRELIMINARY PLAN 

Date  Revisions 

 

 
 

125 Simcoe   Drive 
Goldendale,  Washington   9e620 

Phone ( 509)   773- 4945,  Fax  (509)  773-5B8B 
E- MaU   pseegorgt. nel 

 
 
 
1103  S.   Columbus  A ve. 
Goldendale,  Wa. 98620 

509-77-3i71 

PROJECT MAP 

CITY OF GOLDENDALE 
WEST COLUMBUS  NEIGHBORHOOD 

IMPROVEMENT  PROJECT 
 

SECTION 20.  T  4  N,  R  16  E,  'IM 
KUCKITAT COUNTY  WASHINGTON 

 
 
FIGURE 
 

1-2 



 

AGENDA BILL:  G13 
 
 
 

AGENDA TITLE:  WEST ALLYN STORMWATER  OUTFALL 
RELOCATION PROJECT TOLLING 
AGREEMENT 

 
 
 

DATE:  DECEMBER 15, 2014 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUIRED: 

 
ORDINANCE,  _ COUNCIL INFORMATION  .;_;:X   

 
RESOLUTION  _ OTHER   

 
MOTION                   :_X:                       _ 

 
 
 
EXPLANATION: 
For the West Allyn Stormwater  Outfall Relocation  Project the Army Corp of Engineers 
requires execution of a tolling agreement. 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 
 
 
MOTION: 

 
I MOVE TO AUTHORIZE  THE MAYOR  TO EXECUTE A  TOLLING  AGREEMENT 
WITH THE AMRY CORP OF ENGINEERS FOR THE WEST ALLYN STORMWATER 
OUTFALL RELOCATION PROJECT. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Memo 

City of Goldendale 

 

 
To:      Mayor and Council 

 

From: Karl Enyeart, PE, Public Works Director 
 

CC:     Larry Bellamy, City Administrator 
 

Date:  12/15/2014 
 

Re:     West Allyn Stormwater Outfall Relocation Project 
 
 
 
 

Attached are: 
 

• Toiling Agreement 
 

This is an agreement required by the Army Corps for the permitting of the West Allyn 
Stormwater Outfall Relocation Project and a resolution to the sediment removal done 
in 2010. 

 
I recommend approval of the agreement with the Army Corps. 



 

 
 

TOLLING AGREEMENT 
 

For Reference: NWS-2010-1343; ORM Name 
 

WHEREAS, the United States of America, on behalf of the United States Army Corps of 

Engineers (Corps) may file a complaint against the City of Goldendale ("potential defendant(s)") 

for, inter alia, alleged violations of Sections 301(a), 309, & 404 of the Clean Water Act 

("CWA"), 33 U.S.C. Sections 13ll(a), 1319, & 1344 and/or Section 9, 10, or 13 ofthe Rivers 

and Harbors Act of 1899, 33 U.S.C. Sections 401, 403, or 407, and/or Ocean Dumping Act 

Sections 101 and/or 103 (33 U.S.C. 1411, 1413), at a site commonly known as wetlands abutting  . 

the Little Klickitat River, located near 700 West Allyn Street, on Tax Lots 600 and 500, Section 

20, Township 4 North, Range 16 East, in Goldendale, Klickitat County, Washington. 
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of any such complaint would be to obtain appropriate injunctive 

relief and to impose appropriate civil or criminal penalties for potential defendant'(s) alleged 

violations of the statute(s) cited above; 

WHEREAS, the Corps accepted an after-the-fact  (ATF) permit application from the 

potential defendant(s) in an attempt to settle the above claims; 

WHEREAS, both parties believe that their interests will best be served by continuing the 

ATF permit process without the disruption that might be occasioned should the United States file 

a complaint in the immediate future; 

AND WHEREAS both parties acknowledge the requirement found at 33 C.P.R. 
 

331.11(c) for an applicant for an ATF permit to provide a signed tolling agreement; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 



2  

 
 
 
 

THEREFORE, the United States and potential defendant(s) stipulate and agree as 

follows: 

1.  The United States and potential defendant(s) agree that the time between the 

acceptance by the Corps of the ATF permit application and the final Corps decision (as defmed at 

33 CFR 331.10), plus one year thereafter, will not be included in calculating any statute of 

limitations that might be applicable to the alleged statutory violation(s) described above. 

Potential defendants agree not to assert, plead, or raise in any fashion on behalf of any party, 

whether by answer, motion, or otherwise, any defense or avoidance based on the running of any 

statute oflimitations that may apply during that period or any defense or avoidance based on 

laches or other principle concerning the timeliness of commencing a civil action, based on the 

failure of the United States to file its complaint during that period. 

2.  Potential defendants further agree not to transfer the property in question during the 

pendency of this tolling agreement nor during the pendency of any civil action brought as 

described above, without first notifying the United States and giving the United States a 

reasonable opportunity to oppose such transfer. 

3.  Nothing in this tolling agreement shall restrict or otherwise prevent the United States 

from filing a complaint regarding any alleged statutory violation(s) not described above, at any 

time. 



3  

 
 
 

4.  This tolling agreement does not constitute any admission of liability on the part of 

potential defendants; nor does it constitute any admission or acknowledgment on the part of the 

United States that any statute of limitations has run or that any statute of limitations is applicable 

to the statutory claims described above. 

5.  This tolling agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties, and no 

statement, promise or inducement made by any party to this agreement, or any agent of such 

parties, that is not set forth in this agreement shall be valid or binding. This tolling agreement 

may not be enlarged, modified or altered except in writing signed by the parties.  This tolling 

agreement may be executed in counterparts. 

 
 
 

FOR the United States of America: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Siri C. Nelson 
District Counsel 
Seattle District, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

DATE 

 
 
 
 

FOR the City of Goldendale: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Clinton Baze 
City of Goldendale 

DATE 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


